
 

 
Contact Officer: Liam Archer 

Telephone: 01785 276817 
Email: StaffsHWBB@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

 

Thursday 3 March 2022 
15:00 - 17:00 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
 

Our Vision for Staffordshire 

 

"Staffordshire will be a place where improved health and wellbeing is experienced by all - it will be a 

good place. People will be healthy, safe and prosperous and will have the opportunity to grow up, 

raise a family and grow old, as part of a strong, safe and supportive community".  

 

We will achieve this vision through 

 

"Strategic leadership, influence, leverage, pooling of our collective resources and joint working 

where it matters most, we will lead together to make a real difference in outcomes for the people of 

Staffordshire". 

 

Agenda 

 

Chair:  Cllr Johnny McMahon, Cabinet Support Member for Public Health 
and Integrated Care 

 
The meeting will be webcast live which can be viewed at any time here: 

https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 

No Time Item Presenter(s) Page(s) 

1.   3:00pm Welcome and Routine Items Chair  

  a) Apologies   

  b) Declarations of Interest   

  c) Minutes of Previous Meeting  1 - 10 

  d) Questions from the Public   

2.   3:05pm Joint Health and Wellbeing 

Board Strategy 

Claire McIver Verbal 

Report 

3.   3:35pm Healthy Ageing and Managing 
Frailty in Older Age Strategy 

Dr Amit Arora 
Matthew Missen 

Tilly Flanagan 
Jon Rouse 

 

11 - 38 

https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

Page 2 of 3 

4.   4:05pm Air Aware Project Cath 
Stephenson 

39 - 48 

5.   4:15pm Staffordshire Better Care Fund Roseanne 
Cororan 

49 - 84 

6.   4:25pm Forward Plan 2022-2023 Jon Topham 85 - 90 

Date of Next Meeting  

 
Thursday 9th June 2022 at 2:00pm in the Council Chamber, County Buildings, 

Stafford. 

Exclusion of the Public  
 
The Chairman to move: 

 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 

which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 

amended), indicated below”. 

 

 
Part Two 

(All reports in this section are exempt) 
 

Nil. 

 

Membership 

Johnny McMahon (Co-Chair) Staffordshire County Council (Cabinet Support 
Member for Public Health and Integrated Care) 

Dr Alison Bradley (Co-Chair) North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

Julia Jessel Staffordshire County Council (Cabinet Member for 

Health and Care) 

Mark Sutton Staffordshire County Council (Cabinet Member for 

Children and Young People) 

Dr Rachel Gallyot East Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

Dr Gary Free Cannock Chase Clinical Commissioning Group 

Dr Paddy Hannigan Stafford and Surrounds Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

Dr Shammy Noor South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

Dr John James STP Chair of Clinical Leaders Group 



 

Page 3 of 3 

Dr Richard Harling MBE Staffordshire County Council (Director for Health and 

Care) 

Helen Riley Staffordshire County Council (Deputy Chief 

Executive and Director for Families and 
Communities) 

Craig Porter CCG Accountable Officer Representative 

Simon Whitehouse Staffordshire Sustainability and Transformation 

Programme 

Sarah Wainwright Staffordshire Police 

Phil Pusey Staffordshire Council of Voluntary Youth Services 

Garry Jones Support Staffordshire 

Gill Heesom District/Borough Council Representative 

Roger Lees District/Borough Council Representative 

Tim Clegg District/Borough Council CEO Representative 

Simon Fogell Healthwatch Staffordshire 

Carmel Warren Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 

Howard Watts Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 
Notes for Members of the Press and Public 

 
Filming of Meetings 
  

Staffordshire County Council is defined as a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act 2018. The County Council has agreed that Public meetings should be 

the subject of live web transmission ‘webcasting’. Fixed cameras are located within 
meeting room for this purpose.  

  
The webcast will be live on the County Council’s website and recorded for 

subsequent play-back for 12 months. The recording will also be uploaded to 
YouTube. By entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting 
tables you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of 

those images and sound recordings for the purpose of webcasting.  
  

If you have privacy concerns about the webcast or do not wish to have your image 
captured then please contact the Member and Democratic Services officer named at 

the top right of the agenda. 
  

Recording by Press and Public 
  

Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is 
permitted from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the 
chairman, disrupt the meeting. 





- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board Meeting 
held on 2 December 2021 

 
Attendance:  

 

Johnny McMahon Staffordshire County Council (Cabinet Support 
Member for Public Health and Integrated Care) 

Dr Alison Bradley North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning 

Group 

Julia Jessel Staffordshire County Council (Cabinet Member 
for Health and Care) 

Mark Sutton Staffordshire County Council (Cabinet Member 
for Children and Young People) 

Dr Richard Harling Staffordshire County Council (Director for Health 

and Care) 

Helen Riley Staffordshire County Council (Deputy Chief 
Executive and Director for Families and 

Communities) 

Phil Pusey Staffordshire Council of Voluntary Youth Services 

Garry Jones Support Staffordshire 

Gill Heesom District/Borough Council Representative 

Tim Clegg District/Borough Council CEO Representative 

Howard Watts Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 

 

Note by Clerk: Peter Axon (Chief Executive of North Staffordshire Combined 
NHS Trust) attended the meeting virtually via Microsoft Teams but took no 

part in the Board’s decisions set out in the resolut ions below. 
 

Apologies: Dr Rachel Gallyot (East Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group), Dr Paddy Hannigan (Chair, Stafford and Surrounds CCG) (Stafford 
and Surrounds Clinical Commissioning Group), Simon Whitehouse 

(Staffordshire Sustainability and Transformation Programme), 
Sarah Wainwright (Chief Superintendent) (Staffordshire Police), Roger Lees 

(District/Borough Council Representative) and Rita Heseltine (South 
Staffordshire District Council) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1c



 

- 2 - 
 

79. Welcome and Routine Items 
 

a) Declarations of Interest 
 

Nil. 
 

b) Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2021 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman.  
 

c) Questions from the Public 
 

Nil. 
 

d) Covid Update 
 

The Board received an update on the current Covid situation within 
Staffordshire, the emerging Omicron variant and associated concerns. The 
Board were informed of the new rules that had been introduced by the 

Government, including the requirement to wear a face covering in shops, 
indoor public spaces and on public transport.  

 
There was a requirement to isolate even for those vaccinated, should they be 

identified as a close contact of someone who had tested positive with the 
new variant.  

 
The Board was reminded and encouraged to follow the new rules and 
preventative measures in place, including vaccination. 

 
80. Staffordshire Joint Strategic Needs and Assets Assessment 2021 – 

Progress Update 
 

The Board received an update on the Staffordshire Joint Strategic Needs and 
Assets Assessment (JSNA), updating them on the progress throughout 2021 

and the new format and requesting sign-off on the final version. 
 
It was agreed at the 3 June 2021 meeting that this years’ JSNA would bring 

together the assets and needs of the local population. The JSNA comprises of 
8 key messages. 

 
As part of the finalisation of the JSNA, headlines and key trends were 

delivered to the Board on 2 September 2021. Feedback from the detailed 
JSNA outputs had been considered and incorporated into the final version, 

along with additional data metrics, which had been made available on the 
Staffordshire Observatory. 
 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

The intention was for the new JSNA to be an iterative process, and as a live 
version which could be updated as changes were required. 

Members of the Board commented on the new format of the JSNA and how 
this helped focus the direction of travel and what needs to be done next. It 

was requested that the Board and Members of Scrutiny are advised of any 
iterative changes to the document throughout the year. 

 
The Board were informed that work will now commence to support the 

development of the refreshed Joint Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy. 
 
RESOLVED – That (a) the new Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, and the 

new format be noted; and  
 

(b) the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment be approved. 
 

81. Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy 
 

The Board considered an oral report and PowerPoint Presentation on the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy which had been refreshed into a 
new 2022-2027 version. 

 
As a result of reviewing the JSNA and a range of other discussions over past 

Board meetings, the new Strategy over the next five years had been pulled 
together. It was proposed that the Strategy be titled ‘Health as everyone’s 

business’.  
 

The slides detailed key headlines and how the strategy is structured at a 
high-level along with a summary of health and wellbeing in Staffordshire. 
The Board were asked whether this is a true reflection of the JSNA and if the 

right areas had been captured.  
 

The Strategy focused on promoting a collaborative approach to deliver 
healthy communities and healthy environments, drawing on existing 

strengths and assets. It sought to provide the conditions to support healthy 
choices and ensure high quality and equitable support to keep people 

independent and well, when needed. The ambition of the Strategy was to 
reduce health inequity and inequality and increase life expectancy for all.  
 

Members of the Board requested that individuals own motivation be factored 
into the delivery of the strategy, focussing on their own choices and 

circumstances.  
 

The Board requested that work be undertaken to look at communications 
around delivering the refreshed Strategy. 

 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

The slides further outlined the principles of the refreshed Strategy and the 
Board were asked to ensure that these are the right principles. The Board 

were supportive of the principles detailed below: 
 

- Prioritise prevention and early intervention 
- Engage with communities and co-produce solutions 

- Recognise and support the growing contribution and needs of voluntary 
organisations to improving health and wellbeing 

- Recognise diversity and respond to inequalities and inequities 
- Commission and deliver high quality services that provide excellent 

value for money for those who need them most, tailored to people’s 

needs 
- Communicate clearly making sure we are understood, and that 

information is accessible to everyone 
- Strengths-based, making the most of existing community assets and 

insight 
- Improving health outcomes through a good understanding of data, 

improving care coordination and designing proactive models of care 
- Seek to ensure local people have access to the information and support 

they need to remain independent and stay well 

- Develop the wider health and care workforce and embrace digital 
solutions. 

 
The Strategy will focus on four areas of approach:  

 
1. the Wider Determinants of Health;  

2. our Health Behaviours and Lifestyles;  
3. the Places and Communities we live in and with; and 
4. an Integrated Health and Care System.  

 
The Board supported the approach outlined, with the addition of a specific 

reference to mental health under point 3. 
 

The priorities of the strategy had been determined by local insight and the 
current health and wellbeing need. Each priority area would include the 

outcomes to be achieved and the local community assets and partners that 
would be worked with.  
 

- Reducing infant mortality, which will look at understanding and 
tackling the causes as a system to improve survival in babies up to one 

year.  
 

At this point, the Board were reminded of the Families Strategic Partnership 
Board arrangements, which is a sub-group of the HWBB, and was set up to 

deliver the priorities set by the HWBB, with reporting mechanisms in place to 
feed back to the HWBB as required. The responsibility also sits with the Early 
Years Advisory Board to look at infant mortality. 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

 
- Good mental health will look at building good emotional health and 

wellbeing, happiness and resilience that also prevents mental illness.  
 

Members of the Board discussed the aspect of social media and the effects 
this can have and requested this was included under the heading of good 

mental health. The Board also discussed the aspect of self-harm and safety 
within good mental health. 

 
- Healthy weight covers tackling excess weight in adults and children 

and creating conditions to enable healthy choices.  

 
- Healthy ageing will look at developing and maintaining functions and 

independence to enable wellbeing in older age. 
 

The Board requested an addition to this, around growing the strength-based 
approach and evidence that this was being used to good effect. Members of 

the Board also requested that this was expanded to include preparation for 
old age, death at home and end of life care planning.  
 

Members of the Board asked that against each bullet point identified in the 
slides, that an organisation, or multiple organisations was listed against each 

bullet point, in terms of delivery. 
 

RESOLVED – That the update be noted, with comments from the Board 
included in the draft version for consideration and moved forward to 

consultation. 
 

82. Better Health Staffordshire 

 
The Board received an oral report and presentation on the Better Health 

Staffordshire project. Better Health Staffordshire is the brand name for the 
work being undertaken around obesity, physical activity and diet. The Board 

were reminded of previous presentations to the Board by Jude Taylor from 
TogetherActive.  

 
Slides were presented to the Board, which covered both short term impacts 
and long-term developments which the project is aiming to achieve.  

 
The Board was informed of short-term impact work which had taken place to 

date, including various campaigns, improved advice and guidance, the 
procurement of an app finder and training sessions. These areas of work 

were complemented by a number of initiatives which were focussed on 
having a higher impact. Members of the Board were assured that outcome 

data will be shared with the group. 
 
 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

 
A whole systems approach was presented to the Board, comprising of six 

phases: 
 

- Phase 1: Set-up 
- Phase 2: Building the local picture 

- Phase 3: Mapping the local system 
- Phase 4: Action 

- Phase 5: Managing the system network 
- Phase 6: Reflect and refresh (ongoing) 

 

The approach was currently at phase 3. Action planning would commence in 
Q1 2022. The request to the Board was to continue the support in shaping 

and developing this piece of work. 
 

Further slides were presented to the Board, titled ‘A Tale of Two Histories’. 
This featured a case story around a 45-year-old person (Vicky) with a 

complex case history, diagnosed at age 28 with type 2 diabetes. The slides 
showed a timeline of medical history since 2012 and background was given 
in Vicky’s life. Statistics on food insecurity were provided to the Board. 

 
The Board gave their collective thanks to Vicky for sharing their story.  

 
Members of the Board discussed workplace arrangements and how we could 

look towards engaging people in weight management and the healthy 
agenda. 

 
Next steps included facilitating workshops with partners and partnerships 
forming at a District/Borough level in 2022 to develop action plans with a 

view to the action stage starting in Q1 2022/23. 
 

RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 

83. Air Aware Staffordshire Project Phase 2 Update 
 

The Board received a report and presentation on the Air Aware Staffordshire 
Project Phase 2, updating them on the recent successful funding bid to 
continue the project.  

 
The project had received funding from Defra to continue until March 2022. 

The project would now move into Phase 2 which will focus engagement 
activities in three locations (Burton, Leek and Cannock) where Air Quality 

Management Areas (AQMA) impact or are caused by transport to businesses 
and schools.  

 

Page 6



 

- 7 - 
 

The Board was informed that £298,000 project funding is split across five 
elements of: Business Engagement; School Engagement; Electric Vehicle 

promotion; Communications and Monitoring stations.  
 

The slides presented to the Board gave background on air pollution and each 
of the five elements listed above. 

 
The Board was informed that next steps for the project, moving into 2022 

included: an Anti-Idling campaign in March 2022, which is linked to the Make 
Staffordshire Sustainable Climate Change activities; an Active Travel month 
in May 2022, which would include activities on cycling and walking; a Clean 

Air Day in June 2022 and School, Business and EV engagement throughout 
the year. 

 
The Board was assured that a detailed update on the progress of the project 

will be provided at the next Board meeting. 
 

RESOLVED – That (a) the successful funding bid to continue the Air Aware 
Project be noted; and 
 

(b) Note that a detailed update will be provided to the Board at their meeting 
on 3 March 2022. 

 
84. Integrated Care Partnership Update 

 
The Board received an oral update and presentation on the Staffordshire and 

Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care System.  
 
The slides denoted the core elements of integrated care systems, the 

leadership compact and an establishment timeline. The timeline detailed the 
work to date and ongoing activities up to 1 April 2022, when the Integrated 

Care System (ICS) would commence. It was raised that there was a 
potential for a delay to establishing the ICS, however the programme was 

continuing with a view to launching on the 1 April 2022. 
 

The Board was informed of the vision, priorities and purpose of the 
partnership, which were crafted over a series of development sessions to set 
the priorities for the future.  

 
The slides further demonstrated the functions and duties of an Integrated 

Care Board (ICB). 
 

The Board was also informed of the proposed ICB composition, which would 
comprise of a total of 14 members. This included 5 independent non-

executive members, 5 executive members, 4 partner members and 2 non-
voting board members. 
 

Page 7



 

- 8 - 
 

Transition progress for the ICS was shared with the Board, outlining steps 
which had taken place to date and measures that were still outstanding. CCG 

were now undertaking due diligence as part of their close down activities. 
 

The Board noted that due to the reorganisation, there will be no 
commissioning intentions submitted for 2021/22. It was requested that 

Commissioning Intentions for 2022/23 are provided, irrespective of the 
current changes in progress, as they are a statutory requirement of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board. The Board were subsequently informed that 
‘System Plans’ were currently being submitted, and this was due to replace 
the usual CCG Commissioning Intentions for the Board. 

 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 

 
85. Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Adult Safeguarding Partnership 

Board (SSASPB) Annual Report 2020/21 
 

The Board received the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Adult Safeguarding 
Partnership Board (SSASPB) Annual Report 2020/21, which required Board 
oversight as part of the Care Act 2014. 

 
The Annual Report covered the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, and 

provided an overview of the work of the Board and its sub-groups, illustrated 
with case studies as to how the focus on ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ was 

making a positive difference to ensuring adults with care and support needs 
were supported to make choices in how they will live their lives in a place 

where they feel safe, secure and free from abuse.  
 
The Board was informed of the Staffordshire headlines for the reporting 

period, and concerns raised where a Section 42 enquiry may have been 
required. 

 
The Board was asked to provide feedback as to how the Health and 

Wellbeing Board could enhance contributions to safeguarding of adults with 
care and support needs at risk of abuse or neglect. 

 
Thanks were given to the Officers involved with the report. 
 

RESOLVED – That (a) the Board receive and consider the SSASPB Annual 
Report 2020/21 in accordance with the requirements of the Care Act 2014; 

and 
 

(b) Provide feedback as to how the HWBB can enhance contributions to 
safeguarding of adults with care and support needs at risk of abuse or 

neglect. 
 
 

Page 8



 

- 9 - 
 

86. Forward Plan 
 

RESOLVED – That their Forward Plan for 2021/22 be received and noted 
with the inclusion of the following items for the meeting on 3 March 2022. 

 
- Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy 

- Frailty Strategy 
 

87. Date of Next Meeting / Future Meeting Dates 
 
RESOLVED – That the date, time and venue of the next meeting of the 

Board (Thursday 3rd March 2022 at 3:00pm in the Council Chamber, County 
Buildings, Stafford), be noted. 

 
 

 
 

Chairman 
 
 

Page 9





 

 

 

Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board – 03 March 
2022 
 

Healthy Ageing and Managing Frailty in Older Age 
Strategy  
 

Recommendations 
 

The Board is asked to: 
 

a. Note the Healthy Ageing and Managing Frailty Strategy developed by 
Together We’re Better. 

b. Consider how the Healthy Ageing and Frailty Strategy add value to the 
existing Health and Wellbeing strategy and priorities, including primary 
and secondary prevention and the reduction of health inequalities. 

c. Consider how the Health and Wellbeing Board wish to contribute and 
shape elements of the strategy that are more health service facing. 

 

Background 
 
1. The ICS has set out an ambitious strategic direction for healthier ageing 

and management of frailty.  
 

2. This was developed through extensive engagement with clinicians, 
professionals, and wider stakeholders.  

 
3. Our populations are undergoing significant demographic changes and 

new patterns of lifestyle, service need/demand and illness are emerging. 

 
4. There is predicted to be a considerable increase in the number of people 

aged 65 years and older compared to the number of younger people 
across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent and England as a whole and now 

the COVID-19 pandemic has also presented us with new and exacerbated 
public health issues. However, it has also given us pause for reflection 

and new ways of working. 
 

5. The document sets out a strategic approach on how we can promote 

quality of life and delay the onset of frailty for as long as possible. 
 

6. We need to fundamentally rethink our approach to enabling people to 
remain independent and living life to the full. The document also 

considers how we can provide holistic health care to those who are frail. 
 

7. The key themes of the strategy are:  
 

a. Addressing Inequalities  

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

b. Ageing Well 
c. Slowing the Progression of Frailty 

d. Supporting Complex Co-Morbidities and Frailty 
e. Effective Crisis Support 

f. High Quality Person-Centred Acute Care 
g. Good Discharge Planning and Post-Discharge Support 

h. Effective Rehabilitation & Reablement 
i. Person-Centred Dignified Long-Term Care 

j. Support, Control & Choice at End of Life 
k. Workforce Development 

 

8. Prevention in its broadest sense features in many of the thematic work 
streams. We know that lifestyles issues such as physical activity and 

social factors like loneliness have a major impact on health. There are 
fundamental questions we need to ask ourselves for example: 

 
a. How do we scale up prevention?  

b. How can the ICS and the health service enhance its prevention offer 
and support implementation of existing Health and Wellbeing 
Strategies?   

 
9. The healthier ageing theme is being led by Public Health colleagues from 

the two Local Authorities and preliminary scoping working has 
commenced. 

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 - Healthy Ageing and Managing Frailty in Older Age, Together 

We’re Better  
Appendix 2 – Presentation Healthy Ageing and Managing Frailty in Older 

Age 
 

Contact Details 
 

Board Sponsor: Dr Richard Harling, Director for Health and Care 
 

Report Author:  Jon Rouse, City Director, City of Stoke-on-Trent  
Telephone No: 01782 232736                               
Email Address: jon.rouse@stoke.gov.uk           

 
 

Page 12



“Happy for life” by Rose 

Healthy Ageing & 
Managing Frailty 

In Older Age 
Strategy 

September 2021 Page 13



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OUR COMMITMENT 
The Covid-19 pandemic and the ongoing Covid-19 vaccination 
programme has placed the health inequalities of the local 
population that we serve firmly under the spotlight.  Partners 
across the health and care system of Staffordshire and Stoke-
on-Trent have also shown a tremendous ability to innovate, 
adapt quickly to changing demands and work together.  This 
combination creates an environment that we should absolutely 
maximise in terms of how we innovate and develop our 
approaches to looking after those most vulnerable in our 
communities and neighbourhoods.   

This document sets out a new strategic approach to how we 
support local people to stay well for as long as possible.  I am 
excited with the vision that is set out and will want to support its 
translation into local delivery, across the partnership, so that 
together we can have a positive impact on people’s lives. 

Our population is undergoing significant demographic change 
and this gives us a great opportunity to rethink the care we 
provide for our older residents and care groups. We need 
fundamentally to refocus our activities on preventing poor 
health, increasing healthy life expectancy and enabling older 
people to stay independent, living life to the full. This will require 
all of our partners working together to make this strategy a 
reality.  I am delighted to commend this healthier ageing and 
managing frailty strategy which gives the Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent health and care system a direction of travel and 
a platform for exciting innovation. 

Prem Singh
Together We’re Better
ICB Chair Designate 
Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent 

Jon Rouse CBE |City Director 
City of Stoke-on-Trent 

Page 14



Dr Zafar Iqbal| 
Associate Medical Director Public Health 
(MPFT) 

Dr Amit Arora | 
Consultant Physician /Geriatrician (UHNM) 
Associate Medical Director (MPFT) 
Special Adviser to ICS for Older People  

 

FOREWORD 
“We are all ageing and times are changing” 

“This last year and a half has been an 
unprecedented time for the world. Whilst we 
continue to contend with the challenges that 
COVID-19 presents us with day by day across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, we now must 
also look to the future.  

There is predicted to be a considerable increase in 
the number of people aged 65 years and older 
compared to the number of younger people across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent and England as a 
whole and now the COVID-19 pandemic has also 
presented us with new and exacerbated public 
health issues. However, it has also given us pause 
for reflection and new ways of working.  

Having spoken with many clinicians, health and 
care organisation representatives, volunteer and 
community organisations, and members of the 
public it is clear to see that there is great passion 
across Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire for 
working together to make ageing as positive as 
possible for as many people as possible.” 

“The opportunity is huge and the right time is 
now” 

Dr Susan Roberts | 
Public Health Specialty Registrar (MPFT)  

Steve Grange | 
Executive Director of Strategy & Strategic 
Transformation (MPFT) 
TDU Director (Staffordshire ICS) 
Programme Director EPCC (Staffordshire ICS) 

Page 15



OUR 
VISION:
“Making Our 

Health & Care 
Systems Fit for 

an Ageing 
Population”

Page 16



Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent 
Healthy Ageing & Managing Frailty in Older Age 

Strategy on a Page  

P
age 17



INTRODUCTION
Background 

Frailty and care of older people remain a key challenge across the NHS especially with rapidly changing 
demographics and patterns of illness.  There is recognition that many parts the health and care system fail 
to sufficiently improve the quality of life of older people and there are unacceptable variations in health 
inequalities. Much more needs to be done to delay the onset of frailty and slow down its progression. Care 
of older people can be streamlined to make it more collaborative, integrated and patient-centered. It is 
hoped that such an approach will benefit the population; and improve the efficiencies and outcomes within 
the NHS. The newer developments in treatments, service reconfigurations and technology should enable 
such a strategic change. 

The strategy will enable the Integrated Care System to address 
some key questions: 

- How do we promote healthier ageing?
- What prevention programmes do we need to stop/prevent healthy cohorts becoming frail?
- How do we reduce health inequalities for older populations?
- How do we slow down progression of frailty?
- How do we strengthen falls prevention programmes?
- What further developments are needed in our crisis services?
- How do we develop social care to meet the future demographic challenges?
- How do we promote self-care and remote supervision for patients and support in our community?
- How do we build in innovation?
- What are the workforce implications?

What will be different?...The bigger picture 

Page 18



What could be different? …Examples of service pathways 

Strategy Approach 

Page 19



 

 
 
 Design Delivery Programmes… 

PROGRESS TO DATE 
Building a Case for Change… 

Page 20

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.ageuk.org.uk/our-impact/policy-research/frailty-in-older-people/&psig=AOvVaw3jOoybvmBaDQGrDf_2yc1B&ust=1624985038320000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAcQjRxqFwoTCNis85zjuvECFQAAAAAdAAAAABAD
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://scarysymptoms.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/THIN-OLD-By-Creative-Family-200x300.jpg&imgrefurl=https://scarysymptoms.com/2018/06/middle-age-women-who-sit-a-lot-at-risk-for-future-frailty/&tbnid=RNs51yxUcvQirM&vet=12ahUKEwinpoiR47rxAhVMrhoKHUXgC-sQMyhGegQIARBk..i&docid=b-dLd7DmpsUzsM&w=200&h=300&q=old%20people%20fraility%20pictuires&hl=en-GB&ved=2ahUKEwinpoiR47rxAhVMrhoKHUXgC-sQMyhGegQIARBk


 Page 21



 

 

SUMMARY OF NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
A strategic needs assessment has been undertaken to understand current and future health and wellbeing need and demand in older people and to shape the 
Staffordshire Integrated Care System approach to promoting healthy ageing and managing frailty.   
 

Information provided in this summary has been collated through an iterative and collaborative process. It draws upon information provided through routinely available 
public health tools, and resources obtained through literature searches, collation of past work from local and regional partners, and from wider professional networks. 
 

The system-wide strategy for Healthy Ageing & Managing Frailty in Older Age is based on a comprehensive needs and evidence-informed approach. 
 

Whilst an overview of need has been produced, a series of in-depth needs assessment focused on specific healthy ageing and managing frailty programmes will be 
required. These should incorporate additional data sources and new local data that capture health and wellbeing since the COVID-19 pandemic. Further focused 
evidence reviews would also be beneficial. 

 

Summary of Needs Assessment  

 
 
 

Projected population estimates in Staffordshire & SOT1 
Based on 2018 estimates, between 2020 & 2030 projections:  
• Increase of 3.7% across the total population.  

 Number of people aged 65 years + (17% increase) 239,338 to 280,853 
• Number of people aged 85 years + (38% increase) 28,573 to 39,425 

 

Inequalities 
Before the COVID-19 pandemic: 
Across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
• Deprivation is unequally distributed across Staffordshire/Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care System area.3 
• The highest proportions of registered patients within deprived areas were seen within the North ICP footprint.4 
• Life expectancy and disability-free life expectancy were significantly lower than England average in Stoke-on-Trent. 

Since the COVID-19 pandemic: 

• Health inequalities have been exacerbated across England 

 

P
age 22



 

 

Wider Determinants and Lifestyles 
Before the COVID-19 pandemic 
• Based on estimates from before the pandemic, there is projected to be nearly 15,000 more people aged 65 years and older living 

alone across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent in 2030 compared to 2020.6 
• Across England, the proportion of people that are physically active reduces with age.7 
• Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent were both significantly worse than England in terms of eating five portions of fruit and 

vegetables a day and admissions for alcohol-related conditions.4 
• Stoke-on-Trent was significantly worse than England for physical inactivity and smoking prevalence, whilst Staffordshire is 

significantly worse for adult obesity prevalence.3 
• Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent were below targets for flu and shingles vaccinations.4 
• Staffordshire was significantly worse than England for people aged 40-74 years receiving an NHS health check.4 
• Stoke-on-Trent was significantly worse than England for abdominal aortic aneurysm, cervical cancer and bowel cancer. 

screening coverage.4 

Since the COVID-19 pandemic: (across England) 
• Comparing November 2019/20 and November 2018/19, there was a 1.3 % drop in the proportion of people aged 55-74 

years that were physically active and a 2.9% drop in people aged 75 years and over being physically active.8 Whilst data 
for the most recent months suggests that rates of physical activity have improved back to pre-pandemic levels in those aged 55-
74 years, there has been a sustained reduction in the rate of physical activity in people aged 75 years & over.8  

 

• Work presented by AgeUK (undertaken during August and September 2020) suggested that of people aged 60 and older, since 
the start of the pandemic:9 
o One in five people felt less steady on their feet 
o One in four people were able to walk less far 
o 36% felt less motivated to do things they used to enjoy  
o 40% of people felt less confident going to a GP surgery 
o 34% of people agreed their anxiety was worse than before the pandemic started 
o One in five people stated it was harder to remember things 
 

• The Centre for Ageing Better highlighted that since the pandemic:10 
o Double the number (600,000) of people aged 50+ were claiming unemployment benefits in September 2020 compared 

to March 2020.  
o 2.7 million People aged 50+ were furloughed.  
o Return to work is a major challenge in this age group. 
o Those most in need of social connections may have lost access to them. 

 

• Widening inequities in power, money and resources between individuals, communities and regions have generated 
inequalities in the conditions of life  COVID-19 Marmot Review.5 

P
age 23



 

 

Long Term Conditions 
Before the COVID-19 pandemic: 

  

National projections suggest that by 2035; 
there will be higher proportions of people aged 
65 years and over with multiple chronic 
conditions. The proportion of people aged 65 
and over with 2+ conditions is projected to go 
from 54% in 2015 to 68% in 2035, and those 
with 4+ conditions from 10% in 2015 to 17% in 
2035.13 So it is possible that this increase could 
translate into even higher numbers of older 
people with frailty across Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent. 

According to POPPI database projections for Staffordshire & SOT 
between 2020 and 2030 there could be: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Assuming a static prevalence over time and using ONS population 
projections, the following numbers of people aged 65 years and older 
might experience frailty over time: 

 
 

However, there is some evidence from 2017/18 of varied prevalence of frailty by Clinical 
Commissioning Group and of the extent to which the older population has been assessed for frailty. 
This analysis would benefit from being updated. 
 
 

Since the COVID-19 pandemic 
(across England)  
Work presented by Age UK 
(undertaken August and September 
2020) suggested that of people aged 
60 and older, since the start of the 
pandemic9: 
• 43% of people with a long term 

condition stated they were unable 
to walk as far.9 

• 28% of people with a long term 
condition stated they were finding it 
harder to remember things.9 

• In Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, 
7.7%  (c24,000) of people aged 60 
and older were  advised to shield 
during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
according to NHS Digital figures. 

P
age 24



 

 

Health and Care Demand Projections (before the pandemic) including Care at the End of Life 
Before the COVID-19 pandemic: 
Nationally, general practice demand has been projected to grow by 6% between 2020 and 2030 based on demographics alone.14 

With regards to social care projections, between 2015 and 2035, the prevalence of and numbers of people with dependency are 
projected to fall for young-old adults aged 65–74 years in England.  For people aged 85 years and older the number with low  
dependency (less than daily care) could increase by 148% and the number with high (24 hour care) dependency could increase 
by 92%, whilst prevalence will change minimally.  Older people with medium or high dependency and dementia could be more likely 
to have at least two other conditions.15 There are also national projections that the demand for wound care will increase, with the annual 
prevalence of acute, chronic and unspecified wounds found to be growing at the rate of 9%, 12% and 13%, respectively.18 

 
Across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent: 
• Combined acute urgent and emergency care attendance and non-elective and planned inpatient and day case activity is 

expected to increase.16 
• There could be an increase in the number of hospital admissions due to falls by over 2000 by 2030, equating to a 29% increase.6 
• Based on current MPFT referral numbers, district nursing, intermediate care services and the adult community physiotherapy 

service could see a considerable increase in the number of people aged 65 and over referred to their service.17 
• There could be approximately 2300 more people aged 65 years and older living in care homes.6 

Towards the end of life, across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent19: 
• 45% of people who die do so during an (often short) emergency admission.  
• In the last two years of life around £154 million is spent on hospital services for decedents. Urgent service events account for 

around two-thirds of this.  
• The number of deaths has begun to rise and is set to continue with the greatest number among those aged 85 and above.  
• If patterns of care do not change, the current growth in deaths per annum suggests that over 270 additional beds will be needed in 

the STP by 2040.  

Please see Appendix 1 for Full Needs Assessment –  
Current and projected health need in older people across Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent. 

 

P
age 25



 

CONSULTATION FINDINGS  
Healthy Ageing Workshop - Session Outputs 
Frailty and care of older people remains a key challenge in today’s society. Our Integrated Care 
System (ICS) is working to develop a system-wide strategy to promote healthy ageing and to make 
care of older people more collaborative, integrated and patient-centered. 
58 Attendees - All types of organisations, service providers and interest groups came 
together to collaborate at a high energy and fast paced digital session.  

Room to Improve 
Attendees spent time reflecting on and sharing on the areas that could be better regarding the services and 
experiences for our population. 
Here is what they came up with;  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sky’s the Limit 
Attendees focused on all the areas that they felt were good with regard to healthy ageing. 
Here are the outputs; 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Areas that could be better…. 

Areas felt were good…. 

Page 26



Page 27



 Early Consultation Findings from Ethnically Diverse Communities across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent.  
Method  
Consultation with medical & former medical staff from ethnically diverse communities as well as 
involving community voices, Healthwatch and non-medical groups to: 

• Highlight early themes
• Develop the consultation process further

Early themes 
• Issues with awareness of services available
• Issues around security of their homes
• Digital engagement/education/enablement
• Language barriers
• Cultural needs
• Dietary needs/preferences
• Social isolation
• Need for meeting places
• Need for informal care
• Financial needs

What we need to do next…… 
• Reach out to more groups.
• Have small group discussions.
• Have conversations with religious groups.
• Need for face-to-face meetings.
• A new revised questionnaire is also planned.
• Face to face visits with community leaders and

places of worship to get direct feedback.
Page 28

https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/news-photo/pictures-of-diverse-faces-and-people-in-india-representing-news-photo/931057050


SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE REVIEW 
The ageing population brings with it enormous opportunities and challenges 
to our health and care systems. The WHO has referred to 2020-2030 as the 
healthy ageing decade, where we will focus on creating a more sustainable 
healthcare system, providing proactive, preventative and predictive medicine. 
In order to do this, we must consider primary, secondary and tertiary 
prevention, as well as looking at population and individual based approaches. 

Primary Prevention 
Healthy ageing - population and individual 
approaches 
Population approach: Looking at the social determinants of 
health, we need healthy ageing cities/environments which 
include good transport, civic participation and employment, 
outdoor spaces and buildings, respect and social inclusion, 
housing and social participation. The strategy for tacking 
loneliness is focused on empowering social connections 
through community infrastructure, utilising the full potential of 

digital technology to connect people, maximising the use of community spaces (that are underutilised), 
embedding a sense of community in the planning of housing developments and considering social 
connections as well as community connections when creating transport links.  Community development 
via group activities can be used to improve mental wellbeing. 

Individualised approaches: Making Every Contact Count: physical 
activity, smoking, diet, alcohol. The NHS long term plan which promotes 
prevention through doubling prevention programmes set out for 
diabetes, increasing its alcohol care teams into more areas, offering 
smoking cessation to all admitted to hospital who require it and 
increasing social prescribing to benefit almost one million individuals by 
2023-2024.  

Secondary Prevention 
Preventing progression Individuals with pre-frailty have an 
increased risk of progression of frailty, hospitalisation, falls, morbidity 
and mortality compared to robust individuals.  Physical activity 
produced the largest reduction in frailty, even more effective when 
conducted in groups. Other interventions are health education, 
counselling, nutrition, home visits and hormone supplements. 
Lifestyle factors and nutritional interventions have been shown to 

be effective in delaying and reducing the progression of frailty. Improving energy intake, prevention of 
fractures, physical function and fitness and quality of life.  

Page 29

https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://www.derrytownship.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/Runners.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.derrytownship.org/derry-bike-and-pedestrian-alliance/people-jogging-in-park&tbnid=5AG0rIbNG4rM6M&vet=10CAMQxiAoAGoXChMIuIev5LG88QIVAAAAAB0AAAAAEAc..i&docid=t2zciGXwHRsSDM&w=2645&h=1133&itg=1&q=park%20with%20people&ved=0CAMQxiAoAGoXChMIuIev5LG88QIVAAAAAB0AAAAAEAc
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://www.blf.org.uk/sites/default/files/styles/default/public/Smoking%20image2.jpg?itok%3DtjdHXKNw&imgrefurl=https://www.blf.org.uk/your-stories/our-top-tips-to-stop-smoking&tbnid=kEcUqz8pj1I1lM&vet=12ahUKEwiW29zHsrzxAhUR8xoKHWxABIcQMyhGegQIARBj..i&docid=HHdzBXBJESwPFM&w=1200&h=900&q=nhs%20stop%20smoking%20inforgraphic&hl=en-GB&ved=2ahUKEwiW29zHsrzxAhUR8xoKHWxABIcQMyhGegQIARBj
https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=https://image.shutterstock.com/image-vector/running-people-flat-vector-illustration-260nw-1477477523.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.shutterstock.com/search/running%2Bman&tbnid=joovr0D51Tk15M&vet=12ahUKEwjig-L9s7zxAhUJ_xoKHZ0BBGAQMyg3egQIARBK..i&docid=VWGT4Jg-jmjR1M&w=495&h=280&q=man%20running%20image&hl=en-GB&ved=2ahUKEwjig-L9s7zxAhUJ_xoKHZ0BBGAQMyg3egQIARBK


Reducing care home admissions 
Are we going to need more or less care homes in the future, 
what models of care have been trialled to reduce avoidable 
care home admission, and how do we make people more 
independent? These are some of the questions which need 
answers. Ageing in a desirable location of care may 
contribute to the overall health and wellbeing in the late-life 
period. Models such as falls prevention programmes using 
physical activity, home share, live in care hub, ageing in place technology have been trialed but have been 
inconclusive.  

Tertiary prevention 
Optimisation of Multidisciplinary teams (MDT)  
There are over 100,000 older people with frailty in the ICS area. 
MDTs have been proven to be a powerful and effective 
intervention which bridge the gap between primary, secondary 
and community care.  They reduce frailty severity, offer timely 
referrals to secondary care or community services, addressing 
an unmet need.  They also help in early identification of frailty 
and dementia, rationalisation of medications and medical cost 
savings. 

Dementia services 
There are several government guidelines on dementia services to improve awareness, prevention, research, 
diagnosis and increasing range of services. How best to deal with the big expected rise in people with 
dementia? This section describes various interventions and innovative approaches to future dementia 
services, having a one stop diagnostic service, support from staff and relative, use of telehealth technology 
and wrap around service. The main goal of dementia care is for early diagnosis and delay of onset to ensure 
good quality of life. It is possible to reduce an individual’s risk of dementia; what is good for your heart is 
good for your brain. 

Workforce  
Do we need more of super specialists or just generalists with a special interest? Leadership roles for holistic 
care involve geriatricians, GPwSIs, AHPs, nurses, psychologists and pharmacists to make a smooth shift 
towards the community. 

Interface between community and secondary care  
There are some admission avoidance schemes which show promising evidence in 
managing acute admission and reducing hospital readmission. The Hospital at 
Home service has evidence that shows there could be a reduction in mortality 
and a reduction in living in institutions. The Scottish Government has produced 
guidance on Rapid Elderly Assessment Care Team (REACT) service which is a 
MDT within a home setting. Telemedicine is another innovation that looks 
promising, providing virtual and faster access to care and advice from specialist clinical teams.

Page 30



STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
The following section outlines our vision and strategic objectives for 
the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Healthy Ageing & Managing 
Frailty in Older Age Strategy.  The objectives have been grouped into 
broad themes that predominantly follow the approach in the King’s 
Fund document: “Making our health and care systems fit for an 
ageing population” 1 with the objectives under each theme developed 
through local needs assessment, further evidence review and 
consultation. 

Strategic Objectives by Theme 
Addressing Inequalities 
To undertake a place based needs and assets analysis to understand the inequalities in the older population and 
the contribution of different social determinants, such as social networks. 
Ageing Well 
To explore how a positive shift can be achieved in societal attitudes towards ageing and frailty amongst the 
general population and professionals. 
To develop a coherent multisector strategy to tackle social isolation and loneliness. 

To modify the ‘Make Every Contact Count’ programme, to suit the needs of frontline staff and of the frail 
population. 
To implement focused community development programmes for older people, investing in proactive prevention 
and fully utilising local community assets. 
To develop a large scale prevention programme offered to those who are pre-frail or may become frail over the 
next decade. 
Slowing the Progression of Frailty 
To broaden the ‘Staying Well’ and equivalent services to cover the whole of the Integrated Care System area for 
those with moderate frailty.  
To complement the ‘Staying Well’ service with a large scale offer to promote education, awareness and 
independence for mild to moderate frailty, including holistic self-assessment tools and digital-based 
interventions. 
Supporting Complex Co-Morbidities and Frailty 
To enhance the falls prevention programme, with an aim to reduce the rate of falls in the area. 

To develop a dementia strategy with partners, focusing on prevention and early diagnosis. 

To develop a consistent Multidisciplinary Team (MDT) offer for severe frailty and those with long term 
conditions in the community, based on need. 
To standardise and optimise case management by MDTs. Ensure effective identification and tracking of patients 
who will benefit most from this approach. 

Vision: “Making Our Health & Care Systems Fit for an Ageing Population” 

Aim: To Improve Health Life Expectancy & Reduce Health Inequalities for Older People 

(1) Reference: Oliver D, Foot C, Humphries R (2014) Making our health and care systems fit for an ageing population. The King’s Fund. 6 March 2014. Available from: 
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/making-our-health-and-care-systems-fit-ageing-population 

Page 31

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.vectorstock.com/royalty-free-vector/strategic-goals-concept-icon-vector-34681328&psig=AOvVaw1PWMGpQFWYWxzz7zhDm0j5&ust=1625080335585000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAcQjRxqFwoTCNif55jGvfECFQAAAAAdAAAAABAD


Effective Crisis Support 
To develop a comprehensive admission avoidance and crisis management offer with enhanced capacity and 
capability to meet the increase in our future demand. 
To ensure response times of urgent care services in the community and ambulances are within targets, 
maximising opportunities to treat patients outside of acute hospital settings. 
High Quality Person-Centered Acute Care 
To explore how length of stay could be reduced to avoid prolonged hospital admissions.  

To reduce acute bed occupancy of those aged more than 70 years. 

To prevent deconditioning in hospitals and care homes and community dwelling adults. 

To improve patient outcomes as measured by patient and staff experience measures and patient reported 
outcome measures. 
Good Discharge Planning and Post-Discharge Support 
To increase the number of patients being discharged directly to their usual place of residence. 

To prevent avoidable readmissions of patients. 

To utilise virtual clinics for post-discharge follow up. 

Effective Rehabilitation & Reablement 
To build upon opportunities for early rehabilitation intervention e.g. presentation to minor injuries units. 

To review rehabilitation services to facilitate timely discharge from hospitals. 

To ensure appropriate and timely provision of community services after discharge from hospital. 

Person-Centered Dignified Long Term Care 
To explore schemes which provide alternatives to care home placements, commissioning these services if 
required. 
To optimise care home MDTs and other community MDTs. 

Support, Control & Choice at End of Life 
To improve the early use of advance planning in order to support patients’ wishes towards the end of their life. 

To critically appraise our model of palliative and EOL care. 

Workforce Development 
To produce a workforce model which can meet the needs arising from future demographic changes and the 
associated increase in health and social care activity. 

“Making Our Health & Care Systems 
Fit for an Ageing Population” 

Page 32



FRAILTY TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 

Page 33



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Healthy Ageing & Managing Frailty in the Community & 
Primary Care 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Our reluctance to honestly examine the experience of ageing and dying has 
increased the harm we inflict on people and denied them the basic comforts they 
most need. Lacking a coherent view of how people might live successfully all the 

way to their very end we have allowed our fates to be controlled by the 
imperatives of medicine technology and strangers.” 

 

“Three plagues of nursing home existence: boredom, loneliness and helplessness.”  
 

Atul Gawande, Being Mortal: Medicine and what happens in the end. 
Page 34



 

APPENDICES 
 
APPENDIX 1 
 
Full Needs Assessment 
Current and projected health need in  
older people across Staffordshire &  
Stoke on Trent 
   
  

 
 
APPENDIX 2 
 
Summary of Needs Assessment 
References  

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

APPENDIX 3 
 

Supporting Evidence Reviews  
 

References 
 
 

 

  

Please click on the paperclip icon to see 
Appendix 1 attached. 
 
 

Please click on the paperclip icon to see 
Appendix 2 attached. 
 
 

Please click on the paperclip icon to see 
Appendix 3 attached. 
 
 

Page 35

https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/portrait-of-a-senior-woman-relaxing-in-the-garden-royalty-free-image/1249221627
https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/news-photo/in-this-photo-illustration-a-82-years-old-woman-is-playing-news-photo/1231805886
https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/senior-man-working-at-laptop-at-home-royalty-free-image/1219569802
https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/picturesque-coastal-walks-royalty-free-image/1295316498


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
 
 

Special thanks to Joanne Prokopowicz  
for document design 

 

Craig Porter 

Nicky Tongue 

Colin Anderson 

Dan Leese 

Alex Hemming 

Claire Charnley 

Lisa Basini 

Joanne Adams 

Dr Karnjit Johal 

Dr Ijeoma Ugwa 

Dr Eleanor Hendicott 

Dr Makpa Tanze 

Dr Augustine Isirima 

Dr Saleha Azhar 

Rose Craker 

Eliza Iqbal 

Page 36

https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/two-multi-ethnic-senior-men-exercsing-in-the-park-royalty-free-image/652842710
https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/group-of-multi-ethnic-seniors-running-a-race-royalty-free-image/652842830
https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/autumn-dog-walk-royalty-free-image/1148020444
https://www.gettyimages.co.uk/detail/photo/multi-ethnic-women-talking-at-health-club-royalty-free-image/74854968


“Pick me up Grandad” by Eliza 

Healthy Ageing & 
Managing Frailty 

In Older Age 
Strategy 

September 2021 Page 37





Air Aware Staffordshire Phase 2
March 2021 to March 2023

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 4



Project Elements

• Business 
Engagement

• School Engagement
• Electric Vehicles
• Communications
• Air Quality 

Monitoring Stations

P
age 40



Business – Firebreaks affect 
progression

Locations – Cannock, Burton, Leek

Aims & Objectives
• Reduce direct and indirect emissions at a 

workplace

• Conduct staff travel surveys with every 

business engaged

• Creation of three Business Travel Networks

• Achieve MODESHIFT STARS (workplace 

travel planning) accreditation

P
age 41



Business – Firebreaks affect 
progression

Outputs
• 3 Business Travel Networks launched 

with 32 attendees.

• 22 Business Engagements (virtual and in 

person meetings)

• 4 Proposals presented and awaiting 

feedback for 2022 Action plans

• 1 MODESHIFT Accreditation

• 5 Events

P
age 42



Electric Vehicle SCC 
Strategy 

Location of Fast EV Chargers across 
Staffordshire (Zap Map)

Working with AMEY Consultancy to develop a two-part 
strategy:

1. Public Facing EV Infrastructure

a) Key stake holder meetings held with 8 district 

councils

b) Workshop event scheduled for 8th February

2. Staffordshire County Council Internal transition 

and preparation

a) Met with internal departments

i. Fleet, Rural parks, library, Enterprise Centres

b) Created an EV Internal stake holder group

P
age 43



School Engagement

• Active engagement with 15 

schools

– 380 schools county wide …

• Increase in parking issues 

reported by schools

P
age 44



School Engagement
Staffordshire School mode of travel census 
responses Autumn 2021 – 78% school 
responses

• 41% of pupils walk to school compared to 

48% nationally (2016 National Travel 

Survey)

• Schools engaged with the Air Aware 

activities including lessons and campaigns 

have increased their active travel by 

5%.

P
age 45



Air quality - monitoring
District Officers Air Aware Officers Comments

Fixed Location (statutory 
DEFRA requirement)

Diffusion Tubes (District)

Diffusion Tubes (Air 
Aware)

Personal Air Quality 
Monitors

Plume Flow 2 – due to be 
delivered Feb ‘22

Temporary fixed Air 
Quality Monitors

Project plan for 
monitoring data (March 
‘22 – April ‘23)

P
age 46



Anti-Idling Campaign March 

March 14th – 27th

Targets: 
– 100 locations
– Website traffic
– Social Media 

Engagement

P
age 47



Thank you

@AirAwareStaffs

airaware@staffordshire.gov.uk

Staffordshire Air Aware

Contact or follow us for more information. 

Turning the vehicle off when 
stationary reduces your 

emissions 100%

P
age 48

https://www.facebook.com/AirAwareStaffs/
mailto:airaware@staffordshire.gov.uk
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Transport/Air-quality/Air-quality-overview.aspx


 

 

 

Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board – 24 February 
2022 
 

Staffordshire Better Care Fund (BCF) 
 

Recommendations 
 
The Board is asked to: 

 
a. Note that the 2021/22 Staffordshire BCF plan was submitted to NHSE&I 

in December 2021, and notification of approval was received in January 

2022.  
 

b. Note that the Staffordshire BCF Plan has subsequently been updated with 
the inclusion of an additional £19.25 million funding and associated 

expenditure. 

 
Background 
 

1. In June 2021 the Board noted that the 2021/22 national BCF Policy 
Framework had not yet been published, and the expectation that 

2021/22 BCF Plans extended existing schemes with appropriate 
adjustments for inflation. The Board noted the intention to transfer the 

Disabled Facilities Grant for 2021/22 to the District and Borough Councils 
as required by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government. 
 

2. In September 2021, the Board noted that the 2021/22 national BCF 

Policy Framework had been published with a requirement for submission 
of BCF Plans in September 2021, to include a narrative plan and an 

expenditure plan. The Board delegated approval of the 2021/22 
Staffordshire BCF Plan to the Health and Well-being Board Chairs. The 

Board noted that the Disabled Facilities Grant for 2021/22 had been 
transferred to the District and Borough Councils. 

 
3. BCF planning guidance allows for BCF Plans to be amended post 

approval, as long as: 

 
a. Changes are jointly agreed by the local authority and Clinical 

Commissioning Groups and continue to meet the conditions and 
requirements of the BCF. 

b. Changes are approved by the Health and Well-being Board and 
confirmed in the end-of-year reporting template with an accompanying 

rationale.  
c. Regional Better Care Fund Managers are informed about the changes. 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 

BCF 2021/22 update 
 

4. Following approval by the Health and Wellbeing Board chairs, in line with 
the authority delegated from the Board, the 2021/22 Staffordshire BCF 

Plan was submitted to NHSE&I in December 2021.  Notification was 
received in January 2022 that following the assurance process, the Plan 

had been approved. Expenditure is summarised in Table 1 and the Plan 
is attached for information.  

 
5. In addition to the funding agreed and submitted in the 2021/22 

Staffordshire BCF Plan an additional £19.25 million of non-recurrent 

funding has been identified that could be used to improve and sustain 
health and care services. An amendment to the Staffordshire BCF Plan 

to include this additional funding and associated expenditure, as 
summarised in Table 2. 

 
6. This amendment has been: 

 
a. Agreed by the County Council and Clinical Commissioning Groups. 
b. Approved by the Health and Well-being Board Chairs in line with the 

authority delegated from the Board to approve the 2021/22 
Staffordshire BCF Plan. 

c. Agreed by the West Midlands Better Care Fund manager. 
 

Table 1: BCF Funding 2021/22 - original Plan 
 
Source of funding £ 

DFG £10,005,365 

Minimum CCG Contribution £62,101,200 

iBCF £31,747,365 

Additional CCG Contribution £19,343,018 

Total £123,196,948 
 

Expenditure by scheme £ 

Home Care or Domiciliary Care £33,652,177 

Residential Placements £17,056,950 

High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfer of Care £12,930,837 

Community Based Schemes £11,237,398 

Housing Related Schemes £10,005,365 

Other £8,102,245 

Bed based intermediate Care Services £7,955,011 

Assistive Technologies and Equipment £5,808,342 

Prevention / Early Intervention £5,376,177 

Integrated Care Planning and Navigation £5,265,823 

Care Act Implementation Related Duties £2,195,654 

Personalised Care at Home £1,499,309 

Reablement in a person’s own home £1,443,779 

Carers Services £667,881 

Total £123,196,948 

Page 50



 

 

 

 
Table 2: BCF Funding 2021/22 - additional £19.25 million 

 
Expenditure by service £ 

Support to Care Homes £259,000 

Home First £6,006,000 

Section 117 placements £1,400,000 

Home Care £4,500,000 

Discharge to Assess Beds £710,000 

Learning Disability - Step up £1,875,000 

Children’s Services £1,500,000 

Healthcare Tasks £750,000 

Integrated community equipment  £750,000 

Crisis response and intervention - South East £800,000 

Crisis response and intervention - South West £700,000 

Total £19,250,000 

    

NEW 2021/22 BCF TOTAL £142,446,948 

 
7. The Council and Clinical Commissioning Groups are developing detailed 

plans for expenditure on each service, including the associated outcomes 
and governance arrangements. The BCF Section 75 Agreement will be 

updated to reflect this additional funding, and then approved and signed 
by the Council and Clinical Commissioning Groups.  

 
BCF Planning for 2022/23 
  

8. The Council and Clinical Commissioning Groups will commence planning 
for the 2022/23 Staffordshire BCF through the Joint Commissioning 

Board, whilst we await publication of the national Policy Framework and 
associated Planning Requirements.  

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 – Staffordshire BCF 2021-22 Planning Template v1.0 

Appendix 2 – Staffordshire County – BCF Narrative Plan 2020-21  
 

Contact Details 
 

Board Sponsor: Dr Richard Harling, Director for Health and Care 
 

Report Author:  Rosanne Cororan, Senior Commissioning Manager 
Telephone No: 07817 244653 

Email Address: Rosanne.cororan@staffordshire.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 51

mailto:Rosanne.cororan@staffordshire.gov.uk




Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
1. Guidance

Overview

Note on entering information into this template

Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and those that are pre-populated have a blue background, as below:
Data needs inputting in the cell
Pre-populated cells

Note on viewing the sheets optimally
For a more optimal view each of the sheets and in particular the drop down lists clearly on screen, please change the zoom level between 90% - 100%. Most 
drop downs are also available to view as lists within the relevant sheet or in the guidance sheet for readability if required.

The details of each sheet within the template are outlined below.
Checklist (click to go to Checklist, included in the Cover sheet)
1. This section helps identify the sheets that have not been completed. All fields that appear as incomplete should be completed before sending to the 
Better Care Fund Team.
2. The checker column, which can be found on the individual sheets, updates automatically as questions are completed. It will appear 'Red' and contain the 
word 'No' if the information has not been completed. Once completed the checker column will change to 'Green' and contain the word 'Yes'

3. The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all 'checker' values for the sheet are green containing the word 'Yes'.
4. Once the checker column contains all cells marked 'Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (below the title) will change to 'Template Complete'.
5. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist are green before submission.

2. Cover (click to go to sheet)
1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being completed, contacts and sign off.
2. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all the questions in each section of the template have been 
completed the cell will turn green. Only when all cells are green should the template be sent to the Better Care Fund Team:
england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
(please also copy in your respective Better Care Manager)

4. Income (click to go to sheet)
1. This sheet should be used to specify all funding contributions to the Health and Wellbeing Board's (HWB) Better Care Fund (BCF) plan and pooled budget 
for 2021-22. It will be pre-populated with the minimum CCG contributions to the BCF, Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) and improved Better Care Fund (iBCF). 
These cannot be edited.
2. Please select whether any additional contributions to the BCF pool are being made from local authorities or the CCGs and as applicable enter the amounts 
in the fields highlighted in ‘yellow’. These will appear as funding sources when planning expenditure. The fields for Additional contributions can be used to 
include any relevant carry-overs from the previous year.
3. Please use the comment boxes alongside to add any specific detail around this additional contribution including any relevant carry-overs assigned from 
previous years. All allocations are rounded to the nearest pound.
4. For any questions regarding the BCF funding allocations, please contact england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net

Page 53

mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net


5. Expenditure (click to go to sheet)
This sheet should be used to set out the schemes that constitute the BCF plan for the HWB including the planned expenditure and the attributes to describe 
the scheme. This information is then aggregated and used to analyse the BCF plans nationally and sets the basis for future reporting and to particularly 
demonstrate that National Conditions 2 and 3 are met.
The table is set out to capture a range of information about how schemes are being funded and the types of services they are providing. There may be 
scenarios when several lines need to be completed in order to fully describe a single scheme or where a scheme is funded by multiple funding streams (eg: 
iBCF and CCG minimum). In this case please use a consistent scheme ID for each line to ensure integrity of aggregating and analysing schemes.

On this sheet please enter the following information:
1. Scheme ID:
- This field only permits numbers. Please enter a number to represent the Scheme ID for the scheme being entered. Please enter the same Scheme ID in this 
column for any schemes that are described across multiple rows.
2. Scheme Name: 
- This is a free text field to aid identification during the planning process. Please use the scheme name consistently if the scheme is described across multiple 
lines in line with the scheme ID described above.
3. Brief Description of Scheme
- This is a free text field to include a brief headline description of the scheme being planned.
4. Scheme Type and Sub Type: 
- Please select the Scheme Type from the drop-down list that best represents the type of scheme being planned. A description of each scheme is available in 
tab 5b. 
- Where the Scheme Types has further options to choose from, the Sub Type column alongside will be editable and turn "yellow". Please select the Sub Type 
from the drop down list that best describes the scheme being planned.
- Please note that the drop down list has a scroll bar to scroll through the list and all the options may not appear in one view.
- If the scheme is not adequately described by the available options, please choose ‘Other’ and add a free field description for the scheme type in the column 
alongside. Please try to use pre-populated scheme types and sub types where possible, as this data is important to our understanding of how BCF funding is 
being used and levels of investment against different priorities.
- The template includes a field that will inform you when more than 5% of mandatory spend is classed as other. 
5. Area of Spend:
- Please select the area of spend from the drop-down list by considering the area of the health and social care system which is most supported by investing in 
the scheme. 
- Please note that where ‘Social Care’ is selected and the source of funding is “CCG minimum” then the planned spend would count towards National 
Condition 2.
- If the scheme is not adequately described by the available options, please choose ‘Other’ and add a free field description for the scheme type in the column 
alongside. 
- We encourage areas to try to use the standard scheme types where possible.
6. Commissioner:
- Identify the commissioning body for the scheme based on who is responsible for commissioning the scheme from the provider.
- Please note this field is utilised in the calculations for meeting National Condition 3.
- If the scheme is commissioned jointly, please select ‘Joint’. Please estimate the proportion of the scheme being commissioned by the local authority and 
CCG/NHS and enter the respective percentages on the two columns.
7. Provider:
- Please select the ‘Provider’ commissioned to provide the scheme from the drop-down list.
- If the scheme is being provided by multiple providers, please split the scheme across multiple lines.
8. Source of Funding:
- Based on the funding sources for the BCF pool for the HWB, please select the source of funding for the scheme from the drop down list. This includes 
additional, voluntarily pooled contributions from either the CCG or Local authority
- If the scheme is funding across multiple sources of funding, please split the scheme across multiple lines, reflecting the financial contribution from each.

9. Expenditure (£) 2021-22:
- Please enter the planned spend for the scheme (or the scheme line, if the scheme is expressed across multiple lines)
10. New/Existing Scheme
- Please indicate whether the planned scheme is a new scheme for this year or an existing scheme being carried forward.

This is the only detailed information on BCF schemes being collected centrally for 2021-22 and will inform the understanding of planned spend for the iBCF 
grant and spend from BCF sources on discharge.

6. Metrics (click to go to sheet)
This sheet should be used to set out the HWB's performance plans for each of the BCF metrics in 2021-22. The BCF requires trajectories and plans agreed for 
the fund's metrics. Systems should review current performance and set realistic, but stretching ambitions for the last two quarters of 2021-22.
The previous measure of Non Elective Admissions is being replaced with a measure of Unplanned Admissions for Chronic Ambulatory Care Sensitive 
Conditions.  Performance data on this indicator up to 2019-20, by local authority can be found at:
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-
people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions

A data pack showing breakdowns of data for new metrics (discharge and avoidable admissions) is available on the Better Care Exchange.

For each metric, systems should include a narrative that describes:
- a rationale for the ambition set, based on current and recent data, planned activity and expected demand
- how BCF funded schemes and integrated care will support performance against this metric, including any new or amended services.
1. Unplanned admissions for chronic ambulatory sensitive conditions:
- This section requires the  area to input a planned rate for these admissions, per hundred thousand people for the year. This is the current NHS Outcomes 
Framework indicator 2.3i.
- The numerator is calculated based on the expected number of unplanned admissions for ambulatory sensitive conditions during the year.
- The denominator is the local population based on Census mid year population estimates for the HWB.
- Technical definitions for the guidance can be found here:
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf

Page 54

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf
https://files.digital.nhs.uk/A0/76B7F6/NHSOF_Domain_2_S.pdf


2. Length of Stay.
- Areas should agree ambitions for minimising the proportion of patients in acute hospital who have been an inpatient for 14 days or more and the number 
that have been an inpatient for 21 days or more. This metric should be expressed as a percentage of overall patients.
- The  ambition should be set for the HWB area. The data for this metric is obtained from the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) database and is collected at 
hospital trust. A breakdown of data from SUS by local authority of residence has been made available on the Better Care Exchange to assist areas to set 
ambitions. Ambitions should be set as the average percentage of inpatient beds occupied by patients with a length of stay of 14 days and over and 21 days 
and over for Q3 2021-22 and for Q4 2021-22 for people resident in the HWB.

- Plans should be agreed between CCGs, Local Authorities and Hospital Trusts and areas should ensure that ambitions agreed for 21 days or more are 
consistent across Local Trusts and BCF plans.

- The narrative should set out the approach that has been taken to agreeing and aligning plans for this metric
3. Discharge to normal place of residence.
- Areas should agree ambitions for the percentage of people who are discharged to their normal place of residence following an inpatient stay.

- The  ambition should be set for the healthand wellbeing board area. The data for this metric is obtained from the Secondary Uses Service database and is 
collected at hospital trust. A breakdown of data from SUS by local authority of residence has been made available on the Better Care Exchange to assist areas 
to set ambitions. Ambitions should be set as the percentage of all discharges where the destination of discharge is the person's usual place of residence.

4. Residential Admissions (RES) planning: 
- This section requires inputting the information for the numerator of the measure.
- Please enter the planned number of council-supported older people (aged 65 and over) whose long-term support needs will be met by a change of setting 
to residential and nursing care during the year (excluding transfers between residential and nursing care) for the Residential Admissions numerator 
measure.
- The prepopulated denominator of the measure is the size of the older people population in the area (aged 65 and over) taken from Office for National 
Statistics (ONS) subnational population projections.
- The annual rate is then calculated and populated based on the entered information.
5. Reablement planning:
- This section requires inputting the information for the numerator and denominator of the measure.
- Please enter the planned denominator figure, which is the planned number of older people discharged from hospital to their own home for rehabilitation 
(or from hospital to a residential or nursing care home or extra care housing for rehabilitation, with a clear intention that they will move on/back to their 
own home).
- Please then enter the planned numerator figure, which is the planned number of older people discharged from hospital to their own home for 
rehabilitation (from within the denominator) that will still be at home 91 days after discharge.
- The annual proportion (%) Reablement measure will then be calculated and populated based on this information.

7. Planning Requirements (click to go to sheet)
This sheet requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the National Conditions and other Planning Requirements detailed in the BCF Policy 
Framework and the BCF Requirements document are met. Please refer to the BCF Policy Framework and BCF Planning Requirements documents for 2021-22 
for further details.
The sheet also sets out where evidence for each Key Line of Enquiry (KLOE) will be taken from.
The KLOEs underpinning the Planning Requirements are also provided for reference as they will be utilised to assure plans by the regional assurance panel.

1. For each Planning Requirement please select ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ to confirm whether the requirement is met for the BCF Plan.
2. Where the confirmation selected is ‘No’, please use the comments boxes to include the actions in place towards meeting the requirement and the target 
timeframes.

Page 55



Version 1.0

Please Note:

Please indicate who is signing off the plan for submission on behalf of the HWB (delegated authority is also accepted):

Thu 02/12/2021

Professional 
Title (where 
applicable) First-name: Surname: E-mail:

*Area Assurance Contact Details:
Cabinet 
Support 

Johnny Mcahon johnny.mcmahon@staffor
dshire.gov.uk  

Marcus Warnes Marcus.warnes@staffsstok
eccgs.nhs.uk

Gemma Smith gemma.smith@staffsstoke
ccgs.nhs.uk

John Henderson john.henderson@staffords
hire.gov.uk  

Dr Richard 
Harling MBE, 

Richard Harling richard.harling@staffordsh
ire.gov.uk  

Rosanne Cororan rosanne.cororan@stafford
shire.gov.uk

Rob Salmon rob.salmon@staffordshire.
gov.uk

Cabinet Support Member for Public Health and Integration, and jo   

Has this plan been signed off by the HWB at the time of submission?

If no, or if sign-off is under delegated authority, please indicate when the 
HWB is expected to sign off the plan:

Job Title:
Name: Johnny McMahon 

Please add further area contacts that 
you would wish to be included in 

official correspondence -->

*Only those identified will be addressed in official correspondence (such as approval letters). Please ensure all individuals are satisfied with the 
information entered above as this is exactly how they will appear in correspondence.

<< Please enter using the format, DD/MM/YYYY
Please note that plans cannot be formally approved and Section 75 agreements cannot be 
finalised until a plan, signed off by the HWB has been submitted.

Delegated authority pending full HWB meeting

Role:
Health and Wellbeing Board Chair

Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer (Lead)

Additional Clinical Commissioning Group(s) Accountable Officers

Local Authority Chief Executive

Local Authority Director of Adult Social Services (or equivalent)

Better Care Fund Lead Official

LA Section 151 Officer

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
2. Cover

Rosanne Cororan

rosanne.cororan@staffordshire.gov.uk

Staffordshire

- You are reminded that much of the data in this template, to which you have privileged access, is management information only and is not in the public domain. It is not to 
be shared more widely than is necessary to complete the return.
- Please prevent inappropriate use by treating this information as restricted, refrain from passing information on to others and use it only for the purposes for which it is 
provided. Any accidental or wrongful release should be reported immediately and may lead to an inquiry. Wrongful release includes indications of the content, including such 
descriptions as "favourable" or "unfavourable".
- Please note that national data for plans is intended for release in aggregate form once plans have been assured, agreed and baselined as per the due process outlined in the 
BCF Planning Requirements for 2021-22.
- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if this is breached.

07817 244 653

Health and Wellbeing Board:

Completed by:

E-mail:

Contact number:

Page 56



Complete:
2. Cover Yes
4. Income Yes
5a. Expenditure Yes
6. Metrics Yes
7. Planning Requirements Yes

^^ Link back to top

Template Completed

<< Link to the Guidance sheet

Question Completion - When all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green, please send the template to 
the Better Care Fund Team england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'. Please also 

copy in your Better Care Manager.

Page 57

mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net


Funding Sources Income Expenditure Difference
DFG £10,005,365 £10,005,365 £0
Minimum CCG Contribution £62,101,200 £62,101,200 £0
iBCF £31,747,365 £31,747,365 £0
Additional LA Contribution £0 £0 £0
Additional CCG Contribution £19,343,018 £19,343,018 £0

Total £123,196,948 £123,196,948 £0

NHS Commissioned Out of Hospital spend from the minimum CCG allocation

Minimum required spend £17,662,087

Planned spend £39,189,517

Adult Social Care services spend from the minimum CCG allocations

Minimum required spend £23,048,959

Planned spend £23,048,959

Scheme Types
Assistive Technologies and Equipment £5,808,342 (4.7%)
Care Act Implementation Related Duties £2,195,654 (1.8%)
Carers Services £667,881 (0.5%)
Community Based Schemes £11,237,398 (9.1%)
DFG Related Schemes £0 (0.0%)
Enablers for Integration £0 (0.0%)
High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfer of C £12,930,837 (10.5%)
Home Care or Domiciliary Care £33,652,177 (27.3%)
Housing Related Schemes £10,005,365 (8.1%)
Integrated Care Planning and Navigation £5,265,823 (4.3%)
Bed based intermediate Care Services £7,955,011 (6.5%)
Reablement in a persons own home £1,443,779 (1.2%)
Personalised Budgeting and Commissioning £0 (0.0%)
Personalised Care at Home £1,499,309 (1.2%)
Prevention / Early Intervention £5,376,177 (4.4%)
Residential Placements £17,056,950 (13.8%)
Other £8,102,245 (6.6%)

Total £123,196,948

20-21
Actual

21-22
Plan

938.5 844.7

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
3. Summary

Income & Expenditure

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Income >>

Expenditure >>

Metrics >>

Avoidable admissions

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive 
conditions
(NHS Outcome Framework indicator  2.3i)

Staffordshire

Page 58



21-22  Q3
Plan

21-22  Q4
Plan

LOS 14+ 2.9% 2.5%

LOS 21+ 2.8% 2.5%

0
21-22

Plan

0.0% 92.0%

20-21
Actual

21-22
Plan

Annual Rate 444 457

21-22
Plan

Annual (%) 85.1%

Theme Code Response

PR1 Yes

PR2 Yes

PR3 Yes

PR4 Yes

PR5 Yes

PR6 Yes

PR7 Yes

PR8 Yes

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were 
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into 
reablement / rehabilitation services

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 and 
over) met by admission to residential and nursing care 
homes, per 100,000 population

Discharge to normal place of residence

Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who are discharged from 
acute hospital to their normal place of residence

Length of Stay

Percentage of in patients, resident in the HWB, who 
have been an inpatient in an acute hospital for:
     i) 14 days or more
     ii) 21 days or more
As a percentage of all inpatients

Metrics

Planning Requirements >>

Reablement

Residential Admissions

NC2: Social Care Maintenance

NC3: NHS commissioned Out of Hospital Services

NC4: Plan for improving outcomes for people being 
discharged from hospital

NC1: Jointly agreed plan

Agreed expenditure plan for all elements of the BCF

Page 59



Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)
Gross 

Contribution
Staffordshire £10,005,365

1 Cannock Chase £1,051,224
2 East Staffordshire £1,160,392
3 Lichfield £1,109,194
4 Newcastle-under-Lyme £1,715,114
5 South Staffordshire £1,126,662
6 Stafford £1,522,033
7 Staffordshire Moorlands £1,773,856
8 Tamworth £546,890
9

10
11
12

Total Minimum LA Contribution (exc iBCF) £10,005,365

iBCF Contribution Contribution
Staffordshire £31,747,365

Total iBCF Contribution £31,747,365

Are any additional LA Contributions being made in 2021-22? If yes, 
please detail below

No

Local Authority Additional Contribution Contribution

Total Additional Local Authority Contribution £0

Staffordshire

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
4. Income

DFG breakerdown for two-tier areas only (where applicable)

Local Authority Contribution

Comments - Please use this box clarify any specific 
uses or sources of funding

Page 60



CCG Minimum Contribution Contribution
1 NHS Cannock Chase CCG £9,789,055
2 NHS East Staffordshire CCG £9,443,129
3 NHS North Staffordshire CCG £16,193,201
4 NHS South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula CCG £15,460,812
5 NHS Stafford and Surrounds CCG £10,546,317
6 NHS Stoke on Trent CCG £668,686
7

Total Minimum CCG Contribution £62,101,200

Are any additional CCG Contributions being made in 2021-22? If 
yes, please detail below

Yes

Additional CCG Contribution Contribution
NHS East Staffordshire CCG £2,568,798
NHS North Staffordshire CCG £4,865,489
NHS Stafford and Surrounds CCG £4,656,736
NHS South East Staffordshire and Seisdon Peninsula CCG £3,809,507
NHS Cannock Chase CCG £3,283,290
NHS Stoke on Trent CCG £159,198

Total Additional CCG Contribution £19,343,018
Total CCG Contribution £81,444,218

2021-22
Total BCF Pooled Budget £123,196,948

Funding Contributions Comments
Optional for any useful detail e.g. Carry over

Services above minimum contribution to include 
Services above minimum contribution to include 
Services above minimum contribution to include 

Comments - Please use this box clarify any specific 
uses or sources of funding
Services above minimum contribution to include 
Services above minimum contribution to include 
Services above minimum contribution to include 

Page 61



Running Balances Please note:
DFG
Minimum CCG Contribution
iBCF
Additional LA Contribution
Additional CCG Contribution

Total

Required Spend
This is in relation to National Conditions 2 and 3 only. It does NOT make up the total Minimum CCG Contribution (on row 31 above).

Checklist

Column complete:
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Scheme 
ID

Scheme Name Brief Description of Scheme Scheme Type Sub Types Please specify if 
'Scheme Type' is 
'Other'

Area of Spend Please specify if 'Area 
of Spend' is 'other'

Commissioner % NHS (if Joint 
Commissioner)

% LA (if Joint 
Commissioner)

Provider Source of 
Funding

Expenditure (£) New/ 
Existing 
Scheme

1 Community 
Equipment

S75 Agreement in place between 
SCC and CCG. ICES contract 

Assistive 
Technologies and 
Equipment

Community based 
equipment

Social Care Joint 0.0% 100.0% Private Sector Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£1,221,659 Existing

1 Community 
Equipment

S75 Agreement in place between 
SCC and CCG. 
ICES contract 

Assistive 
Technologies and 
Equipment

Community based 
equipment

Community 
Health

Joint 100.0% 0.0% Private Sector Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£4,586,683 Existing

2 Safeguarding Care Act Implentaiton related 
duties - Safeguarding

Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Other Safeguarding Social Care LA Local Authority Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£478,668 Existing

3 Independent Mental 
Health Advocacy

Independent Mental Health 
Advocacy

Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Independent 
Mental Health 
Advocacy

Mental Health 
Advocacy

Social Care LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£149,931 Existing

4 Other advocacy Advocacy support Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Other Advocacy Social Care LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£111,060 Existing

5 Assessment, Case 
Management and OT: 
integrated community 
t  

Assessment, Case Management 
and OT: integrated community 
teams 

Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Other Integrated 
case 
management 
t

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£567,516 Existing

6 Carers Carers Services Care Act 
Implementation 
Related Duties

Other Carers services Social Care LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£888,479 Existing

7 Carers Carer Advice and Support Carers Services Other Carers services Social Care LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£667,881 Existing

8 Older People's day 
services

Day Service Community Based 
Schemes

Low level support 
for simple hospital 
discharges 

Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £315,000 Existing

£0
£0

£62,101,200
£31,747,365

BalanceIncome Expenditure
£0
£0

£0

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
5. Expenditure

£0
£19,343,018

£123,196,948

£31,747,365

<< Link to summary sheet £10,005,365
£62,101,200

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

£0

£10,005,365

Staffordshire

NHS Commissioned Out of Hospital spend from the minimum CCG allocation

Adult Social Care services spend from the minimum CCG allocations

Scheme Types categorised as 'Other' currently account for 
approx. 8% of the planned expenditure from the Mandatory 
Minimum. In order to reduce reporting ambiguity, we encourage 
limiting this to 5% if possible.
While this may be difficult to avoid sometimes, we advise 
speaking to your respective Better Care Manager for further 
guidance.

Planned Expenditure

£17,662,087

£19,343,018

£123,196,948

£0

£0

£23,048,959

£39,189,517

£23,048,959

£0

Sheet complete

Minimum Required Spend Planned Spend Under Spend

P
age 62



9 Assessment, Case 
Management and OT: 
Occupational Therapy

Assessment, Case Management 
and OT: Occupational Therapy

Community Based 
Schemes

Multidisciplinary 
teams that are 
supporting 

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£1,554,839 Existing

10 Continence Services MPFT- Holistic assessment, onward 
referral as appropriate and 
provision of appropriate aids and 

Community Based 
Schemes

Other Continence 
Advice

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£961,760 Existing

11 Frailty/Complex 
Needs

MPFT-Geriatrician support, care 
home support and staying well 
pathway

Community Based 
Schemes

Other Geriatricna 
Support

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£7,368,885 Existing

12 Night Sitting/GP Plus Compton -Night sitting provision to 
provide carers/ family with respite 
when caring for palliative/ end of 

Community Based 
Schemes

Other Night Sitting Community 
Health

CCG Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£221,009 Existing

13 Occupational Therapy Employment of Occupational 
Therapists by MPFT

Community Based 
Schemes

Low level support 
for simple hospital 
discharges 

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£476,309 Existing

14 Falls Service MPFT-Falls community prevention 
and assessment service. 

Community Based 
Schemes

Low level support 
for simple hospital 
discharges 

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£289,632 Existing

15 Enablement Teams 
(LIS)

MPFT
SCC contract for reablement with 
Nexxus and MPFT

High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£5,868,835 Existing

16 Integrated prevention 
/ Discharge to assess

MPFT-SCC contract for reablement 
with Nexxus and MPFT

High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£695,528 Existing

17 Community 
wraparound services

Community wrap around service to 
support D2A

High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Social Care CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£137,277 Existing

18 Home First Service 
incorporating ICT, 
Reablement, Palliative 
C  d NANS

MPFT
Enablement now incorporated as 
part of the Home First Service 

High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£3,714,529 Existing

19 Track & Triage Track and Triage service High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Social Care CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Additional CCG 
Contribution

£21,239 New

20 Additional reablement 
/ hospital from home 
service

Homefirst reablement services High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £250,000 Existing

21 Brokerage seven day 
service

SCC brokerage service High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Flexible working 
patterns (including 
7 day working)

Social Care LA Local Authority iBCF £92,000 Existing

22 Home Care Home care - private sector Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Domiciliary care 
packages

Social Care LA Private Sector Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£5,929,489 Existing

23 Home Care Home care - private sector Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Domiciliary care 
packages

Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £23,202,688 Existing

24 Home Care Home care - private sector Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Domiciliary care 
packages

Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £320,000 Existing

25 Additional home care 
for winter period

Home care - private sector Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Domiciliary care to 
support hospital 
discharge 

Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £1,400,000 Existing

26 Disabled Facilities 
Grant

DFG - transfer to districts Housing Related 
Schemes

Other DFG Grant LA Private Sector DFG £10,005,365 Existing

27 Assessment, Case 
Management and OT: 
integrated community 
t  

Assessment, Case Management 
and OT: integrated community 
teams 

Integrated Care 
Planning and 
Navigation

Assessment 
teams/joint 
assessment

Social Care LA NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£4,777,797 Existing

28 Social Care Front 
Door: improve access 
to social care and 
di i  t

Social Care Front Door: improve 
access to social care and diversion 
rates

Integrated Care 
Planning and 
Navigation

Assessment 
teams/joint 
assessment

IAG Social Care LA Local Authority iBCF £335,713 Existing

P
age 63



29 Social Care Front 
Door: 

Social Care Front Door: improve 
access to social care and diversion 
rates

Integrated Care 
Planning and 
Navigation

Assessment 
teams/joint 
assessment

Workforce Social Care LA Local Authority iBCF £60,000 Existing

30 DST Support for 
Staffs residents in 
County Hospital

DST Support for Staffs residents in 
County Hospital

Integrated Care 
Planning and 
Navigation

Assessment 
teams/joint 
assessment

Workforce Continuing 
Care

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Additional CCG 
Contribution

£92,313 New

31 Intermediate Care 
Beds Barton

Shaw Healthcare
D2A commissioned beds to support 
step up and step down. Referrals 

Bed based 
intermediate Care 
Services

Step down 
(discharge to 
assess pathway-2)

Community 
Health

CCG Private Sector Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£1,108,378 Existing

32 Intermediate Care 
Beds (MPFT)

UHDB
Community Hospital D2A beds at 
Samual Johnson and Sir Robert 

Bed based 
intermediate Care 
Services

Step down 
(discharge to 
assess pathway-2)

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£1,978,300 Existing

33 Intermediate Care 
Beds (Private)

Private Sector (individual Care 
Homes) 
D2A beds commissioned within 

Bed based 
intermediate Care 
Services

Step down 
(discharge to 
assess pathway-2)

Community 
Health

CCG Private Sector Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£4,868,333 Existing

34 Home First/Discharge 
to Assess Additional 
funding passed to 
MPFT

MPFT-Enablement now 
incorporated as part of the Home 
First Service delivering 

Reablement in a 
persons own home

Reablement to 
support discharge -
step down 

Social Care CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Additional CCG 
Contribution

£1,443,779 New

35 Hospices St Giles, Katherine House and 
Compton 
Inpatient and community based 

Other Hospices - 
Palliative Care

Continuing 
Care

CCG Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£4,030,894 Existing

36 Dementia Dementia support Other Dementia Mental Health CCG NHS Mental 
Health Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£4,071,351 Existing

37 Health Care Tasks Comissioning of health care tasks 
from the home care market.

Personalised Care at 
Home

Other Home care 
health tasks

Social Care CCG Local Authority Additional CCG 
Contribution

£1,499,309 New

38 Improved Access to 
Psychological 
Therapies - MPFT / 
NSCHT

Improved Access to Psychological 
Therapies - MPFT / NSCHT

Prevention / Early 
Intervention

Social Prescribing Other - Mental 
health 
/wellbeing

Mental Health CCG NHS Mental 
Health Provider

Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£3,719,163 Existing

39 Improved Access to 
Psychological 
Therapies - Starfish

Improved Access to Psychological 
Therapies - Starfish

Prevention / Early 
Intervention

Social Prescribing Other - Mental 
health 
/wellbeing

Mental Health CCG Private Sector Minimum CCG 
Contribution

£1,657,014 Existing

40 Residential Care Private Sector residential care 
placements in care homes across 
the county

Residential 
Placements

Care home Demography 
pressures

Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £3,054,000 Existing

41 LD Placements LD residential placements Residential 
Placements

Learning disability Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £165,000 Existing

42 LD Placements: 
Additional Cost of 
Care

LD residential placements Residential 
Placements

Learning disability Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £215,000 Existing

43 Dementia Comisisoning of block booked 
dementia  residential placmeents

Residential 
Placements

Care home Dementia Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £338,000 Existing

44 Dementia Comisisoning of block booked EMI 
residential placmeents

Residential 
Placements

Care home EMI Respite Social Care LA Private Sector iBCF £200,000 Existing

45 Dementia Dementia Nursing home 
placements and suport

Residential 
Placements

Nursing home Continuing 
Healthcare for 
Dementia 

ti t

Continuing 
Care

CCG Private Sector Additional CCG 
Contribution

£11,334,950 Existing

46 Additional care home 
capacity, south of 
county

Care home capacity purchased via 
the DPS and through block booking 
capacity form the market

Residential 
Placements

Care home Social Care LA Local Authority iBCF £1,750,000 Existing

47 Admission avoidance / 
discharge to assess

Admission avoidance through 
voluntary sector

Community Based 
Schemes

Low level support 
for simple hospital 
discharges 

Admission 
avoidance 
through 

Community 
Health

LA Charity / 
Voluntary Sector

iBCF £49,964 Existing

48 Winter Surge NREC 
Funding

Winter Surge - Support of exisitng 
Provision in Domicilliary Care 
Market 

Home Care or 
Domiciliary Care

Domiciliary care 
workforce 
development

Social Care LA Local Authority Additional CCG 
Contribution

£2,800,000 New

18 Home First Service 
incorporating ICT, 
Reablement, Palliative 
C  d NANS

MPFT
Enablement now incorporated as 
part of the Home First Service 

High Impact Change 
Model for Managing 
Transfer of Care

Home 
First/Discharge to 
Assess - process 

Community 
Health

CCG NHS Community 
Provider

Additional CCG 
Contribution

£2,151,429 Existing

P
age 64



2021-22 Revised Scheme types

Number Scheme type/ services Sub type Description
1 Assistive Technologies and Equipment 1. Telecare

2. Wellness services
3. Digital participation services
4. Community based equipment
5. Other

Using technology in care processes to supportive self-management, 
maintenance of independence and more efficient and effective delivery of 
care. (eg. Telecare, Wellness services, Community based equipment, Digital 
participation services).

2 Care Act Implementation Related Duties 1. Carer advice and support
2. Independent Mental Health Advocacy
3. Other

Funding planned towards the implementation of Care Act related duties. The 
specific scheme sub types reflect specific duties that are funded via the CCG 
minimum contribution to the BCF.

3 Carers Services 1. Respite services
2. Other

Supporting people to sustain their role as carers and reduce the likelihood of 
crisis. 

This might include respite care/carers breaks, information, assessment, 
emotional and physical support, training, access to services to support 
wellbeing and improve independence.

4 Community Based Schemes 1. Integrated neighbourhood services
2. Multidisciplinary teams that are supporting independence, such as anticipatory care
3. Low level support for simple hospital discharges (Discharge to Assess pathway 0)
4. Other

Schemes that are based in the community and constitute a range of cross 
sector practitioners delivering collaborative services in the community 
typically at a neighbourhood/PCN level (eg: Integrated Neighbourhood 
Teams)

Reablement services shoukld be recorded under the specific scheme type 
'Reablement in a person's own home'

5 DFG Related Schemes 1. Adaptations, including statutory DFG grants
2. Discretionary use of DFG - including small adaptations
3. Handyperson services
4. Other

The DFG is a means-tested capital grant to help meet the costs of adapting a 
property; supporting people to stay independent in their own homes.

The grant can also be used to fund discretionary, capital spend to support 
people to remain independent in their own homes under a Regulatory 
Reform Order, if a published policy on doing so is in place. Schemes using this 
flexibility can be recorded under 'discretionary use of DFG' or 'handyperson 
services' as appropriate

6 Enablers for Integration 1. Data Integration
2. System IT Interoperability
3. Programme management
4. Research and evaluation
5. Workforce development
6. Community asset mapping
7. New governance arrangements
8. Voluntary Sector Business Development
9. Employment services
10. Joint commissioning infrastructure
11. Integrated models of provision
12. Other

Schemes that build and develop the enabling foundations of health, social 
care and housing integration, encompassing a wide range of potential areas 
including technology, workforce, market development (Voluntary Sector 
Business Development: Funding the business development and preparedness 
of local voluntary sector into provider Alliances/ Collaboratives) and 
programme management related schemes.

Joint commissioning infrastructure includes any personnel or teams that 
enable joint commissioning. Schemes could be focused on Data Integration, 
System IT Interoperability, Programme management, Research and 
evaluation, Supporting the Care Market, Workforce development, 
Community asset mapping, New governance arrangements, Voluntary Sector 
Development, Employment services, Joint commissioning infrastructure 
amongst others.

P
age 65



7 High Impact Change Model for Managing Transfer of Care 1. Early Discharge Planning
2. Monitoring and responding to system demand and capacity
3. Multi-Disciplinary/Multi-Agency Discharge Teams supporting discharge
4. Home First/Discharge to Assess - process support/core costs
5. Flexible working patterns (including 7 day working)
6. Trusted Assessment
7. Engagement and Choice
8. Improved discharge to Care Homes
9. Housing and related services
10. Red Bag scheme
11. Other

The eight changes or approaches identified as having a high impact on 
supporting timely and effective discharge through joint working across the 
social and health system. The Hospital to Home Transfer Protocol or the 'Red 
Bag' scheme, while not in the HICM, is included in this section.

8 Home Care or Domiciliary Care 1. Domiciliary care packages
2. Domiciliary care to support hospital discharge (Discharge to Assess pathway 1)
3. Domiciliary care workforce development
4. Other

A range of services that aim to help people live in their own homes through 
the provision of domiciliary care including personal care, domestic tasks, 
shopping, home maintenance and social activities. Home care can link with 
other services in the community, such as supported housing, community 
health services and voluntary sector services.

9 Housing Related Schemes This covers expenditure on housing and housing-related services other than 
adaptations; eg: supported housing units.

10 Integrated Care Planning and Navigation 1. Care navigation and planning
2. Assessment teams/joint assessment
3. Support for implementation of anticipatory care
4. Other

Care navigation services help people find their way to appropriate services 
and support and consequently support self-management. Also, the assistance 
offered to people in navigating through the complex health and social care 
systems (across primary care, community and voluntary services and social 
care) to overcome barriers in accessing the most appropriate care and 
support. Multi-agency teams typically provide these services which can be 
online or face to face care navigators for frail elderly, or dementia navigators 
etc. This includes approaches such as Anticipatory Care, which aims to 
provide holistic, co-ordinated care for complex individuals.

Integrated care planning constitutes a co-ordinated, person centred and 
proactive case management approach to conduct joint assessments of care 
needs and develop integrated care plans typically carried out by professionals 
as part of a multi-disciplinary, multi-agency teams.

Note: For Multi-Disciplinary Discharge Teams related specifically to discharge, 
please select HICM as scheme type and the relevant sub-type. Where the 
planned unit of care delivery and funding is in the form of Integrated care 
packages and needs to be expressed in such a manner, please select the 
appropriate sub-type alongside.

11 Bed based intermediate Care Services 1. Step down (discharge to assess pathway-2)
2. Step up
3. Rapid/Crisis Response
4. Other

Short-term intervention to preserve the independence of people who might 
otherwise face unnecessarily prolonged hospital stays or avoidable admission 
to hospital or residential care. The care is person-centred and often delivered 
by a combination of professional groups. Four service models of intermediate 
care are: bed-based intermediate care, crisis or rapid response (including 
falls), home-based intermediate care, and reablement or rehabilitation. 
Home-based intermediate care is covered in Scheme-A and the other three 
models are available on the sub-types.

P
age 66



12 Reablement in a persons own home 1. Preventing admissions to acute setting
2. Reablement to support discharge -step down (Discharge to Assess pathway 1)
3. Rapid/Crisis Response - step up (2 hr response)
4. Reablement service accepting community and discharge referrals
5. Other

Provides support in your own home to improve your confidence and ability to 
live as independently as possible

13 Personalised Budgeting and Commissioning Various person centred approaches to commissioning and budgeting, 
including direct payments.

14 Personalised Care at Home 1. Mental health /wellbeing
2. Physical health/wellbeing
3. Other

Schemes specifically designed to ensure that a person can continue to live at 
home, through the provision of health related support at home often 
complemented with support for home care needs or mental health needs. 
This could include promoting self-management/expert patient, establishment 
of ‘home ward’ for intensive period or to deliver support over the longer term 
to maintain independence or offer end of life care for people. Intermediate 
care services provide shorter term support and care interventions as opposed 
to the ongoing support provided in this scheme type.

15 Prevention / Early Intervention 1. Social Prescribing
2. Risk Stratification
3. Choice Policy
4. Other

Services or schemes where the population or identified high-risk groups are 
empowered and activated to live well in the holistic sense thereby helping 
prevent people from entering the care system in the first place. These are 
essentially upstream prevention initiatives to promote independence and 
well being.

16 Residential Placements 1. Supported living
2. Supported accommodation
3. Learning disability
4. Extra care
5. Care home
6. Nursing home
7. Discharge from hospital (with reablement) to long term residential care (Discharge to Assess Pathway 3)
8. Other

Residential placements provide accommodation for people with learning or 
physical disabilities, mental health difficulties or with sight or hearing loss, 
who need more intensive or specialised support than can be provided at 
home.

17 Other Where the scheme is not adequately represented by the above scheme 
types, please outline the objectives and services planned for the scheme in a 
short description in the comments column.

P
age 67



20-21
Actual

21-22
Plan

938.5 844.7

Please set out the overall plan in the HWB area for reducing 
rates of unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory 
sensitive conditions, including any assessment of how the 
schemes and enabling activity for Health and Social Care 
Integration are expected to impact on the metric.

21-22  Q3
Plan

21-22  Q4
Plan

2.9% 2.5%

2.8% 2.5%

21-22
Plan

92.0%

8.4 Residential Admissions

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Staffordshire

8.1 Avoidable admissions

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory 
care sensitive conditions
(NHS Outcome Framework indicator  2.3i)

19-20
Actual

Available from NHS Digital 
(link below) at local 

authority level.

Please use as guideline 
only

>> link to NHS Digital webpage

Overview Narrative

Comments

Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who are discharged from acute hospital to 
their normal place of residence

(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange)

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
6. Metrics

8.3 Discharge to normal place of residence

Proportion of 
inpatients resident for 
14 days or more

Proportion of 
inpatients resident for 
21 days or more

Percentage of in patients, resident in the HWB, who 
have been an inpatient in an acute hospital for:
     i) 14 days or more
     ii) 21 days or more
As a percentage of all inpatients

(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange)

Please set out the overall plan in the HWB area for reducing 
the percentage of hospital inpatients with a  long length of 
stay (14 days or over and 21 days and over) including a 
rationale for the ambitions that sets out how these have 
been reached in partnership with local hospital trusts, and 
an assessment of how the schemes and enabling activity in 
the BCF are expected to impact on the metric. See the main 
planning requirements document for more information.

The Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care 
Pathway Blueprint, October 2020 sets a vision that as an 
Integrated Care System (ICS) "we understand that people 
want to spend their lives at home. We want to maximise 
their independence and preserve their quality of life for as 
long as possible". We plan to do this by avoiding hospital 

8.2 Length of Stay

Comments
Annex A of the Hospital Discharge and Community 
Support: Policy and Operating Model, August 2021 
provides systems with a Criteria to Reside to support and 
maintain good decision making in acute settings. Acute 
Hospitals within the system operate daily board rounds in 
line with the Red to Green principles and also complete a 
weekly Length of Stay review of all 7+, 14+ and 21+ 
patients via a mulit-agency/ multi-disciplinary approach. 
The Urgent and Emergency Care System Tranformational 

Please set out the overall plan in the HWB area for 
improving the percentage of people who return to their 
normal place of residence on discharge from acute 
hospital, including a rationale for how the ambition was 
reached and an assessment of how the schemes and 
enabling activity in the BCF are expected to impact on the 
metric. See the main planning requirements document for 
more information. 

The Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care 
Pathway Blueprint, October 2020 sets a vision that as an 
Integrated Care System (ICS) "People stay at or return to 
their usual place of residence in the majority of most 
cases". The ICS system has an aspiration to meet the 
pathway 0, 1, 2  and 3 targets as set ou in the Hospital 

P
age 68

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-outcomes-framework/february-2021/domain-2-enhancing-quality-of-life-for-people-with-long-term-conditions-nof/2.3.i-unplanned-hospitalisation-for-chronic-ambulatory-care-sensitive-conditions


19-20
Plan

19-20
Actual

20-21
Actual

21-22
Plan

Annual Rate 572 597 444 457

Numerator 1,100 1,149 862 904

Denominator 192,148 192,379 194,191 197,626

19-20
Plan

19-20
Actual

21-22
Plan

Annual (%) 80.0% 83.9% 85.1%

Numerator 800 865 991

Denominator 1,000 1,031 1,164

Long-term support needs of older 
people (age 65 and over) met by 
admission to residential and nursing 
care homes, per 100,000 population

Comments

Please set out the overall plan in the HWB area for reducing 
rates of admission to residential and nursing homes for 
people over the age of 65, including any assessment of how 
the schemes and enabling activity for Health and Social 
Care Integration are expected to impact on the metric.

Long-term support needs of older people (age 65 and over) met by admission to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population (aged 65+) population projections are based on a calendar year using the 2018 
based Sub-National Population Projections for Local Authorities in England:
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based

Please note that due to the splitting of Northamptonshire, information from previous years will not reflect the present geographies. As such, all pre-populated figures above for Northamptonshire have been combined.

For North Northamptonshire HWB and West Northamptonshire HWB, please comment on individual HWBs rather than Northamptonshire as a whole.

Please set out the overall plan in the HWB area for 
increasing the proportion of older people who are still at 
home 91 days after discharge from hospital into 
reablement/rehabilitation, including any assessment of 
how the schemes and enabling activity for Health and 
Social Care Integration are expected to impact on the 
metric.

There has been an increase in the number and proportion 
of older people who are still at home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital into reablement/rehab services, 
increasing from 80% (800 people) in 2019-20 to 83.9% 
(865 people) in 2020-21.We are predicting this to be 457 
people in 2021/22.

Comments

8.5 Reablement

Proportion of older people (65 and 
over) who were still at home 91 
days after discharge from hospital 
into reablement / rehabilitation 
services

There has been a reduction in the number of people aged 
over 65 whose care needs have been met by admission 
into a residential or nursing home, reducing from 597 in 
2019-20 to 444 in 2020-21.We are predicting this to be 
457 people in 2021/22. 

P
age 69

https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based
https://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/subnationalpopulationprojectionsforengland2018based


Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Staffordshire

Theme Code

Planning Requirement Key considerations for meeting the planning requirement
These are the Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOEs) underpinning the Planning Requirements (PR)

Confirmed through Please confirm 
whether your 
BCF plan meets 
the Planning 
Requirement?

Please note any supporting 
documents referred to and 
relevant page numbers to 
assist the assurers

Where the Planning 
requirement is not met, 
please note the actions in 
place towards meeting the 
requirement

Where the Planning 
requirement is not met, 
please note the anticipated 
timeframe for meeting it

PR1 A jointly developed and agreed plan 
that all parties sign up to

Has a plan; jointly developed and agreed between CCG(s) and LA; been submitted?

Has the HWB approved the plan/delegated approval pending its next meeting?

Have local partners, including providers, VCS representatives and local authority service leads (including housing and DFG leads) been 
involved in the development of the plan?

Where the narrative section of the plan has been agreed across more than one HWB, have individual income, expenditure and metric 
sections of the plan been submitted for each HWB concerned?

Cover sheet 

Cover sheet 

Narrative plan

Validation of submitted plans

Yes

PR2 A clear narrative for the integration of 
health and social care

Is there a narrative plan for the HWB that describes the approach to delivering integrated health and social care that describes:
 • How the area will continue to implement a joined-up approach to integrated, person-centred services across health, care, housing and 
wider public services locally.

 • The approach to collaborative commissioning

 • The overarching approach to support people to remain independent at home, and how BCF funding will be used to support this.

 • How the plan will contribute to reducing health inequalities and inequalities for people with protected characteristics? This should include
   - How equality impacts of the local BCF plan have been considered,

   - Changes to local priorities related to health inequality and equality, including as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic, and how activities in 
the BCF plan will address these

Narrative plan assurance

Yes

PR3 A strategic, joined up plan for DFG 
spending

Is there confirmation that use of DFG has been agreed with housing authorities?

 • Does the narrative set out a strategic approach to using housing support, including use of DFG funding that supports independence at 
home?

 • In two tier areas, has:
   - Agreement been reached on the amount of DFG funding to be passed to district councils to cover statutory Disabled Facilities Grants? or
   - The funding been passed in its entirety to district councils?

Narrative plan

Confirmation sheet
Yes

NC2: Social Care 
Maintenance

PR4 A demonstration of how the area will 
maintain the level of spending on 
social care services from the CCG 
minimum contribution to the fund in 
line with the uplift in the overall 
contribution

Does the total spend from the CCG minimum contribution on social care match or exceed the minimum required contribution (auto-
validated on the planning template)?

Auto-validated on the planning template

Yes

NC3: NHS commissioned 
Out of Hospital Services

PR5 Has the area committed to spend at 
equal to or above the minimum 
allocation for NHS commissioned out 
of hospital services from the CCG 
minimum BCF contribution?

Does the total spend from the CCG minimum contribution on non-acute, NHS commissioned care exceed the minimum ringfence (auto-
validated on the planning template)?

Auto-validated on the planning template

Yes

NC4: Plan for improving 
outcomes for people 
being discharged from 
hospital 

PR6 Is there an agreed approach to support 
safe and timely discharge from 
hospital and continuing to embed a 
home first approach?

 • Does the BCF plan demonstrate an agreed approach to commissioning services to support discharge and home first including:
   - support for safe and timely discharge, and
   - implementation of home first?

 • Does the expenditure plan detail how expenditure from BCF funding sources supports this approach through the financial year?

 • Is there confirmation that plans for discharge have been developed and agreed with Hospital Trusts?

Narrative plan assurance

Expenditure tab

Narrative plan

Yes

NC1: Jointly agreed plan

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Template
7. Confirmation of Planning Requirements

P
age 70



Agreed expenditure plan 
for all elements of the 
BCF

PR7 Is there a confirmation that the 
components of the Better Care Fund 
pool that are earmarked for a purpose 
are being planned to be used for that 
purpose?

 • Do expenditure plans for each element of the BCF pool match the funding inputs? (auto-validated)

 • Is there confirmation that the use of grant funding is in line with the relevant grant conditions? (see paragraphs 32 – 43 of Planning 
Requirements) (tick-box)

 • Has funding for the following from the CCG contribution been identified for the area:
   - Implementation of Care Act duties?
   - Funding dedicated to carer-specific support?
   - Reablement?

Expenditure tab

Expenditure plans and confirmation sheet

Narrative plans and confirmation sheet Yes

Metrics

PR8 Does the plan set stretching metrics 
and are there clear and ambitious 
plans for delivering these?

 • Have stretching metrics been agreed locally for all BCF metrics?

 • Is there a clear narrative for each metric describing the approach locally to meeting the ambition set for that metric, including how BCF 
expenditure will support performance against each metric?

 • Are ambitions across hospital trusts and HWBs for reducing the proportion of inpatients that have been in hospital for 21 days aligned, 
and is this set out in the rationale?

 • Have hospital trusts and HWBs developed and agreed plans jointly for reducing the proportion of inpatients that have been in hospital for 
14 days or more and 21 days or more?

Metrics tab

Yes

P
age 71





 

1 
 

 

Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

Better Care Fund Narrative Plan 2021-22 

 

This plan complements the agreed spending plan and ambitions for BCF national 

metrics in Staffordshire’s BCF Planning Excel Template.  

 

1. Partners involved in preparing the plan 

The following partners have been involved in the drafting of this plan: 

 Staffordshire County Council (SCC)  

 Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 

 

In addition, the following partners have contributed towards development and/or 

delivery of individual schemes that form part of the plan: 

 Midlands Partnership Foundation NHS Trust (MPFT) 

 Acute Hospitals, including: 

o University Hospital of North Midlands NHS Trust (Royal Stoke and County 

Hospital Sites)  

o University Hospitals of Derby and Burton NHS Foundation Trust (Queens 

and Derby Royal Hospital Sites  

o Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust (New Cross Hospital 

o Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust (Walsall Manor Hospital) 

o The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust (Russell’s Hall Hospital 

o University Hospital of Birmingham NHS Foundation Trust (Good Hope 

Hospital) 

 District councils in relation to Disabled Facilities Grants 

 Voluntary sector providers 

 Residential Care Home Providers 

 Home Care Providers 

 Home-First Discharge-to-Assess Reablement Providers 

 

Stakeholders have been involved through a number of different ways, with most BCF 

projects having their own project groups and governance with various stakeholders 

involved. As an example, “Together We’re Better” is the Integrated Care System 

(ICES) for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. The formation of the ICS is a 

partnership of NHS and local government organisations, alongside independent and 

voluntary sector groups. The ICS has a Board in place whose role is to agree, 

oversee and lead on the delivering of the transformational health and care strategies 

for the population of our local community. The transformational plan has a number of 

programme workstreams as detailed below; the most pertinent to our BCF plan are 

Page 73



 

2 
 

Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC) and Enhanced Primary and Community Care 

(EPCC). 

 Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC)  

 Enhanced Primary and Community Care (EPCC). 

 Planned Care and Cancer; 

 Maternity, Children and Young People; 

 Prevention; 

 Mental Health; 

 Workforce; 

 Digital; 

 Transforming Services; 

 Organisational Development and Leadership; 

 Estates; 

 One Health and Care;  

 NHS 111 and; 

 Adult Community Mental Health Transformation  

 

2. Governance  

The governance for the BCF plan development and its implementation in 
Staffordshire is shown in the diagram below (figure 1). 
 

Overall strategic oversight of partnership working between Staffordshire CCGs and 
the Council is vested in the quarterly Health and Wellbeing Board, which make 

recommendations to the Partners. The Staffordshire CCGs and the Council have 
also agreed to consult with Stoke CCG as to any actions required to be taken by the 
Partners where this action will affect Stokes contribution or Services to be provided 

to cross border service users. 
 
Figure 1 – BCF Governance 

 

Page 74



 

3 
 

 

 

3. Summary of Key Priorities for 2021-22: 

Key priorities for 2021-22 have included the following: 

 Supporting Care Providers throughout the Covid Pandemic: 

o The most significant change and challenge over the last 18 months has 

been managing the impact of Covid. As has been the case across the 

country, the pandemic has had an enormous effect both on people with 

social care needs and on those working within care.  

o We have continued with a very similar approach to supporting the care 

market in 2021-22 as was the case during 2020-21. This includes: 

 Operating a Provider Incident Management support service 7 days 

a week 

 Local outbreak management 7 days a week 
 Funding and resources for infection prevention and control and 

workforce, including underwriting of excess costs for appropriately 

booked agency staff 

 Training and career development opportunities 

 Increased contact with providers and access to specialist advice 

and support where necessary 
 Targeted support to maximise vaccination uptake 
 The Enhanced Health in Care Homes programme 

Page 75



 

4 
 

 A range of wellbeing resources to support staff who are working in a 

highly stressful environment; 

 A joint health and social care Provider Improvement Response 

Team to support quality assurance and quality improvement in the 

care home market; and 

 Aupport to care homes through MPFT’s Care Home Intensive 

Support Team which can provide on-site support for the most 

challenged care homes, as well as links to other community support 

services. 

o There have also been substantial increases in expenditure, delays in 

delivering savings programmes, and reductions in income levels, though 

the emergency Covid-19 funding allocations have helped to ease some of 

the financial pressures. 

o Despite the vaccination programme and the release of ‘lockdown’ 

restrictions, there remains uncertainty about the long-term impact on the 

market. Providers are facing increased costs due to infection control 

measures, additional personal protective equipment (PPE) requirements, 

additional staffing costs and so on.  This has been exacerbated by 

reduced income levels due to lower activity; though the distribution of 

grants has helped in part to mitigate some of this.  There may be a 

changed pattern in demand for care home placements and home care, as 

well as further legislation or guidance that affect workforce and/or costs. 

o Our priority has been and continues to be to support our providers to 

mitigate the impact as much as possible. In order to mitigate future year 

risks, we endeavour to identify solutions collectively that meet residents 

assessed needs, deliver good outcomes and provide value for money. 

 

 Supporting hospital discharge: 

o SCC and the CCGs have commissioned a Homefirst D2A service across 
the county, in order to support safe timely discharges from hospital, 

improve outcomes for people leaving hospital, and support people to 
remain at home and maintain their independence. A key priority continues 

to be ensuring we have the right capacity in place, and that the services 
are improving outcomes for people who use them. 

o There has been a significant increase in the number of people discharged 

from hospital requiring our commissioned Homefirst D2A services; if the 
current trend continues, there will be over delivery of over 163,000 hours 

across the year. Due to this significant increase in the number of hours 
delivered, and the national discharge funding not being a permanent 
funding solution, the system is prioritising further work with each acute 

trust to ensure that Simple and Timely discharges are as high as possible, 
and to understand and model forward the flow of admissions, discharges, 

and requests for complex discharge support, and to ensure that people are 
being discharged into the most appropriate pathway. 

o SCC is planning to procure additional voluntary sector support for the 

winter, and will work with MPFT to identify any potential to divert discharge 

requirements from Home First to the voluntary sector where this is safe to 

do so. Both the Council and MPFT have also been seeking to identify 

Page 76



 

5 
 

people in Home First who could be supported by the voluntary sector 

instead. 

 

 Improvements to the commissioning of D2A beds in Care Homes 

o Historically, across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent the way in which D2A 

beds in Care Homes (including wrap around and clinical governance) was 

commissioned was fragmented with multiple patient handoffs between 

teams and services which led to increased length of stay within community 

bed based services and poor patient experience.  

o Lack of wrap around, clinical oversight and day to day management of 

these pathways specifically in the south of the county led to issues on a 

day to day operational basis, furthermore as commissioner, any issues 

that could not be managed within the operational teams were handed to 

the CCG to raise via the contract which often caused duplication and 

further delays.  

o To address these concerns/ issues and to improve performance and 

patient experience, a key priority for the system was to change how D2A 

beds in Care Homes are commissioned by transferring the procurement, 

sourcing and contracting of these beds to our community provider; MPFT, 

with effect from 01 October 2021. This has resulted in one single 

integrated bed hub across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent who are 

responsible to support all patients following an acute episode of physical 

or mental ill health to be discharged to the most appropriate setting based 

on assessed need. The single integrated bed hub includes a multi-

disciplinary complex assessment team compromising of nursing, social 

care, therapy, mental health, voluntary sector and medical input that wrap 

around the homes and be involved in the day to day care of the patient 

and support the care staff in the home to manage D2A patients with a daily 

physical presence over a 7 day week.  

 

 Home care provision: 

o SCC has a statutory duty to meet the needs of people who are assessed 

as eligible for care and support under the Care Act 2014. If an eligible 

person is identified as having care needs that require care and support at 

home, SCC will commission home care hours from the independent sector 

home care market, or from our commissioned Provider of Last Resort 

where there are issues in sourcing.  

o As is the case nationally, in addition to managing the impact of Covid, the 

market are experiencing difficulties with recruiting and retaining staff and 

have seen a reduction in the overall availability of the workforce available 

for care. As a result, since June 2021 there has been a sharp deterioration 

in the market’s ability to meet demand to time.   

o To enable more capacity in the Home Care market, maximise current 

capacity, and to help providers with issues around recruitment/retention 

we have developed the following workstreams: 

Page 77



 

6 
 

 Series of locality provider forums have been established to work 
collaboratively with providers to understand the root causes and 

options for solutions at a locality level. 
 Creative options for helping providers with transport, such as 

parking concessions or “carer permits” 
 Linking with DBS regarding staff resigning with no notice and 

employers not requesting references. Incorporated recruitment 

practice as part of our approach to quality. 
 Working collaboratively with providers to enable them to work 

together to look at capacity and see if they can make more efficient 
runs 

 Support to locality group processes, with the outcome of enhanced 

co-design and co-production with providers 
 Developing links and working with voluntary sector 

 Improved Trusted Assessor process in place, with care plans, social 
work teams, QA and safeguarding processes aligned 

 The use of starter bonuses to enable packages to be sourced  

 Working with providers on their contingency planning during school 
holidays 

 Trialling of outcome based commissioning 

 

 Care home provision: 

o If a person is identified as having assessed social care needs that can no 

longer be safely managed in their own home or another community 

setting, SCC will meet those needs by commissioning a care home 

placement. SCC also has a duty to shape the market to ensure that care 

and support is available when required. In addition to supporting providers 

to manage the impact of Covid, our overarching strategic priorities for care 

homes include: 

 Improving the quality of care in Staffordshire -  This is primarily 

measured by the proportion of care homes rated by the Care 

Quality Commission (CQC) as ‘outstanding’ or ‘good’ with a target 

to reach the England average within the next 3-5 years. It is 

supported by targeted quality assurance and quality improvement 

actions, including from the Provider Improvement Response Team 

(joint between the Council and the CCGs) 

 Ensuring timely access to care home placements when required - 

This is measured by the proportion of placements sourced to 

timescale with a target of 85% overall. 

 Ensuring affordability of care home placements, such that we are 

paying a fair price, achieving value for money, and that overall 

expenditure does not exceed the budget - This is measured by the 

average price of placements with a target that this increases only by 

the cost of inflation and that variation in price is reduced. A key 

change since the 2020/21 plan, has been that the Council are 

increasing the number of block booked beds purchased from the 

market, which ensures a level of financial stability for providers, an 

Page 78



 

7 
 

affordable rate for the council, and guaranteed capacity for 

commissioners. 

 

 Community Equipment 

o Contracting arrangements for the Integrated Community Equipment 

Service (ICEs) are due to change, following the novation from SCC to 

North Staffordshire CCG. The service will remain integrated via a 

partnership approach/ agreement including both Local Authorities and all 

six CCGs. The service was due to be re-tendered during 20/21 however 

this was delayed due to Covid-19 and has now commenced with the 

tender released to the market in October 2021.  

o An extensive engagement programme has taken place with stakeholders 

to revise the service specification and product catalogue to improve patient 

experience and outcomes. The following changes have been made:  

– Implementation of a 7 day delivery service, same day to support hospital 

discharge, admission avoidance and to meet the needs of patients who 

are end of life. This is in line with the National Discharge Policy published 

in August 21. 

o A number of items have been transferred from specials to standard stock 

following evidence that items are ordered multiple times and leads to 

delays in discharges. This is largely around bariatric equipment.  

Revised process for the ordering of specials equipment to mitigate the loss 

of clinical time across acute and community providers.  

it is expected that the tender will conclude in the Spring 2022 and the new 

contract enact following contract award and mobilisation.  

 

4. Overall approach to integration 

Along with other partners in the local area, SCC and the CCGs are collaborating to 
inform the development of the local ICS system architecture and place based 

commissioning. The focus for integration during 2021-22 has been to identify and 
progress service areas and pathways where both SCC and the CCGs, as well as 
other partners, believe that there are clear opportunities to develop and implement 

specific, concrete proposals to improve outcomes and/or cost effectiveness. The 
priorities within this approach to joint/collaborative commissioning linked to BCF 

funded services for 2021/22 are: 
o Urgent and emergency care pathways, including: 

 Discharge to assess pathways – timeliness and effectiveness 

 Improved patient experience and communications 
 Admission avoidance 

o Quality improvement in care homes, including 
 Improving the effectiveness of Enhanced Health in Care Homes; 
 Identification of and support to deteriorating patients 

 Technology in care homes;  
 Revised pathways to prevent unnecessary admissions to hospitals 

from care homes 
o Development of the social care workforce, including: 

Page 79



 

8 
 

 Partnership working through the ICS workforce hub 
 Additional funding to support career development for social care 

staff 
 Additional funding to support retention and recruitment in home 

care 
 Piloting of a reservists model for social care, and  

 Piloting of a potential hybrid NHS and social care staffing model to 

support a potential improved approach to a career pathway in home 

care 

o Development of a Learning Disability and Autism Board to improve the 

governance of and outcomes from programmes of work which include: 

 Annual Health Checks 

 Transforming Care Programme/subsequent actions for people with 

a Learning Disability or Autism in hospitals 

 LeDeR -  reviews deaths to see where we can find areas of 

learning, opportunities to improve, and examples of excellent 

practice. This information is then used to improve services for 

people living with a learning disability. 

An example of a successful BCF collaboration between SCC and the CCGs is the 

commissioning of health tasks: 

 SCC and the CCGs have a section 256 agreement in place to enable SCCs 

brokerage service to source health task calls and packages on behalf of the 

CCGs. This means that we can ensure that people will receive a seamless 

service to support both their health and social care needs in Staffordshire, and 

is an important step forward in our ambition to facilitate integrated care for 

Staffordshire citizens. This agreement has enabled Home Care Providers to 

provide health tasks as part of integrated social care and health calls which 

has avoided people receiving multiple calls from different providers, offered 

continuity of care, and an overall better experience for Service Users. This 

has also provided better value for money to commissioners and ease of 

procurement and contracting, by offering access to the Council's Home Care 

Framework Contract for the CCGs.  

 SCC, Stoke City Council and the CCG have also completed a joint audit of 

health care tasks procured by SCC on the CCGs behalf. A registered District 

nurse was employed in Staffordshire, and one in Stoke, to review the 

packages and ensure that identified assessed health needs are being met in 

the most effective way for the service user, and that as far as possible people 

are supported with Assistive technologies to enable them to remain as 

independent as possible. Whilst this process has identified some challenges  

it has also brought about many successes, including a joint approach to 

reviews, exploring more effective pharmacy prescribing, making the best use 

of already commissioned community health contracts such as District Nursing, 

ensuring Assistive Technology is offered to promote self care, and helping 

people to maintain greater resilience to self-manage their own care where 

possible. 

 

Page 80



 

9 
 

5. Supporting Discharge (national condition four) 

SCC and the CCGs are both partners, with others, in the local UEC Board and its 

workplan. There are five key elements of the overall workplan: three within acute 

hospitals; one for pre-hospital; and one for post-hospital (supporting discharge). The 

SROs for the supporting discharge elements of the workplan are Jennie Collier 

(Chief Operating Officer at MPFT) jointly with Andrew Jepps (Assistant Director at 

Staffordshire County Council) and Peter Tomlin (Assistant Director at Stoke-on-Trent 

City Council). 

This sets out our agreed approach to the delivery of Discharge to Assess (D2A) and 

HomeFirst services, as well as building on the High Impact Change model. The 

incorporation into the UEC system plan ensures the involvement of acute trusts in 

the county, both in developing the plans and agreeing them through the Board. The 

aims and objectives of the post-hospital discharge workstreams are: 

 To ensure timely discharge from hospital for patients with complex needs, to 

their own home or original place of residence wherever possible 

 To improve the effectiveness of bed based D2A, when this is required, with 

timely admission to Pathways 2 and 3, and a high proportion of patients in 

Pathway 2 able to return to their own home or original place of residence 

 To improve communication with patients and, where appropriate, their families 

through the hospital discharge pathway 

 To ensure equitable access to good discharge services for people with 

complex needs across Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire, regardless of which 

hospital they have used 

Key initiatives to achieve this in 2021/22 are: 

 The review and redesign of Pathway 2 and 3 D2A beds, with a revised model 

operating by winter 2021/22 (see below) 

 Improved and more consistent communications with patients and, where 

appropriate, their families throughout the pathway, capturing the experience of 

patients consistently and building on recommendations from a 2019/20 review 

of D2A by Healthwatch 

 Partners at each ICP level are also prioritising and implementing specific 

actions arising from a renewed self assessment against the High Impact 

Change model. 

In addition to the above, the UEC board are also prioritising initiatives to help prevent 

avoidable hospital admissions, given the current pressures on the system including 

increased demand on ambulance services which then impact on response times etc. 

The UEC Board are progressing actions to raise the profile of current services such 

as CRIS that can support this. Further communications have been sent out to 

providers to promote the use of these services in order to prevent avoidable hospital 

admissions. 

Commissioners are aware that Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust has been flagged by 

the NHS as one of the trusts of focus, and that based on data on emergency 

Page 81



 

10 
 

admissions between April and September this year over 10% of Walsall Hospitals 

emergency admissions were Staffordshire residents.  Commissioners and our 

partners are working with the Trust to understand the challenges and working to 

support them to make improvements. 

 

Commissioning of Homefirst – D2A 

 SCC and the CCGs have commissioned a Homefirst D2A service across the 

county, in order to support safe timely discharges from hospital, improve 

outcomes for people leaving hospital. and support people to remain at home and 

maintain their independence. The Council have a s75 Partnership Agreement 

with MPFT for the provision of Homefirst reablement in the south, and with 

Nexxus for reablement in the east of the county. The CCGs contract with MPFT 

for Homefirst/D2a reablement in the north. Both the CCG and SCC have agreed 

for the commissioned capacity across both contracts to be flexed across the 

county to suit demand. 

 There has been a significant increase in the demand for Home First hours this 
year, resulting in an over delivery across the county of over 81,000 so far. During 
this period there has also been an increase in bed-based demand in the D2A 

process. Work continues with each acute trust to ensure that Simple and Timely 
discharges are as high as possible, and to understand and model forward the 

flow of admissions, discharges, and requests for complex discharge support. 
SCC is planning to procure additional voluntary sector support for the winter, and 
will work with MPFT to identify any potential to divert discharge requirements 

from Home First to the voluntary sector where this is safe to do so. Both SCC  
and MPFT have also been seeking to identify people in Home First who could be 

supported by the voluntary sector instead. 

 

 As part of the contract management process, SCC and the CCGs monitor the 

services KPIs to ensure that the services are effective and improving outcomes 

for people who use them. Waiting times for reablement, from the time of referral 

to commencement of the reablement service remain low; at around half a day 

during this period. This means that patients are being discharged from hospital in 

a timely manner and getting support provided to them at home. The average 

length of time spent in in the service to re-able people to their optimum level is 

around 20 days.  The KPI for the % of people receiving reablement where the 

immediate outcome was no support is currently reported at around 88%.   

 

6. Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)  

As a two tier area, decisions around the use of the DFG funding, allocated through 

the BCF has the direct involvement of both tiers working jointly to support integration 

between health, care and housing. The total allocated DFG funding of £10,005,367 

has been passported to the eight District Councils in Staffordshire, as detailed in 

table 1 below: 

Table 1 – DFG allocation per district 

Page 82



 

11 
 

District Amount 

Cannock Chase £1,051,224 

East Staffordshire £1,160,392 

Lichfield £1,109,194 

Newcastle-under-Lyme £1,715,114 

South Staffordshire £1,126,662 

Stafford £1,522,033 

Staffordshire Moorlands £1,773,856 

Tamworth £546,890 

Total  £10,005,367 

 

Work is ongoing between the CCGs, district and borough councils and the local 

authority across Staffordshire, to consider how services, including DFG funded home 

adaptations, and use of technologies can be delivered to ensure a seamless and 

joined up approach to assessment of need and access to those services. This work 

is on-going to deliver benefits through: 

 Our commissioned community equipment service, on behalf of various health 

and care partners in Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent. This enables people to 

live in their own homes more easily by providing a range of equipment to 

assist in their daily lives. Equipment is loaned to people with an assessed 

health or social care need, and then collected and recycled when no longer 

needed. The equipment ranges from small aids to help with daily living, up to 

large items such as lifting hoists and specialist beds and may be provided to a 

range of eligible individuals aged 18+. 

 Support people to maintain their home environments to enable them to remain 

independent in their own homes  

 Improved customer experience (flexibility; ease and choice) and reduced end 

to end times  

 Reduction in costs – getting it right first time for the customer; avoiding 

rework; designing out the waste in system  

 Improved discharge pathways from hospital – more flexible use of DFG  

 Improved partnership and collaborative working 

 Implementation of appropriate measures to demonstrate impacts and benefits 

 Some districts have developed Housing Assistance policies and are looking at 

innovative ways to use DFG monies and benefit and enable people to remain 

at home.  The broad priorities of the policy are to improve outcomes for 

disabled and older people, reduce admissions or re-admissions through 

prevention, help people remain independent for as long as possible, reduce 

care costs where possible and help facilitate more efficient discharge from 

hospital. 

 

7. Equality and health inequalities. 

Page 83



 

12 
 

A key contribution made by BCF services in 2021/22 in reducing health inequalities 

has been in the delivery and refinement of a full Discharge to Assess model in the 

south and the east of the county. Prior to the pandemic, there was a much higher 

probability of discharge home (where complex discharge support was required) for 

residents living in the northern part of Staffordshire, and limited ability to be 

supported home with HomeFirst. Through the development of both increased 

HomeFirst services in MPFT and the continuation of Nexxus Care reablement 

services, this inequity has been addressed, and this inequality has been overcome, 

improving hospital discharge performance for residents in these parts of the county. 

During the pandemic, local partners have supported the rollout of the vaccination 

programme, including into adult social care settings and for adult social care groups. 

Clear data has enabled additional focus and support for those settings and groups 

who have been less likely to take up the vaccination offer, including specific clinically 

led support or encouragement from community leaders as appropriate to reduce 

differential levels of uptake and reduce inequalities. The use of data to drive specific 

additional interventions has created local learning which is being built on in other 

programmes (such as those reporting to the Learning Disability and Autism Board). 

 

Page 84



 

 
 

This document sets out the Forward Plan for the Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board.   
 

Health and Wellbeing Boards were established through the Health and Social Care Act 2012. They were set up to bring together key partners 
across the NHS, public health, adult social care and children’s services, including elected representatives and Local Healthwatch to lead the 
agenda for health and wellbeing within an area. The Board has a duty to assess the needs of the area through a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

and from that develop a clear strategy for addressing those needs – a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The Board met in shadow form before 
taking on its formal status from April 2013. 

 
The Forward Plan is a working document and if an issue of importance is identified at any point throughout the year that should be discussed as 
a priority this item will be included.  

 
Councillor Dr Johnny McMahon and Dr Alison Bradley - Co-Chairs 

 
If you would like to know more about our work programme, please get in touch with Jon Topham on 07794 997621 or 
jonathan.topham@staffordshire.gov.uk  

 
 Meeting Date: Venue: 

Public Board Meetings: 3 March 2022 

9 June 2022 
8 September 2022 
1 December 2022 

2 March 2023 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
             

2022/2023 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 6

mailto:jonathan.topham@staffordshire.gov.uk


Date of Meeting  Item Details Discussion / Outcome 

3 March 2022 

PUBLIC BOARD 
MEETING 

Healthier Ageing and Frailty 

Strategy 

Report Author – Prof Zafar 

Iqbal 

  

Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Board Strategy 

Report Author – Claire McIver 

Board Sponsor – Dr Richard 
Harling 

Sign-off of final version of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
Strategy 

 

Air Aware Project 

Report Author – Cath 
Stephenson 

Detailed update following the 

presentation at the December 2021 
Board meeting 

 

Staffordshire Better Care 

Fund 

Report Author – Rosanne 

Cororan 
Board Sponsor – Dr Richard 
Harling 

Sign-off of Better Care Fund return  

9 June 2022 

PUBLIC BOARD 
MEETING 

Infant Mortality 

Report Author – Natasha 
Moody 

Board Sponsor – Helen Riley 

  

Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment (PNA) 

Report Author – Matthew 
Bentley / Emma Sandbach 
Board Sponsor – Dr Richard 

Harling 

  

HealthWatch 

Report Author – Garry Jones 
Introduction of a new provider and 
their plans 

 

P
age 86



Date of Meeting  Item Details Discussion / Outcome 

8 September 

2022 
PUBLIC BOARD 

MEETING 

Pharmaceutical Needs 

Assessment (PNA) 

Report Author – Matthew 

Bentley / Emma Sandbach 
Board Sponsor – Dr Richard 
Harling 

Sign-off of Pharmaceutical Needs 

Assessment 

 

Air Aware Project  

Report Author – Cath 
Stephenson 

Annual Update  

1 December 

2022 
PUBLIC BOARD 

MEETING 

   

2 March 2023 
PUBLIC BOARD 

MEETING 

   

Future Items for 
Consideration 

Families Strategic 
Partnership Board Revised 
Strategy and Governance 

Report Author – Kate Sharratt 
Lead Board Member – Helen 

Riley 

Agreed at the January 2020 meeting  

Broadband & Digital 
Infrastructure Strategy 

Update 

Report Author – 
Lead Board Member – Richard 

Harling 

Agreed at the January 2020 meeting 
as part of discussions around 

progress on recommendations from 
the Director of Public Health Annual 
Report. 

 

P
age 87



Date of Meeting  Item Details Discussion / Outcome 

Director for Public Health 

Report 

Report Author –  

Lead Board Member –  

Annual report  

HWBB Delivery Plan 

Report Author – Jon Topham 
Lead Board Member – Richard 

Harling 

  

Mental Health Strategy 

Report Author – Richard 

Deacon / Josephine Bullock 
Lead Board Member – Richard 

Harling 

  

 

  

P
age 88



HWBB Statutory Responsibility Documents 

Document Background Timings 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

(PNA) 

The PNA looks at current provision of pharmaceutical 

services across a defined area, makes an 
assessment of whether this meets the current and 

future population needs for Staffordshire residents 
and identifies any potential gaps in current services 
or improvements that could be made. 

 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transferred 

responsibility for developing and updating of PNAs to 
HWBBs. 

The current PNA was published in March 2018. 

 
The PNA is reviewed every three years (the next 

assessment is due in 2021). 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

(JSNA) 

The HWBB arrange for: 

 an annual JSNA update report 

 2 deep dive reports per year 

 Quarterly exception reporting 

The Annual JSNA report comes to the March 

HWBB. 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS)  

The JHWS sets out how the needs identified in the 
JSNA will be prioritised and addressed. 

JHWS was adopted by the HWBB at their June 
2018. An action plan will be developed to set out 

how the Strategy will be delivered. 

CCG and Social Care Commissioning 
Plans  
 

The HWBB receive annually details of both CCG 
commissioning plans and Social Care to consider 
whether these have taken proper account of the 

JHWS.   
 

Annually, normally at the March meeting. 

 
 

P
age 89




	Agenda
	1c Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Healthy Ageing and Managing Frailty in Older Age Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Healthier Ageing and Frailty Strategy
	References
	References


	4 Air Aware Project
	Air Aware Staffordshire Phase 2�March 2021 to March 2023
	Project Elements
	Business – Firebreaks affect progression
	Business – Firebreaks affect progression
	Electric Vehicle SCC Strategy 
	School Engagement
	School Engagement
	Air quality - monitoring
	Anti-Idling Campaign March 
	Thank you

	5 Staffordshire Better Care Fund
	Appendix 1 - Staffordshire Better Care Fund
	1. Guidance
	2. Cover
	3. Summary
	4. Income
	5a. Expenditure
	5b. Scheme Types
	6. Metrics
	7. Planning Requirements

	Appendix 2 - Staffordshire Better Care Fund

	6 Forward Plan 2022-2023




Current and projected health need in older 
people across 


Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent


An iterative approach to needs assessment


Version 24a: 24 June 2021
**This work will continue to be updated and adapted according to wider system-


working and consultation feedback**







Contents


1. Summary


2. Introduction


3. Population estimates


4. Health and wellbeing


5. Long term conditions


6. Illness that limits daily life, frailty and multi-morbidity


7. Health and care usage


8. Palliative care trends


9. Frailty and the voluntary workforce


10. COVID-19 and ageing


11. Use of digital technology in older people


12. Next steps







Summary


• Between 2020 and 2030, there is projected to be
• a considerable increase in older people and in the ratio of 


older people (aged 65 years and older): younger people
• a considerable increase in long term conditions, frailty and 


multi-morbidity


• Potentially major implications for local health and care 
systems


• Much of what we know about health and wellbeing in 
older people in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, and 
future projections relate to before the pandemic


• There is evidence that the COVID-19 pandemic is 
widening inequalities and impacting on the wider 
determinants of health, lifestyles and health care access


COVID-19







Introduction


• A strategic needs assessment is being undertaken to understand current and 
future health and wellbeing need and demand in older people and to shape 
the Staffordshire Integrated Care System approach to promoting healthy 
ageing and managing frailty.


• Information provided in this summary has been collated through an iterative 
and collaborative process. 


• It draws upon information from routinely available public health tools and 
resources obtained through 
• literature searches 
• collation of past work from local and regional partners, wider professional networks 


• It will be built upon further over the coming months with the incorporation 
of additional data sources as they become available. 


• For further details, contact: zafar.iqbal@mpft.nhs.uk



mailto:zafar.iqbal@mpft.nhs.uk





Population estimates for 
the United Kingdom


Source: Navigating the uncharted waters: Population ageing in the UK. International Longevity Centre, 19 July 2019
https://ilcuk.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/ILC-Navigating-the-uncharted-waters-of-PA-UK-FINAL.pdf (Accessed 12 January 2020).



https://ilcuk.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/ILC-Navigating-the-uncharted-waters-of-PA-UK-FINAL.pdf





Current and projected population 
estimates for 


Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent







Population: Mid year Estimates and projections (ONS) for people aged 65 years 
and older (Source: The potential future population size by age group with percentage change from 2020 figures. Office for National Statistics -


Population projections for local authorities:Table 2) Available from: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2


Across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent STP, 2020-2030
• An estimated +3.7% increase across total population 
• An estimated c.41,500 more people aged 65 years and 


older
• +17.3% increase in this age group by 2030 


• An estimated c.10,900 more people aged 85 years and 
older
• +38% increase in this age group by 2030
• Greater projected increase than for England as a whole


Age 85+ 2020 2025 % change 2020-25 2030 %change 2020-30
Staffordshire 23,591 27,415 +16.2% 33,361 +41.4%
Stoke-on-Trent 4,982 5,308 +6.5% 6,065 +21.7%


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent 28,573 32,723 +14.5% 39,425 +38.0%


Age 65+ 2020 2025 % change 2020-25 2030 %change 2020-30
Staffordshire 194,849 209,810 +7.7% 229,623 +17.8%
Stoke-on-Trent 44,489 47,233 +6.2% 51,230 +15.2%


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent 239,338 257,043 +7.4% 280,853 +17.3%


Colours show change compared to England


Age 65+ 2020 2025
2025 +/- 


change
2030


2030 +/- 


change


Cannock Chase 19,643 21,344 +8.7% 23,866 +21.5%


East Staffordshire 23,530 25,995 +10.5% 29,152 +23.9%


Lichfield 25,304 26,713 +5.6% 28,645 +13.2%


Newcastle-under-Lyme 27,037 28,736 +6.3% 31,146 +15.2%


South Staffordshire 28,056 30,087 +7.2% 32,823 +17.0%


Stafford 31,308 34,111 +9.0% 37,739 +20.5%


Staffordshire Moorlands 24,981 26,512 +6.1% 28,646 +14.7%


Tamworth 14,991 16,312 +8.8% 17,606 +17.4%


Staffordshire 194,849 209,810 +7.7% 229,623 +17.8%


Stoke-on-Trent 44,489 47,233 +6.2% 51,230 +15.2%


Staffordshire & Stoke-


on-Trent
239,338 257,043 +7.4% 280,853 +17.3%


West Midlands 1,119,388 1,200,464 +7.2% 1,318,073 +17.7%


England 10,505,333 11,449,350 +9.0% 12,697,007 +20.9%


Age 85+ 2020 2025
2025 +/- 


change
2030


2030 +/- 


change


Cannock Chase 2,312 2,711 +17.3% 3,274 +41.6%


East Staffordshire 2,971 3,392 +14.2% 4,085 +37.5%


Lichfield 3,068 3,654 +19.1% 4,642 +51.3%


Newcastle-under-Lyme 3,579 4,014 +12.1% 4,711 +31.6%


South Staffordshire 3,492 4,115 +17.8% 4,934 +41.3%


Stafford 3,839 4,593 +19.6% 5,646 +47.1%


Staffordshire Moorlands 2,822 3,180 +12.7% 3,864 +36.9%


Tamworth 1,509 1,757 +16.5% 2,205 +46.2%


Staffordshire 23,591 27,415 +16.2% 33,361 +41.4%


Stoke-on-Trent 4,982 5,308 +6.5% 6,065 +21.7%


Staffordshire & Stoke-


on-Trent
28,573 32,723 +14.5% 39,425 +38.0%


West Midlands 148,587 165,795 +11.6% 192,796 +29.8%


England 1,416,951 1,573,260 +11.0% 1,809,990 +27.7%







PCN Registered Patients 65+ 1st July 2020
Staffordshire & S-o-T
Size of plot is total patients 65+,  Colour of plot is the % of patients 65+


Made with Microsoft Power BI







Health and wellbeing







Inequalities in healthy ageing


Centre for Ageing Better (2020) The State of Ageing in 2020. 19 November 2020. Available from: https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/news/state-ageing-coronavirus-set-people-mid-life-path-poverty-and-ill-health-inequalities-widening (Accessed 16 December 2020
Garrett J, Worrrall S & Sweeney S (2020) Reducing Health Inequalities for People Living with Frailty. A resource for commissioners, service providers and health, care and support staff. 6 October 2020. Available from: https://www.collectivevoice.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2020/10/HWA-frailty-Report-FINAL.pdf (Accessed 28 October 2020).
Marmot et al., 2020. Health Equity in England: The Marmot Review 10 Years On (The Marmot Review) Available at: https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on [Accessed 8 September 2020].
Kings Fund (2021) The health of people from ethnic minority groups in England. February 2021. Available from: https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/health-people-ethnic-minority-groups-england(Accessed 2 March 2021).
Marmot, M., Allen, J., Goldblatt, P., Herd, E., & Morrison, J. (2020, December). Build Back Fairer: The COVID-19 Marmot Review. Retrieved April 2021, from https://www.health.org.uk/publications/build-back-fairer-the-covid-19-marmot-review


• From 2010-2020: life expectancy stalling and gap widening
(Marmot et al., 2020).


• Only people in the least deprived 20-30% of areas will be 
eligible for a state pension before they can expect to 
develop a disability (Marmot et al., 2020).


• On average, healthy life expectancy at birth differs by 12 
years between the most and least deprived local authorities 
for men and women(Marmot et al., 2020).


• North/South divide: worse disability-free life expectancy in 
the north of England compared to the south (Centre for Ageing 
Better, 2020).


• Older persons aged 60 years and over from minority ethnic 
groups are more likely than white British people to report 
limiting health and poor self-rated health (even after 
accounting for social and economic disadvantage) (Marmot 
et al., 2020).


• Compared with the White British group, disability-free life 
expectancy is estimated to be higher among the Other 
White, Chinese and Black African groups, lower among 
Black Caribbean, Other Black, Indian, Other Asian and some 
Mixed groups, and lowest among the Pakistani and 
Bangladeshi groups) (King’s Fund 2021).


• Average life expectancy in gypsy and traveller populations 
10-25 years shorter than the general population (Garrett, 
Worrall & Sweeney, 2020). 


• Average life expectancy of someone that is homeless is 47 
years (Garrett, Worrall & Sweeney, 2020). 


• The COVID-19 has exacerbated population health 
inequalities  (Marmot 2020, December)



https://www.collectivevoice.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/HWA-frailty-Report-FINAL.pdf

https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on





Early consultation findings from ethnically diverse communities across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent (20 May 2021)


Method


• Virtual consultation with 
predominantly medical and former 
medical staff from ethnically diverse 
communities to
• Highlight early themes
• Develop the consultation process further


• Early themes
• Language barriers
• Cultural needs
• Dietary needs/preferences
• Social isolation
• Need for meeting places
• Need for informal care
• Financial needs
• Issues with awareness of services 


available


• What we need to do next
• Reach out to more groups


• Have small group discussions


• Have conversations with religious 
groups


• Need for face to face meetings


• A questionnaire is also planned







Wider determinants of health: Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent
Source: Public Health England Fingertips. Productive Healthy Ageing Profiles. Available from: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/healthy-
ageing/data#page/0 Accessed 29 April 2021). 







Deprivation by PCN: 
PCN Registered Patients living in the 20% most deprived areas in England 
(within PCN catchment only*)
Source: MPFT analysis


Map from: Together We’re Better. A case for change. Available from: 
https://www.twbstaffsandstoke.org.uk/publications/59-case-for-change/file


(Accessed 5 January 2020). 


South East ICP


MERCIAN PCN 18%


EAST STAFFORDSHIRE PCN 17%


LICHFIELD PCN 7%


BURNTWOOD PCN 3%


South West ICP


CANNOCK NORTH PCN 18%


STAFFORD NORTH PCN 9%


RUGELEY & GREAT HAYWOOD PCN 8%


STAFFORD SOUTH PCN 7%


CANNOCK VILLAGES PCN 5%


STAFFORD CENTRAL PCN 5%


SEISDON PCN 1%


STONE & ECCLESHALL PCN 0%


North ICP


HANLEY, BUCKNALL & BENTILEE PCN 75%


HIPC (HOLISTIC PATIENT CENTRED CARE) PCN 71%


SHELTON & HANLEY PCN 60%


ABOUT BETTER CARE (ABC) PCN 53%


SOUTH STOKE CENTRAL PCN 50%


MEIR PCN 39%


WHITFIELD PCN 28%


SOUTH STOKE WEST PCN 24%


NEWCASTLE NORTH PCN 14%


NEWCASTLE CENTRAL PCN 7%


NEWCASTLE SOUTH PCN 7%


LEEK & BIDDULPH PCN 6%


MOORLANDS & RURAL PCN 0%



https://www.twbstaffsandstoke.org.uk/publications/59-case-for-change/file





Life expectancy inequality comparing district level to England average (2015/17) 
(Source: https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/segment-tool/last updated 14 January 2020)


Life expectancy
(Source: Public Health England (2020) Productive Healthy Ageing Profiles. Available from: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/healthy-ageing/data#page/0/page-options/ovw-do-0[Accessed 23 
September 2020] )


Sex Age Time period England Staffordshire
Stoke-on-


Trent


Life expectancy at 65 Male 65 2016 - 18 18.9 18.8 17.1


Life expectancy at 65 Female 65 2016 - 18 21.2 21.2 19.3


Disability-free life expectancy at 
65


Male 65 2016 - 18 9.9 9.4 7.3


Disability-free life expectancy at 
65


Female 65 2016 - 18 9.8 9.6 7.7


Geography <1 1-19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80+
Cannock Chase 0.14 -0.07 0.02 -0.07 0.64 0.21 0.87


East Staffordshire 0.22 -0.07 -0.05 0.04 0.2 0.12 0.46


Lichfield 0.04 -0.04 -0.2 -0.35 -0.53 -0.07 -1.15


Newcastle-under-Lyme 0 -0.03 0.11 -0.01 0.17 0.1 0.34


South Staffordshire 0.16 -0.01 -0.05 -0.54 -0.5 0.32 -0.62


Stafford 0.11 0 0 -0.25 -0.58 -0.27 -0.99


Staffordshire Moorlands 0.15 0.02 0 -0.34 -0.28 0.22 -0.23


Stoke-on-Trent 0.5 -0.07 0.16 0.84 1.11 0.52 3.06


Tamworth 0.28 0.19 0.21 -0.2 -0.03 0.17 0.62


Contribution to the gap (years) in females Total Gap (Years)


Geography <1 1-19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80+
Cannock Chase 0.16 -0.06 0.11 0.21 0.34 0.13 0.89


East Staffordshire 0.2 0 0.16 0.24 0.03 0.28 0.91


Lichfield 0.12 0.09 -0.05 -0.03 -0.37 0.27 0.03


Newcastle-under-Lyme 0.18 0.02 0.08 -0.08 0.37 0.14 0.71


South Staffordshire -0.11 0.07 0.05 -0.21 -0.32 -0.13 -0.65


Stafford 0.21 -0.11 0.15 -0.14 -0.66 0.09 -0.46


Staffordshire Moorlands 0.06 -0.01 0.01 -0.2 -0.19 0.48 0.15


Stoke-on-Trent 0.12 0.02 0.35 0.28 0.92 0.66 2.35


Tamworth 0.02 0.11 0.13 -0.1 0.07 -0.13 0.1


Contribution to the gap (years) in males


Total gap


Total gap







Life expectancy inequality comparing the least and most deprived 
quintiles in each district (2015/17) 
(Source: https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/segment-tool/ last updated 14 January 2020)


Contribution to the gap (years)
Within area:  The gap between the most deprived quintile of each area and the least deprived quintile of the area.


Geography <1 1-19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80+
Cannock Chase 0.57 0 0.29 0.75 2.2 0.81 4.62


East Staffordshire 0.43 -0.19 0.73 1.42 2.38 0.01 4.78


Lichfield -0.16 -0.35 -0.07 0.94 2.62 0.82 3.8


Newcastle-under-Lyme 0.17 -0.28 0.28 1.1 3.68 2.38 7.33


South Staffordshire -0.35 0.18 0.75 0.11 0.8 1.5 2.99


Stafford 0.61 -0.17 0.38 1.54 2.16 1.16 5.68


Staffordshire Moorlands 0.8 0.19 0.65 0.49 2.71 -0.06 4.78


Stoke-on-Trent 0.15 0.37 0.75 0.8 2.23 0.46 4.76


Tamworth 1.02 -0.49 0.5 1.83 2.31 1.24 6.41


In Newcastle-under-Lyme, Females in the age group 60+ reduces the Life Expectancy gap from the Least Deprived to the Most Deprived by 6.06 years.


For Females all ages the LE Gap from the Least Deprived to the Most Deprived is 7.33 years


Females


Males
Contribution to the gap (years)


Within area:  The gap between the most deprived quintile of each area and the least deprived quintile of the area.


Geography <1 1-19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80+
Cannock Chase 0.8 0.19 0.38 1.76 2.72 0.92 6.77


East Staffordshire 0.54 -0.05 0.52 2.01 3.32 -1.11 5.23


Lichfield 0.43 0.18 0.16 2.1 2.88 1.55 7.3


Newcastle-under-Lyme -1.11 -0.03 0.17 2.69 3.75 1.49 6.96


South Staffordshire 0.37 -0.01 0.05 1.24 2.59 0.14 4.38


Stafford -0.08 0.06 0.13 1.84 2.45 0.57 4.97


Staffordshire Moorlands 0.64 0.36 0.65 1.63 2.63 0.45 6.36


Stoke-on-Trent 0.49 -0.27 0.39 2.29 2.75 0.1 5.75


Tamworth 0.39 0.92 0.67 1.46 3.94 -0.6 6.78


In Newcastle-under-Lyme, Males in the age group 60+ reduces the Life Expectancy gap from the Least Deprived to the Most Deprived by 5.24 years.


For Males all ages the LE Gap from the Least Deprived to the Most Deprived is 6.96 years







Healthy Life expectancy at 65. Projection estimates based on linear regression of all available preceding periods


Provided by MPFT analyst. A Hemming. 24 April 2021


Source:
Health state life expectancy, all 
ages, UK - Office for National 
Statistics (ons.gov.uk)


Projections assume 
that trends will 
continue according to 
the general trend 
between 2009-11 and 
2017-19.



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/datasets/healthstatelifeexpectancyallagesuk





Long-term adult social care users by deprivation, 
2015/16


Inequalities in long-term social care need across Staffordshire 
(Stoke-on-Trent not included in analysis)
(Source: Staffordshire County Council (2016). Evidence base to support the development of Healthy Communities in Staffordshire. Insight, Planning 
and Performance Team. September 2016.)


Potential hotspots for risk of adult social 
care need 2015/16 
Based on:
• Income Deprivation Affecting Older People 


Index (IDAOPI), 2015
• People aged 50 and over with no cars or 


vans in household, 2011
• Emergency (unplanned) admissions, 


2015/16
• Risk of loneliness index (Office for National 


Statistics modelled data)
• People aged 65 and over with a limiting 


long-term illness, 2011
• People who feel a bit unsafe or very unsafe 


walking alone after dark (Mosaic modelled 
data)


• People who visit their GP more than once a 
month (Mosaic modelled data)


• People who do not exercise (Mosaic 
modelled data)


Data compiled and analysed by Insight, Planning and Performance
Source: Experian Public © 2016 Experian. All rights reserved 







Wellbeing in older people in Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire


Public Health England (2020) Productive Healthy Ageing Profiles. Available from: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/healthy-ageing/data#page/0/page-options/ovw-do-0 [Accessed 23 September 2020] 
Red-significantly worse than national average or significantly below national target for vaccination. Orange-similar to national average or the national target for vaccination. Green – significantly better 
than the national average or than the national target for vaccination


Lifestyle indicators Age
Time 


period
England Staffordshire


Stoke-on-
Trent


Smoking Prevalence in adults (18+) 
- current smokers (APS)


18+ yrs 2019 13.9 13.9 18.2


Percentage of physically inactive 
adults


19+ yrs 2018/19 21.4 21.4 32.9


Percentage of adults (aged 18+) 
classified as overweight or obese


18+ yrs 2018/19 62.3 64.2 65.4


Admission episodes for alcohol-
related conditions (Narrow) - 40-64 
yrs


40-64 yrs 2018/19 928.5 1114.3 1669.8


Admission episodes for alcohol-
related conditions (Narrow) - Over 
65s


65+ yrs 2018/19 1049.2 1434.5 1696.9


Proportion of the population 
meeting the recommended '5-a-
day' on a 'usual day' (adults)


16+ yrs 2018/19 54.6 52.6 48.5


Vaccination programme 
indicators


Age
Time 


period
England Staffordshire


Stoke-on-
Trent


Population vaccination 
coverage - Flu (aged 65+)


65+ yrs 2019/20 72.4 71.7 69.9


Population vaccination 
coverage - PPV


65+ yrs 2018/19 69.2 67.7 62.8


Population vaccination 
coverage - Shingles 
vaccination coverage (70 
years old)


70 2017/18 44.4 45.1 47.2


Screening/early
intervention


Sex Age
Time 


period
England Staffordshire


Stoke-on-
Trent


Cumulative percentage of 
the eligible population 
aged 40-74 who received 
an NHS Health check


Persons
40-74 


yrs


2014/1
5 -


18/19
43.3 28.0 54.3


Abdominal Aortic 
Aneurysm Screening -
Coverage


Male 65
2018/1


9
81.3 83.8 75.8


Cancer screening coverage 
- breast cancer


Female
53-70 


yrs
2019 74.5 77.0 74.5


Cancer screening coverage 
- cervical cancer (aged 50 
to 64 years old)


Female
50-64 


yrs
2019 76.2 77.0 74.8


Cancer screening coverage 
- bowel cancer


Persons
60-74 


yrs
2019 60.1 62.4 55.4



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/healthy-ageing/data#page/0/page-options/ovw-do-0





Fire safety and prevention in older age: consultation work, 2011
(Source: CFOA publications (2011) Ageing Safely Protecting an Ageing Population
from the Risk of Fire in the Home. Available from: http://www.cfoa.org.uk/12282(Accessed 23 March 2021))


• “Almost twice as many people over the age of 50 now die in dwelling fires in the UK each year compared to those 
under 50.”


• Consultation highlighted that ““older people” don’t exist; they don’t recognise themselves as such. “Older 
people” is a reflection other people experience. Success in protecting an ageing population from the risks of fire in 
the home is to treat and think of every one as people.”


• Consultation themes included: stigma and discrimination, financial challenges, relationship challenges, 
participation in meaningful activity


“Olive’s story
Olive was fiercely independent, did not suffer fools gladly and 


was well-respected in her village. Olive lived in rented 
accommodation. Her landlord was concerned about Olive’s 


welfare but was repeatedly refused access to conduct  
maintenance work. A noticeable decline in


the property’s upkeep and Olive’s health led to a request for 
support from Social Care and Health.


Assessments revealed that Olive was receiving no outside 
support, had only cold running water and a single open fire as 
heating. Empty food containers and alcohol bottles littered the 
floor of the room that Olive lived in. Her clothing had cigarette 


burns and the settee Olive used was very close to the open 
fireplace. Eventually Olive was offered a room at a residential 
home just a few miles away. She accepted the offer and went 
about getting her personal possessions together to start life in 


her new home. Tragically, one week before her move Olive 
lost her life in a severe fire at her cottage some three months 


after being classed as homeless.”


Catharina’s Story
“Catharina is 83 and lives alone in Lichfield. Her sight has 


deteriorated leaving her almost blind. During a fire safety talk at 
her local community centre she met a Risk Reduction Officer from 


Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service. It was obvious that 
Catharina’s visual impairment left her particularly vulnerable. It 


was equally clear to Catharina that help and support was
available to her. Catharina agreed to a Home Fire Risk Check which 


revealed a host of issues. Catharina was using her hand to gauge 
the heat on her cooker, operating her microwave by guessing the 


timings and continuing to use a chip pan. All this whilst unwittingly 
living in a home with faulty electrics. Unlike Olive, Catharina’s story 
has a happy ending. The Fire and Rescue Service have worked to 


tackle the fire safety concerns and involved partner organisations 
to address the social care and health aspects of Catharina’s 


needs.
Catharina can now be seen enjoying visits to the shops with her 


support worker and is looking forward to the installation of a walk 
in shower and busy mastering her talking pen.”


Stories from Staffordshire







“Active”-150 minutes+ moderate activity a week/ 75 minutes+ of vigorous exercise
“Inactive”-<30 minutes moderate activity


Physical activity across England
(Source: Sport England. Active Lives Adult Survey November 2019/20 Report. Published April 2021. Available from: https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-
04/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20November%202019-20%20Report.pdf?OjWdwCLnI3dNgDwp3X4ukcODJIDVG7Kd (Accessed 5 May 2021).


Comparing November 2019/20 and 
November 2018/19, there was a 
• drop in the proportion of people aged 


55-74 years that were physically active 
by 1.3%


• drop people aged 75 years and over 
being physically active by 2.9%


• Whilst data for the most recent months 
suggests that 
• physical activity levels have 


improved back to pre-pandemic 
levels in those aged 55-74 years


• there has been a sustained 
reduction in physical activity in 
people aged 75 years and over. 







Physical Activity – Active. Projection estimates based on linear regression of all available preceding periods


Provided by MPFT analyst. A Hemming. 24 April 2021


Source:
Active Lives | Adult 
Data 
(sportengland.org)   


Projections assume 
that trends will 
continue according to 
the general trend 
between Nov 15-16 
and May 19-20.







Physical Activity – Inactive. Projection estimates based on linear regression of all available preceding periods


Provided by MPFT analyst. A Hemming. 24 April 2021


Source:
Active Lives | Adult 
Data 
(sportengland.org)


Projections assume 
that trends will 
continue according to 
the general trend 
between Nov 15-16 
and May 19-20.







Long term condition projections in people aged 65 years and older in 
England*


• POPPI v13.0 May 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2018.
Note these figures are based on a previous version of the POPPI database and should be updated in the next version of the needs assessment to figures in POPPI 
v15.0 17 November 2020. 


Low back pain 
and


age-related 
hearing loss 


are also leading causes 
of morbidity in people 


aged  70 and over 
(2017)


Source: www.parliament.uk(2020) 
Ageing: Science, Technology and 
Healthy Living. Available from: 
https://publications.parliament.uk/p
a/ld5801/ldselect/ldsctech/183/1830
5.htm#_idTextAnchor026 (Accessed 
23 March 2021)



http://www.poppi.org.uk/





Long term condition projections in people aged 65 years and older in Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent* 


* POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2020. See Appendix C for more details.


2020 2030


725 more people with bronchitis or emphysema
(8% increase by 2025, 18% increase by 2030)


14387 more people with cardiovascular disease
(9% increase by 2025, 19% increase by 2030)


4249 more people with dementia
(12% increase by 2025, 26% increase by 2030)


2167 hospital admissions due to fall
(13% increase by 2025, 29% increase by 2030)


5149 more people with diabetes
(7% increase by 2025, 17% increase by 2030)


12234 more people who are obese
(7% increase by 2025, 17% increase by 2030)


72545 84779


29813 34962


7428 9595


16178 20427


76072 90459


4050 4775


3607 more people with depression
(8% increase by 2025, 18% increase by 2030)


20489 24096



http://www.poppi.org.uk/





Estimated frailty projections in people aged 65 years and older across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent* 


Severe-3%


7180 


Moderate-12% 


28721


Mild-35%


83768


No frailty-50%


119669


2020 2025 2030


Crude estimates and projections based on 
*Prevalence of frailty across Staffordshire as outlined in Older peoples needs assessment-Numbers of over 65s with frailty in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent (from mid-2017 population 
estimates.  A. Cartwright & Z. Iqbal. 2018. in combination with the ONS population projections: The potential future population size by age group with percentage change from 2020 figures. . 
Office for National Statistics - Population projections for local authorities:Table 2) Available from: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2


Severe-3%


7711 


Moderate-12%


30845


Mild-35%


89965


No frailty-50%


128521


Severe-3%


8426


Moderate-12% 


33702


Mild-35%


98298


No frailty-50%


140426


Analysis assumes average prevalence of frailty across the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent area reflects estimates provided by 
the Staffordshire Older People’s needs assessment* and that the prevalence of frailty remains fixed over time



https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2





Illness that limits daily life, frailty and multi-morbidity in people aged 
65 years and older in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent


*POPPI v13.0 May 2020. www.poppi.org.uk Data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2018. Figures are taken from Office for National Statistics (ONS) 2011 
Census, Long term health problem or disability by health by sex by age, reference DC3302EW. Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of people with a limiting long-term illness 
in 2011 to projected population figures. Note these figures are based on a previous version of the POPPI database and should be updated in the next version of the needs assessment to figures 
in POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. 
** Office for National Statistics (2018) Living longer: how our population is changing and why it matters  
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/ageing/articles/livinglongerhowourpopulationischangingandwhyitmatters/2018-08-13#what-are-the-
implications-of-living-longer-for-services [Accessed 8 September 2020] and Kingston et al. (2018) Projections of multi-morbidity in the older population in England to 2035: estimates from the 
Population Ageing and Care Simulation (PACSim) model . Age and Ageing. 47 (3): 374-380. Available from: https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29370339/ [Accessed 8 September 2020].
***rounding error amendment on 13 October 2010 figure changed from 67 to 68%


2020 2030
14603 more people with a long term illness that limits them a lot*


12% increase by 2025, 23% increase by 2030 
(compared to 26% increase across England by 2030)


Multi-morbidity (65 yrs+) projections**


Health Survey for England estimates: 
36% of  65-69 year olds and 48% of 80-84 year olds had 2+ conditions


Kingston et al.,2018:
Prevalence with 2+ chronic conditions may increase from 54% (in 2015) to 68%*** (in 


2035) 


Prevalence with 4+ conditions may increase from 10% (in 2015) to 17% (in 2035)


63008 77611


Projected increases


National projections 
suggest that the 
proportion of older 
people with multi-
morbidity (medical 
complexity) will 
increase between 2015 
and 2035



http://www.poppi.org.uk/

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/ageing/articles/livinglongerhowourpopulationischangingandwhyitmatters/2018-08-13#what-are-the-implications-of-living-longer-for-services

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29370339/





RightCare summary of frailty estimates in registered population aged 
65 years and older by Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
(Source: NHS RightCare Intelligence CCG Focus Pack: Frailty, May 2019, based on data to end of period Q4 2017/18 data)


CCG % patients assessed 
(2017/18)


% moderate frailty
(2017/18)


% severe frailty
(2017/18)


Stoke-on-Trent 34% 13% 10%


Cannock Chase 8% 4% 3%


East Staffordshire 26% 3% 2%


North Staffordshire 50% 13% 5%


South East Staffordshire 
and Seisdon Peninsula


14% 4% 3%


Stafford and Surrounds 24% 10% 4%


Early signs that prevalence of frailty varies by area, as does % patient assessed
Updated figures, including coverage figures, are required 







Health and care usage







RightCare Intelligence CCG Frailty packs
Source: NHS RightCare Intelligence CCG Focus Pack: Frailty, May 2019, based on 2017/18 data


• Based on 2017/18 data
• Is the situation still the same?


• Compared to 10 most similar CCGs
• Lower than average rates of flu vaccination uptake in people aged 65 and older in all CCGs
• Lower IAPT referral rates in 5/6 CCGs
• Lower % patients consented to activate the enriched Summary Care Record (mod/severe frailty) 


in 5/6 CCGs
• Higher rates of admissions with length of stay for 21 days+ in people aged 75 years and older in 


5/6 CCGs
• High A and E attendance rates in care home residents aged 65 years and old in 5/6 CCGs
• Higher % severe frailty in 3/6 CCGs
• Higher rate of unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions in 


3/6 CCGs
• Higher rate of unplanned admissions in care home residents aged 65 years and older in 3/6 


CCGs







Health care spend in relation to age
(Source: NHS Five Year Forward View update)







Current estimates and future projections of primary care activity 


GP workload has been increasing:


• 3.77 million more GP appointments in 
in England in 2019 compared to 2018 
(BMA, 2020)


• Increased number of consultations per 
person per year, especially in adults 
over 65 years (CfWI, 2014)


• With age, consultation duration 
increases (Yadegarfar et al, 2018)


• Incurred workload for those more than 
75 years is 3x that of those aged 45-64 
(Select committee on public service and 
demographic change, 2013)


Figure from: Centre for Workforce Intelligence. (2014). In-depth review of the general practitioner workforce, final report. 


And demand is projected to continue to grow
• By 6% between 2020 and 2030, based on 


demographics alone (CfWI, 2014)


British Medical Association (BMA). (2020). Pressures in General Practice. BMA. https://www.bma.org.uk/advice-and-support/nhs-delivery-and-workforce/pressures/pressures-in-general-practice [Accessed 15 Jan 2021]
Centre for Workforce Intelligence. (2014). In-depth review of the general practitioner workforce, Final Report. Centre for Workforce Intelligence. https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/507493/CfWI_GP_in-
depth_review.pdf [Accessed 15 Jan 2021]
Select Committee on Public Service and Demographic Change. (2013). Ready for Ageing? Select Committee on Public Service and Demographic Change. https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201213/ldselect/ldpublic/140/14003.htm#a7 [Accessed 15 Jan 2021]
Yadegarfar, M.E., Jagger, C., Duncan, R., Fouweather, T., Hanratty, B., Parker, S., Robinson, L. (2018). Use of primary care and other healthcare services between age 85 and 90 years: longitudinal analysis of a single-year birth cohort, the Newcastle 85+ study. BMJ
Open. 8, article no: 019218. bmjopen.bmj.com/content/8/1/e019218 [Accessed 15 Jan 2021]







Acute activity projections for the Staffordshire STP*


*Together We’re Better. Case for Change. V0.51. 17 May 2019.


Predicted STP acute activity by 2027/28 in all ages*


• Combined acute urgent and emergency care attendance and non-elective and planned inpatient and day 
case activity is expected to increase







Projections in dementia-associated admissions 
(MPFT analysis. Source: PHE fingertips)







Potential increase in demand for ambulance services


Population Projected increase in demand for Ambulance
services


England1,2 4% yearly increase


Wales3.4 2-3% yearly increase


London5 8% (2018-2028)


UK 6,7,8,9 The demand for ambulance services in increasing 
in the UK


1. NHS Improvement (2017). Operational productivity and performance: NHS Ambulance Trusts https://improvement.nhs.uk/documents/3271/Operational_productivity_and_performance_NHS_Ambulance_Trusts_final.pdf
2. Nuffield Trust (2017). Nuffield Winter Insight: Briefing 3: The ambulance service https://www.nuffieldtrust.org.uk/files/2017-04/winter-pressures-ambulances-briefing-web-final.pdf
3. Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust. Delivering Excellence: Our vision for 2030 https://www.ambulance.wales.nhs.uk/Media/Documents/About%20Us/Delivering%20Excellence%20Our%20Vision%20for%202030.pdf
4. National Assembly for Wales Health, Social Care and Sport Committee (2020). General Scrutiny Session: Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust: 12 February 2020


https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s98589/Paper%201%20Welsh%20Ambulance%20Services%20NHS%20Trust.pdf
5. London Ambulance Service (2018). A world class ambulance service for a world class city. Strategy 2018/19 – 2022/23 https://www.londonambulance.nhs.uk/download/23779/
6. Durham, Mark; Faulkner, Mark; Deakin, Charles. Targeted response? An exploration of why ambulance services find government targets particularly challenging. British medical bulletin; Dec 2016; vol. 120 (no. 1); p. 35-42. Available


at British medical bulletin - from Oxford Journals – Medicine
7. Minhas, J S; Minhas, D; Coats, T; Banerjee, J; Roland, D Five-year forward view: lessons from emergency care at the extremes of age. Journal of the Royal Society of Medicine; Mar 2018; vol. 111 (no. 3); p. 92-97. Publication Type(s):


Journal Article Review
8. Evans, Rachel; McGovern, Ruth; Birch, Jennifer; Newbury-Birch, Dorothy. Which extended paramedic skills are making an impact in emergency care and can be related to the UK paramedic system? A systematic review of the


literature. Emergency medicine journal : EMJ; Jul 2014; vol. 31 (no. 7); p. 594-603
9. Girio-Fragkoulakis, Constantine; Gardner, Claire; Cross, Susan; Mason, Suzanne; Walters, Stephen. Assessing the impact older people from care homes place on the emergency services. European journal of emergency medicine :


official journal of the European Society for Emergency Medicine; Apr 2011; vol. 18 (no. 2); p. 81-85
10. Chalk ; Black, Sarah; Pitt, Martin. Which factors most influence demand for ambulances in South West England? Journal of Paramedic Practice; Jul 2016; vol. 8 (no. 7); p. 356-367


South West Ambulance Service 
NHS Foundation Trust systems 
dynamic model predicted that 
the prevalence of regular falls 


among older people and users of 
adult mental services most 


influences the level of demand 
for ambulances over 12 months10







Emergency falls admissions. Projection estimates based on linear regression of all available preceding periods


Provided by MPFT analyst. A Hemming. 24 April 2021. 24 April 2021


Projections assume 
that trends will 
continue according to 
the general trend 
between 2010/11 
and 2018/19.







Projections of increased activity in MPFT community services currently 
with  the highest volume or highest proportion of referrals in people 
aged 65 years and older, 2019/20-2030 
(Source: MPFT data warehouse)


2025 2030


Assuming all else stays the same ,the yearly total for 2019/20 has been multipled by the population increase in 65+ for 2025 and 2030


Service 2019/20 Total 65+ 2025 2030


District Nursing Service 35,702 39,058 42,842


Intermediate Care Service 20,579 22,513 24,695


Adult Community Physiotherapy Service 10,506 11,494 12,607


Adult Community Occupational Therapy Service 7,262 7,945 8,714


Continence Service 4,841 5,296 5,809


Integrated Physio Orthopaedic & Pain Service 5,237 5,729 6,284


Integrated MSK Service 4,922 5,385 5,906


Older Adult Mental Health 3,914 4,282 4,697


Community Podiatry Service 4,484 4,905 5,381


Adult Community Speech and Language Therapy Service 3,898 4,264 4,678


Across Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent, the % increase in 65+ population 


from 2019
9.4% 20.0%







Current estimates and future projections of wound care services across 
the United Kingdom


There has been an increasing demand in 
wound care services:


• NHS managed an estimated 2.2 million adults 
≥18 years of age with a wound in 2012/2013. 
This equated to 11,200 wounds in an average 
CCG/health board with a catchment 
population of 250,000 adults ≥18 years of age 
(Guest, et al., 2017)


• 89% of acute wounds, 58% of chronic wounds 
and 87% of unspecified wounds were a new 
wound in the study year. (Guest, et al., 2017)


• the annual prevalence of acute, chronic and 
unspecified wounds was found to be growing 
at the rate of 9%, 12% and 13%, respectively 
(Guest, et al., 2017)


• Healing rates have to be increased by at least 1% in 
order to slow down the rate of increase in the annual 
prevalence of wounds (Guest, et al., 2017).


Guest, J. F., Vowden, K. and Vowden, P. 2017. The health economic burden that acute and chronic wounds impose on an average clinical commissioning group/health board in the UK. J 
Wound Care [Online] 9 6 2017. https://www.magonlinelibrary.com/doi/epub/10.12968/jowc.2017.26.6.292.







Projections for social isolation, informal caring and care homes in 
England*


11% increase in people aged 65 years or older living alone by 2025, 24% 
increase by 2030


(increase from 3,396,493 in 2020 to 4,209,492 in 2030)


9% increase in people aged 65 and over providing unpaid care to a partner, 
family member or other person by 2025, 22% increase by 2030


(from 1,485,528 in 2020  to 1,805,493 in 2030)


15% more people aged 65 and over living  in a care home with or without 
nursing by 2025 and 32% increase by 2030


(from 329,719 in 2020  to 433,769 in 2030)


* POPPI v13.0 May 2020. www.poppi.org.uk Data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2018. Note these figures are based on a 
previous version of the POPPI database and should be updated in the next version of the needs assessment to figures in POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. 



http://www.poppi.org.uk/





Projections for social isolation, informal caring and care homes in 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent*


14700 more people aged 65 years or older living alone by 2030
10% increase by 2025, 19% increase by 2030


(increase from 76,861 in 2020 to 91,561 in 2030)


5763 more people aged 65 and over providing unpaid care to a partner, 
family member or other person


6% increase by 2025, 16% increase by 2030
(from 36,244 in 2020  to 42,007 by 2030)


2271 more people aged 65 and over living  in a care home with or without 
nursing


14% increase by 2025, 30% increase by 2030
(from 7644 in 2020  to 9915 by 2030)


* POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 
2020. For more details see Appendix C.



http://www.poppi.org.uk/





Social care usage
(Source: PHE Healthy Ageing Profiles)


National projections (Kingston et al., 2018)


Between 2015 and 2035
• The prevalence of and numbers of 


people with dependency will fall for 
young-old adults aged 65–74 years in 
England


• For people aged 85 years and older
• the number with low  


dependency (less than daily care) 
will increase by 148% 


• the number with high (24 hour 
care) dependency will increase by 
92% 


• prevalence will change minimally 
• Older people with medium or high 


dependency and dementia will be 
more likely to have at least two other 
conditions


Kingston, A. Comas-Herrera and C. Jagger, "Forecasting the care needs of the older population in England over the next 20 years: estimates from the Population Ageing and Care Simulation 
(PACSim) modelling study," The Lancet Public Health, vol. 3, no. 9, pp. e447-e455, 2018. 







End of life care in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent (QOF)


Deaths in usual place of residence by West Midlands local authority
(Public health England Palliative and End of Life Profiles) 







Deaths in hospital. Projection estimates based on linear regression of all available preceding periods


Provided by MPFT analyst. A Hemming. 24 April 2021


Source:
Palliative and End of Life Care Profiles - PHE


Projections assume that trends will 
continue according to the general trend 


between 2009 and 2018.



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/end-of-life/data#page/0/gid/1938132883/pat/44/par/E40000008/ati/220/iid/93474/age/1/sex/4/cid/4/tbm/1





End of life care projections (national)







CSU analysis: Health service use in the last two years of life: Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent
Source: Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit. 1 October 2020


Excerpts from key findings:


• 66% of people say they would like to die at home. In Staffordshire and 
Stoke on Trent just 22% do so.


• People from deprived areas are more likely to die at home than people 
from affluent areas. The reverse is true for deaths in care homes.


• 45% of people in Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent who die do so during 
an (often short) emergency admission. 


• Based on national trends: as many as a third of palliative patients in 
Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent may have died with their pain not 
properly controlled.


• 86% attend A&E at least once in the two years prior to their death. 90% 
have at least one emergency admission. 


• 29% of those dying are in contact with mental health services. This is 
higher than for the Midlands region (25%).


• Patterns of service use differ radically by cause of death.


• Planned care usage rises steadily over the last two years of life. 


• There is a consistently higher rate of planned care use (mainly cancer 
care) in Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent compared to the Midlands. 


• Proximity to death rather than age drive emergency 
admissions and A&E attendances.


• In the final year of life, the oldest decedents spend 
approximately an additional seven days in hospital than the 
youngest decedents.


• In the last two years of life around £154 million is spent on 
hospital services for decedents in Staffordshire and Stoke 
on Trent. Urgent service events account for around two-
thirds of this.


• The number of deaths has begun to rise and is set to 
continue with the greatest number among those aged 85 
and above. 


• If patterns of care do not change, the current growth in 
deaths per annum suggests that over 270 additional beds 
will be needed in the STP by 2040.







CSU analysis: health service use in the last two years of life: Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent-proportion of decedent population by cause and place of death
Source: Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit. 1 October 2020







Frailty and the Voluntary Workforce


Benefits of volunteering:
• At a population level, improves health, 


wellbeing and care outcomes, bridging 
gaps between health and social care (1-3)


• Provides holistic, long-term, local 
services looking to improve quality 
rather than save costs (1,4)


• At an individual level, provides social 
connections, sense of purpose and 
routine, improved wellbeing, skill 
development (2,5-8)


Workforce:
• Mainly consists of older, Caucasian, female 


adults with highly educated affluent 
backgrounds (5-7,9)


• Barriers to volunteering include being 
unhealthier or from a less affluent 
background (6,10)


• Upcoming older population will be more 
diverse and affluent, with more time in good 
health and higher overall numbers (10-11)


• BUT also have more demands on time, long 
term conditions and bigger inequalities (6,10-


11)


• To be able to sustain this sector, need a 
cultural shift, including age inclusive and 
flexible opportunities which are valued and 
incentivised (1, 5-6,8-12)


1. DoH, NHS, PHE. (2016). Joint review of partnerships and investment in voluntarry community and social enterprise organisations in the health 
and care sector.


2. Henderson F, Steiner A, Mazzei M, Docherty C. (2020). Social enterprises’ impact on odler people’s health and wellbeing: exploring Scottish 
experiences. 


3. Croft C, Currie G. (2020). Realizing policy aspirations of voluntary sector involvement in integrated care provision: Insights from the English 
National Health Service. 


4. The King’s Fund. (2013). Volunteering in health and care: Securing a sustainable future.
5. CVSA. (2014). A Better Offer: The future of volunteering in an ageing society.
6. NESTA. (2020). The Age of Inclusion: Lessons from social action innovations developing age-inclusive and age-friendly practice.
7. Gonzales E, Matz-Costa C, Morrow-Howell N. (2015). Increasing opportunities for the productive engagement of older adults: A response to 


population aging.
8. People and Communities Board. (2017). Volunteering and social action: A narrative to complement the six principles for engaging people and 


communities.
9. ResPublica, Civil Society and Social Innovation Unit. (2011). Age of Opportunity: Older people, volunteering and the Big Society. 
10. Centre for Ageing Better. (2018). Age-friendly and inclusive volunteering: Review of community contributions in later life. 
11. CVSA. (2015). Decision time: Will the voluntary sector embrace the age of opportunity?
12. Berry L. (2015). An age of opportunity for the voluntary sector. 







• Impact on wider determinants: poverty and financial insecurity, employment and homes (Centre for Ageing Better, 2020).


• Double the number (600,000) of people aged 50+were claiming unemployment benefits in September 2020 compared to March 2020. 2.7million 
people aged 50+ were furloughed. Return to work is a major challenge in this age group.


• Those most in need of social connections, may have lost access to them.


• Impact of lifestyle behaviours (AgeUK,2020) and (Centre for Ageing Better, 2020).


• One in five people felt less steady on their feet (Age UK, 2020)
• One in four people were able to walk less far (43% of respondents with a long term condition) (Age UK, 2020)
• 36% felt less motivated to do the things they used to enjoy (Age UK, 2020)
• One in five people stated it was harder to remember things (28% of respondents with a long term condition) (Age UK, 2020)


• Greater burden of ill health in the most deprived populations who will therefore suffer most from delays in diagnosis and 
treatment (Centre for Ageing Better, 2021)


• Impacts on access to healthcare
• 40% of people felt less confident going to a GP surgery (Age UK, 2020)
• 34% of people agreed their anxiety was worse than before the pandemic started (Age UK, 2020)


• Ethnic differences on COVID-19 outcomes are not fully understood, but are thought to be due in part to (King’s Fund, 2021)
• Increased risk of infection
• Increased risk of severe disease and death


• “Widening inequities in power, money and resources between individuals, communities and regions have generated 
inequalities in the conditions of life” (Marmot et al., 2020)


COVID-19 and ageing
(Sources: Centre for Ageing Better. The State of Ageing in 2020. 19 November 2020. Available from: https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/news/state-ageing-coronavirus-set-people-mid-life-path-
poverty-and-ill-health-inequalities-widening(Accessed 16 December 2020).
AgeUK (2020)The impact of COVID-19 to date on older people’s mental and physical health. Available from: https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-
publications/reports-and-briefings/health--wellbeing/the-impact-of-covid-19-on-older-people_age-uk.pdf(Accessed 2 February 2021).
Kings Fund (2021) The health of people from ethnic minority groups in England. February 2021. Available from: https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/health-people-ethnic-minority-groups-
england(Accessed 2 March 2021).
Marmot, M, et al., (2020)  Build Back Fairer: The COVID-19 Marmot Review. [Online] December 2020. https://www.health.org.uk/publications/build-back-fairer-the-covid-19-marmot-review.







Shielded patients (2020) 
Source: NHS Digital


Estimated population 60+ in 


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent


308,910


23,795


Total Shielded Patients 60+ in 


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent


7.70%


% of the population 60+ on the 


Shielded Patients List in 


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent







Use of digital technology in older people
Source: Centre for Ageing Better (2018) The digital age: new approaches to supporting people in later life get online. Available from: https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/sites/default/files/2018-
06/The-digital-age.pdf(Accessed 2 March 2021). 
Office for National Statistics (2019) Internet users, UK:. Available from: https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/itandinternetindustry/bulletins/internetusers/2019(Accessed 2 March 
2021).


Recent internet use (ONS, 2019)


• 83% of 65-74 years olds


• 47% 75 years old and over


• Largest increase in recent internet use in 75years+ 
group


Some “non-users have made an informed 
and reasoned choice” not to be online 
whereas digitally excluded people have no 
means of access 
(Centre for Ageing Better, 2018)


Breadth of internet use is variable 
(Centre for Ageing Better, 2018)


Evidence that some over 55 year olds use 
the internet “via proxies” (Centre for Ageing Better, 
2018)


There will always be people who struggle to 
get online 
(Centre for Ageing Better, 2018)


Breadth of internet use


Factors influencing internet 
usage in later life


(Centre for Ageing Better, 2018)







• Between 2020 and 2030, there is projected to be
• a considerable increase in older people and in the ratio of older : younger people
• a considerable increase in long term conditions, frailty and multi-morbidity


• Potentially major implications for local health and care systems


• Much of what we know about health and wellbeing in older people in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent, and future projections relate to before the pandemic


• There is evidence that the COVID-19 pandemic is widening inequalities and impacting on the wider 
determinants of health, lifestyles and health care access


• Integrated system-wide strategy to healthy ageing and care of older people to be developed through 
a comprehensive approach including


o Continued and wider consultation and partnership working to develop clear, measurable strategic objectives 
with the aim of demonstrating system-level change and addressing inequalities


o The establishment of a series of working groups to further explore and address the emergent issues through
• More in-depth needs assessment on focussed issues and incorporating additional data sources and new 


local data that captures health and wellbeing since the COVID-19 pandemic.
• Further focussed evidence review.
• Confirmation of strategic objectives and metrics


Next steps: a need for change







Appendix A- Amendments/changes in relation compared to previous 
versions


• Slide 2: Contents page updated. 
• Slide4-new slide: introduction.
• Slide 6: Mid-year population estimates and projections by age group  updated from 2016 projections to 2018 projections and typo in age over 85 estimates- column title changed from 2020-35 to 2020-30.
• Slide 8: Clarification that the map was made with Power BI and updated with more recent data.
• Slide 10: Change from “those from White British people” to “White British people”. Updated to include extra bullet point: “The COVID-19 has exacerbated population health inequalities  (Marmot 2020, December)”.
• Slide 11: new slide-Early consultation findings from ethnically diverse communities across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
• Slide 12: new slide - wider determinants of health-Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent.
• Slide 13: new slide-deprivation by PCN.
• Slide 16: new slide: projections for healthy life expectancy.
• Slide 18: Typo correction: Stoke-on-Trent flu vaccination rate- changed from 6.9 to 69.9.
• Slide 19: new slide- Fire safety and prevention in older age.
• Slide 20: new slide- Physical activity in older age.
• Slide 21: new slide-physical activity projections.
• Slide 22: new slide- physical inactivity projections.
• Slide 23: addition to slide: highlighting that hearing loss and lower back pain are leading causes of morbidity in older people.
• Slide 24: Figures updated using POPPI v 15.0. Crown copyright 2020. Predictions suggest varied reductions in the predicted increases this most impacts the cardiovascular figures where the increase is estimated to be 14387 


by 2030 rather than 15377, and the relative increase in dementia cases has changed from a 31% increased by 2030 to a 26% increase. Change of hospital admissions “following a fall” to “due to fall”. The previous version of 
the slide has been retained as slide 56.


• Slide 25: new slide- projected frailty estimates.
• Slide 26: change of title on slide from “Life limiting illness” to “Illness that limits daily life”. Clarification that the limiting long term illness and multi-morbidity figures relate to projections. Error corrected on multi-morbidity 


projections to state 65 yrs+ not over 65s. Kingston et al. 2018 statistic corrected, the increase in multi-morbidity described reflects the time period 2015-2035 and not 2018-2035.
• Slide 27: new slide- RightCare summary of estimated frailty by CCG.
• Slide 37: updated acute activity projections to reflect Together We’re Better Case for Change report rather than the PA Consulting working draft.
• Slide 39: new slide- ambulance services demand projections.
• Slide 40: new slide- emergency falls admissions projections.
• Slide 42: new slide- Current estimates and future projections of wound care services across the United Kingdom
• Slide 43 and 44 title amended to clarify that the figures relate to projections. Slide 44 figures updated using POPPI v 15.0. Crown copyright 2020.
• Slide 45: Kingston et al study: clarification of low and high dependency definitions. Error corrected: High dependency numbers are projected to increase by 92% not 192%”. Also specified the time period as 2015-2035.
• Slide 47: new slide- deaths in hospitals projections.
• Slide 50: Additional clarification of title to: “proportion of decedent population” by cause and p
• Slide 51- new slide- Frailty and the voluntary workforce.
• Slide 52: extra detail from the Age UK survey included. Some detail from the Centre for Better Ageing document regarding housing as Age UK detail prioritised.
• Slide 55: Added time period to demographic change statement. Wording changed from “major implications” to “potentially major implications” as assessment based on projections. “significant” to “considerable”. Inclusion of 


additional bullet point regarding strategic objectives and the majority of data being pre-pandemic. Following statement removed:  “do nothing scenario is not sustainable”-whilst this is national consensus as outlined in 
Government Office for Science & Foresight  “Future of an Ageing Population” Available: https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/816458/future-of-an-ageing-
population.pdf (Accessed 13 May 2021), gap analysis has not been undertaken as part of this needs assessment to quantify this locally as yet. 


• Removed slide: Community activity projections from PA Consulting working draft removed, as final document not obtained.
• Removed slides: RightCare “Where to look” data pack slides removed in lieu of further conversation regarding these data.



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/816458/future-of-an-ageing-population.pdf





Appendix B(1)-Long term condition projections in people aged 65 years and older in 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent* PREVIOUS ESTIMATES


* POPPI v13.0 May 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2018. 


2020 2030


762 more people with bronchitis or emphysema
(8% increase by 2025, 19% increase by 2030)


15377 more people with cardiovascular disease
(10% increase by 2025, 20% increase by 2030)


4994 more people with dementia
(14% increase by 2025, 31% increase by 2030)


2437 hospital admissions following a fall
(15% increase by 2025, 33% increase by 2030)


5393 more people with diabetes
(7% increase by 2025, 18% increase by 2030)


12828 more people who are obese
(7% increase by 2025, 18% increase by 2030)


72688 85516


29858 35291


7457 9894


16296 21290


76247 91624


4060 4822


3802 more people with depression
(8% increase by 2025, 19% increase by 2030)


20538 24340


PREVIOUS estimates, estimates updated following POPPI database update- for new estimates see slide 23



http://www.poppi.org.uk/





Appendix B(2)-Projections for social isolation, informal caring and care 
homes in Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent*PREVIOUS ESTIMATES


15805 more people aged 65 years or older living alone by 2030
10% increase by 2025, 21% increase by 2030


(increase from 77,060 in 2020 to 92,865 in 2030)


5864 more people aged 65 and over providing unpaid care to a partner, 
family member or other person


7% increase by 2025, 16% increase by 2030
(from 36,271 in 2020  to 42,135 by 2030)


2715 more people aged 65 and over living  in a care home with or without 
nursing


17% increase by 2025, 35% increase by 2030
(from 7680 in 2020  to 10,395 by 2030)


* POPPI v13.0 May 2020. www.poppi.org.uk Data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2018. Note these figures are based on a 
previous version of the POPPI database and should be updated in the next version of the needs assessment to figures in POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. 


PREVIOUS estimates, estimates updated following POPPI database update- for new estimates 
see slide 44



http://www.poppi.org.uk/





Appendix C(1)- POPPI estimate assumptions
POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2020.


Estimates


Cardiovascular 
disease


Figures are taken from the Health Survey for England 2017. The Health Survey for England is a series of surveys commissioned by NHS Digital and carried out by NatCen Social Research and UCL. The surveys are representative of adults and children in 
England, and are used to monitor the nation's health and health-related behaviours. For further details about the Health Survey for England 2017, see http://digital.nhs.uk/pubs/hse2017, where you can find links to other topic reports and detailed 
methodological information.
Cardiovascular disease estimates are defined as ever having any doctor-diagnosed heart attack, angina, heart murmur, abnormal heart rhythm or stroke.
Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of men and women with any cardiovascular disease to projected population figures to 2040.
Estimates cardiovascular disease are based on doctor-diagnosed cardiovascular disease and are as follows:
range % males % females
65-74 34 21
75+ 42 33
Crown copyright 2020.


Obesity Figures are taken from the Health Survey for England 2018. The Health Survey for England is a series of surveys commissioned by NHS Digital and carried out by NatCen Social Research and UCL. The surveys are representative of adults and children in 
England, and are used to monitor the nation's health and health-related behaviours. For further details about the Health Survey for England 2018, see http://digital.nhs.uk/pubs/hse2018, where you can find links to other topic reports and detailed 
methodological information.
Obesity is measured using the body Mass Index. BMI status is defined as:
Underweight <18.5kg/m2;Normal 18.5 to <25kg/m2;Overweight 25 to <30kg/m2;Obese, excluding morbidly obese 30 to <40 kg/m2;Morbidly obese 40kg/m2 Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of men and women who are obese 
or morbidly obese to projected population figures to 2040.


Obesity rates are as follows:
Age range % males obese % males morbidly obese % females obese % females morbidly obese
65-74 30.4 1.2 27.5 5.3
75+ 27.7 0.7 25.2 2.7
Crown copyright 2020


Diabetes The rates for people with doctor-diagnosed Type 1 or Type 2 diabetes are as follows:
Age range
65-74: males-15.7% females-10.4%
75+: males-13.5% females-10.6%
These prevalence rates are taken from the Health Survey for England 2006 Volume 1 Cardiovascular Disease and Risk Factors in Adults, The NHS Information Centre, 2008. The study provides prevalence data by age and gender, and by type of 
diabetes. The most significant factors for the onset of Type 2 diabetes are age and weight.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections for the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers predicted to have doctor-diagnosed diabetes, projected to 2040.
Crown copyright 2020.







Appendix C (2)- POPPI estimate assumptions
POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2020.


Estimates


Dementia Figures are taken from Dementia UK: Update (2014) prepared by King's College London and the London School of Economics for the Alzheimer's Society. This report updates the Dementia UK (2007) report. It provides a synthesis of best available 
evidence for the current cost and prevalence of dementia. It aims to provide an accurate understanding of dementia prevalence and cost in the UK to assist in policy development, influencing, commissioning and service design.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections of the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers of people predicted to have dementia to 2040.
To calculate the prevalence rates for the 90+ population, rates from the research for the 90-94 and 95+ age groups have been applied to the England population 2013 (when the research was undertaken) to calculate the numbers in each age group, 
the sum of these groups is then expressed as a percentage of the total 90+ population to establish the predicted prevalence of the 90+ population as a whole.
Rates for men and women with dementia are as follows:
Age range % males % females
65-69 1.5 1.8
70-74 3.1 3
75-79 5.3 6.6
80-85 10.3 11.7
85-89 15.1 20.2
90-94 22.6 33
95+ 28.8 44.2
Crown copyright 2020


Depression Figures are taken from McDougall et al, Prevalence of depression in older people in England and Wales: the MRC CFA Study in Psychological Medicine, 2007, 37, 1787-1795.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections of the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers predicted to have depression, to 2040.
Age range % males % females
65-69 5.8 10.9
70-74 6.9 9.5
75-79 5.9 10.7
80-84 9.7 9.2
85+ 5.1 11.1
Crown copyright 2020


Hospital admissions 
due to falls


These figures are taken from Hospital Episode Statistics for England: Admitted Patient Care statistics, 2016-17 (2017), NHS Digital, Table External cause. Data for falls is based on ICD-10 codes W01, W05-W10, W18 and W19.
Note that rates given are for numbers of admissions and not numbers of individual people.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections of the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers predicted to be admitted to hospital as a result of falls to 2040.
Rates for admissions to hospital as a result of unintentional falls are as follows:
Age range %
65-69 0.822
70-74 1.356
75-79 2.467
80+ 7.79
Crown copyright 2020


Bronchitis/ 
emphysema


Figures are taken from the General Household Survey 2007, table 7.14 Chronic sickness: rate per 1000 reporting selected longstanding conditions, by sex and age, ONS. The General Household Survey is a continuous survey which has been running 
since 1971, and is based each year on a sample of the general population resident in private households in Great Britain.
Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of men and women reporting bronchitis and emphysema to projected population figures to 2040.
Age range % males % females
65-74 2.4 1
75+ 2.1 1.4
Crown copyright 2020







Appendix C (3)- POPPI estimate assumptions
POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2020.


Estimates


Dementia Figures are taken from Dementia UK: Update (2014) prepared by King's College London and the London School of Economics for the Alzheimer's Society. This report updates the Dementia UK (2007) report. It provides a synthesis of best available 
evidence for the current cost and prevalence of dementia. It aims to provide an accurate understanding of dementia prevalence and cost in the UK to assist in policy development, influencing, commissioning and service design.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections of the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers of people predicted to have dementia to 2040.
To calculate the prevalence rates for the 90+ population, rates from the research for the 90-94 and 95+ age groups have been applied to the England population 2013 (when the research was undertaken) to calculate the numbers in each age group, 
the sum of these groups is then expressed as a percentage of the total 90+ population to establish the predicted prevalence of the 90+ population as a whole.
Rates for men and women with dementia are as follows:
Age range % males % females
65-69 1.5 1.8
70-74 3.1 3
75-79 5.3 6.6
80-85 10.3 11.7
85-89 15.1 20.2
90-94 22.6 33
95+ 28.8 44.2
Crown copyright 2020


Depression Figures are taken from McDougall et al, Prevalence of depression in older people in England and Wales: the MRC CFA Study in Psychological Medicine, 2007, 37, 1787-1795.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections of the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers predicted to have depression, to 2040.
Age range % males % females
65-69 5.8 10.9
70-74 6.9 9.5
75-79 5.9 10.7
80-84 9.7 9.2
85+ 5.1 11.1
Crown copyright 2020


Hospital admissions 
due to falls


These figures are taken from Hospital Episode Statistics for England: Admitted Patient Care statistics, 2016-17 (2017), NHS Digital, Table External cause. Data for falls is based on ICD-10 codes W01, W05-W10, W18 and W19.
Note that rates given are for numbers of admissions and not numbers of individual people.
The prevalence rates have been applied to ONS population projections of the 65 and over population to give estimated numbers predicted to be admitted to hospital as a result of falls to 2040.
Rates for admissions to hospital as a result of unintentional falls are as follows:
Age range %
65-69 0.822
70-74 1.356
75-79 2.467
80+ 7.79
Crown copyright 2020


Bronchitis/ 
emphysema


Figures are taken from the General Household Survey 2007, table 7.14 Chronic sickness: rate per 1000 reporting selected longstanding conditions, by sex and age, ONS. The General Household Survey is a continuous survey which has been running 
since 1971, and is based each year on a sample of the general population resident in private households in Great Britain.
Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of men and women reporting bronchitis and emphysema to projected population figures to 2040.
Age range % males % females
65-74 2.4 1
75+ 2.1 1.4
Crown copyright 2020







Appendix C (4)- POPPI estimate assumptions
POPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. www.poppi.org.uk data sources: Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2020.


Estimates


Living alone Rates for people living alone are as follows:


Age range % males % females
65-74 20 29
75+ 29 50


Figures are taken from the Labour Force Survey (2017), Office for National Statistics, Table 6: People living alone by age and sex, UK 1996-2017. For those aged 65 and over, the larger proportion of those living alone were female (66.5%). This is partly 
because there are more women than men in the total population aged 65 and over due to women’s higher life expectancy. By the age of 65, most women have been married and husbands are typically older than their wives. These two factors mean 
that more women than men become widowed, which may lead to living alone. In spite of this, the number of widowed women is falling due to life expectancy increasing faster for men compared with women.
Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of men and women living alone to projected population figures
Crown copyright 2020


Unpaid carers Figures are taken from the Census 2011 reference CT0224 - Sex by age by provision of unpaid care by general health. This dataset provides estimates that classify usual residents of England and Wales by provision of unpaid care and by age and by 
general health. The estimates are as at census day, 27 March 2011.
A person is a provider of unpaid care if they look after or give help or support to family members, friends, neighbours or others because of long-term physical or mental ill health or disability, or problems related to old age. This does not include any 
activities as part of paid employment. No distinction is made about whether any care that a person provides is within their own household or outside of the household, so no explicit link can be made about whether the care provided is for a person 
within the household who has poor general health or a long term health problem or disability.
The numbers have been applied to population projections to give estimated numbers of unpaid carers to 2040.
Crown copyright 2020


Living in a care 
home


Figures are taken from Office for National Statistics (ONS) 2011 Census, Communal establishment management and type by sex by age, reference DC4210EWL.
Numbers have been calculated by applying percentages of people living in care homes/nursing homes in 2011 to projected population figures.
Crown copyright 2020






APPENDIX 2



SUMMARY OF NEEDS ASSESSMENT	



References
1. Office for National Statistics. Population projections for local authorities: Table 2. [Online] March 2020. https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationprojections/datasets/localauthoritiesinenglandtable2.
2. Marmot, M., et al. Health Equity in England: The Marmot Review 10 Years On. [Online] February 2020. [Cited: 8 October 2020.] https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/the-marmot-review-10-years-on.
3. MPFT. Analysis using the following sources:NHS Digital dataset which has the practice population for each GP by LSOA (Patients Registered at a GP Practice - NHS Digital) as of 1 Jan 2020 combined with IMD 2019 deciles. [Online] 2020. 
4. Public Health England. Productive Healthy Ageing Profiles. [Online] 2020. [Cited: 23 September 2021.] https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/healthy-ageing/data#page/0/page-options/ovw-do-0.
5. Marmot, M, et al. Build Back Fairer: The COVID-19 Marmot Review. [Online] December 2020. https://www.health.org.uk/publications/build-back-fairer-the-covid-19-marmot-review.
6. Institute of Public Care and Office for National Statistics. OPPI v15.0 17 November 2020. Institute of Public Care (IPC) and ONS . Crown copyright 2020. [Online] 17 June 2020. [Cited: 8 June 2021.] www.poppi.org.uk.
7. Sport England. Active Lives Adult Survey. May 2019/20. [Online] October 2020. [Cited: 18 March 2021.] https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2020-10/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20May%2019-20%20Report.pdf?AYzBswpBmlh9cNcH8TFctPI38v4Ok2JD.
8. —. Sport England. Active Lives Adult Survey November 2019/20 Report. Published April 2021. . [Online] April 2021. [Cited: 5 May 2021.] https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2021-04/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20November%202019-20%20Report.pdf?OjWdwCLnI3dNgDwp3X4ukcODJIDVG7Kd.
9. AgeUK. The impact of COVID-19 to date on older people’s mental and physical health. [Online] October 2020. [Cited: 7 April 2021.] https://www.ageuk.org.uk/globalassets/age-uk/documents/reports-and-publications/reports-and-briefings/health--wellbeing/the-impact-of-covid-19-on-older-people_age-uk.pdf.
10. Centre for Ageing Better. The State of Ageing in 2020. [Online] November 2020. [Cited: 16 December 2021.] https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/state-of-ageing-20.
11. Cartwright, A and Iqbal, Z. Older peoples needs assessment. MPFT. [Online] 2018. 
12. NHS RightCare. Intelligence CCG Focus Pack: Frailty, May 2019. [Online] May 2019. 
13. Projections of multi-morbidity in the older population in England to 2035: estimates from the Population Ageing and Care Simulation (PACSim) model. Kingston, A, et al. 3, 2018, Age Ageing, Vol. 47, pp. 374-380. doi: 10.1093/age.
14. Centre for Workforce Intelligence. In-depth review of the general practitioner workforce, Final Report. Centre for Workforce Intelligence. [Online] 2014. [Cited: 15 January 2021.] https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/507493/CfWI_GP_in-depth_review.pdf.
15. Forecasting the care needs of the older population in England over the next 20 years: estimates from the Population Ageing and Care Simulation (PACSim) modelling study. Kingston, A., Comas-Herrera, A. and Jagger, C. 9, 2018, The Lancet Public Health, Vol. 3, pp. e447-e455.
16. Together We’re Better. Case for Change. V0.51. 2019.
17. MPFT. Projections of increased activity in MPFT community services currently with the highest volume or highest proportion of referrals in people aged 65 years and older, 2019/20-2030. MPFT data warehouse analysis by D. Leese. . 2020.
18. The health economic burden that acute and chronic wounds impose on an average clinical commissioning group/health board in the UK. Guest, JF, Vowden, K and Vowden, P. 6, s.l. : J Wound Care, 2017, Vol. 26, pp. 292-303.
19. Midlands and Lancashire Commisssioning Support Unit. CSU analysis: health service use in the last two years of life: Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. [Online] 1 October 2020. 
20. The King's Fund. The health of people from ethnic minority groups in England. [Online] February 2021. [Cited: 2 March 2021.] https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/health-people-ethnic-minority-groups-england.
21. Public Health England. Segment Tool. [Online] Jan 2020. https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/segment-tool/.
22. Sport England. Active Lives Adult Survey. Coronavirus (Covid-19) Report. [Online] October 2020. [Cited: 18 March 2021.] https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/2020-10/Active%20Lives%20Adult%20May%2019-20%20Coronavirus%20Report.pdf?2L6TBVV5UvCGXb_VxZcWHcfFX0_wRal7.
23. PA Consulting. Needs Analysis Report. Working draft. 
24. How many people will need palliative care in 2040? Past trends, future projections and implications for services. Etkind, SN, et al. 1, 2017, BMC Med, Vol. 15, p. 102.






image1.png



image2.png






Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent ICS Frailty Strategy 

Supporting Evidence Reviews 

References



Introduction and Population approach 



1. Office for National Statistics , "Living longer: how our population is changing and why it matters," 2018. [Online]. Available: https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/ageing/articles/livinglongerhowourpopulationischangingandwhyitmatters/2018. [Accessed 8 September 2020].



2. NHS (2019) The NHS Long Term Plan. Available from: https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-long-term-plan/ (Accessed 14 October 2020).



3. MPFT, Health and Wellbeing strategy 2019-2024: to support positive health and wellbeing for staff, service users, carers and our communities. 



4. Centre for Ageing Better, “State of ageing in 2020” 2020 [Online] available from https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/health-state-ageing-2020 accessed on 24th November 2020. 



5. Public Health England & Centre for ageing better, “A consensus on healthy ageing” 2019 [Online] Available:https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/882847/Healthy_Ageing_Consensus_Statement-GW-1165.pdf accessed on 20th September 2020 



6. World Health Organisation, “The Global network for Age-friendly cities and communities” 2018 [Online]Available: https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/278979/WHO-FWC-ALC-18.4-eng.pdf?sequence=1 Accessed on 20th September 2020 



7. Marmot M, Goldblatt P & Allen. Fair Society Healthy lives (The Marmot Review) 2010 [Online] Available: http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review/fair-society-healthy-lives-full-report-pdf.pdf accessed on 27th September 2020





8. Department for business, energy and industrial strategy, “The Grand challenge mission” 2019 [Online] Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/industrial-strategy-the-grand-challenges/missions#healthy-lives accessed on 20th October 2020. 



9. Department of Health and social care,  “Advancing our health: prevention in the 2020s- consultation document (The Green Paper) 2019 [Online] Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/advancing-our-health-prevention-in-the-2020s/advancing-our-health-prevention-in-the-2020s-consultation-document  accessed on 20th September 2020 



10. HM Government, “ Industrial strategy, Building a Britain fit for the future (The white paper) 2019 [Online] Available from: https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/664563/industrial-strategy-white-paper-web-ready-version.pdf accessed on 26th October 2020

11. HM Government, “A connected society: A strategy for tackling loneliness, laying the foundations for change” 2018 [Online] Available: https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/750909/6.4882_DCMS_Loneliness_Strategy_web_Update.pdf accessed on 26th October 2020 



12. National Institute of health care and excellence, “Older people: independence and mental wellbeing NG32” 2015 [Online] Available from: https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng32 accessed on 20th October 2020. 



13. Greater Manchester Combined Authority, “Age friendly Manchester” 2019 [Online] Available:  https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/ageing/age-friendly-greater-manchester/ accessed on 20th October 2020 



14. Ageing friendly Bristol & Bristol Ageing better, “ Age friendly Bristol” 2019 [Online] Available: http://agefriendlybristol.org.uk/housing/ accessed on 20th September 2020 



15. Beth Johnson Foundation, “Healthy generations” 2020 [Online] Available: https://www.bjf.org.uk/current-initiatives/healthy-generations-2 accessed on 20th October 2020 



16. AGE UK, “Ageing well in Stok-on-Trent” 2020 [Online] Available: https://www.ageuk.org.uk/staffordshire/activities-and-events/exercise-and-staying-active-for-older-people/ageing-well/ accessed on 28th October 2020 



17. Staffordshire connects, “Community help points” 2020 [Online] Available: https://www.staffordshireconnects.info/kb5/staffordshire/directory/results.page?adultchannel=1-13 accessed on 20th October 2020 



18. Staffordshire Observatory, “The Story of Staffordshire” 2016 [Online] Available: https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/StaffordshireStory/Story-of-Staffordshire-2016-Full-report-VERYFINAL.pdf accessed on 3rd November 2020. 



19. Fahy, F “Role of MPFT working with communities to address health inequalities” 2020, MPFT Health and Wellbeing.



20. Public Health England & NHS England, “A guide to community-centred approaches for health and wellbeing” 2015 [Online] Available: https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/768979/A_guide_to_community-centred_approaches_for_health_and_wellbeing__full_report_.pdf accessed on 5th November 2020 



21.  National Palliative and End of life care partnership, “Ambitions for palliative and end of life care: A national framework for local action 2015-2020” 2015 [Online] Available: https://endoflifecareambitions.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/Ambitions-for-Palliative-and-End-of-Life-Care.pdf Accessed on 20th October 2020



22. Nwosu A, Sturgeon B, McGlinchey T, Goodwin C, Behara A, Mason S, Stanley S & Payne T. Robotic technology for palliative and supportive care: Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. Palliative medicine 2019 33(8):1106-1113. 



23.  Bradley K. Remote monitoring: A novel approach in fall prevention. Journal of continuing education in nursing. 2016 47(11): 484-486



24. Muchna A, Najafi B, Wendel C, Schwenk M, Armstrong D & Mohler J. Foot problems in older adults - associations with incident falls, frailty syndrome, and sensor-derived gait, balance, and physical activity measures. American podiatric medical association2018 108(2):126-139. 



25. Hsieh K, Moon Y, Ramkrishnan V, Ratnam R & Sosnoff J. Validating virtual time to contact with home-based technology in young and older adults. Journal of Applied Biomechanics 2019 35 (1): 61-7



26. Moyle W, Jones C, Dwan T & Petrovich T. Effectiveness of a Virtual Reality Forest on People With Dementia: A Mixed Methods Pilot Study. The Gerontologist 2018 58 (3): 478-487



27. The King’s Fund ‘making healthcare systems fit ageing population https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/field/field_publication_file/making-health-care-systems-fit-ageing-population-oliver-foot-humphries-mar14.pdf



28. National institute of Health and Care Excellence, “Making every contact count” 2020 [Online] Available: https://stpsupport.nice.org.uk/mecc/index.html accessed on 20th October 2020.



29. NHS, “Comprehensive  model of personalised care” 2020 [Online] Available: https://www.england.nhs.uk/personalisedcare/comprehensive-model-of-personalised-care/ accessed on 20th October 2020. 



30. Elston J, Gradinger F, Asthana S, Lilley-Woolnough C, Wroe S, Harman H, Byng R. (2019) Does a social prescribing ‘holistic’ link-worker for older people with complex, multimorbidity improve well-being and frailty and reduce health and social care use and costs? A 12-month before- and-after evaluation. Primary Health Care Research & Development 20(e135): 1–10. 



31. NHS, “ Patient activation” 2020 [Online] Available: https://www.england.nhs.uk/personalisedcare/supported-self-management/patient-activation/ accessed on 20th October 2020 

 

32. NHS England , The Health foundation & nesta, ‘Realising the value programme’ 2020 [Online] Available: https://www.nesta.org.uk/project/realising-value/ accessed on 20th October 2020



33. Gray M, “Living longer better” 2020 [Online] Available from: https://www.livelongerbetter.net/ageing-is-a-normal-biological-process.html accessed on 20th September 2020.



Preventing the progression of frailty 



1. British Geriatric Society, “Introduction to frailty, fit for frailty part 1” 2014 [Online] Available: https://www.bgs.org.uk/resources/introduction-to-frailty accessed on 20th August 2020



2. Fried L, Tangen C, Walston J, Newman A, Hirsch C, Gottdiener J, Seeman T, Tracy R, Kop W, Burke G & McBurnie M. Frailty in older adults: evidence for a phenotype. The Journal of Gerontology 2001 56 (3) M146-M157. 



3. Hanlon Frailty and pre-frailty in middle-aged and older adults and its association with multimorbidity and mortality: a prospective analysis of 493 737 UK Biobank participants



4. Neiderstrasser N, Rogers N & Bandelow S. Determinants of frailty development and progression using a multidimensional frailty index: Evidence from the English Longitudinal Study of Ageing. PLOS ONE 2019 [Online] Available: https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0223799 Accessed on 5th October 2020. 



5. Walston J, Buta B & Xue Q. Frailty screening and interventions: Considerations in clinical practice. Clinics in Geriatric medicine 2018 34(1):25-38



6. The King’s Fund, “Making our health and care systems fit for an ageing population” (2014)[Online]. Available from https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/making-our-health-and-care-systems-fit-ageing-population [accessed on 20th August 2020]



7. Frost R, Belk C, Jovicic A, Ricciardi F, Kharicha K, Gardner B, Iliffe S, Goodman C, Mnathrope J, Drennan V & Walters K. Health promotion interventions for community-dwelling older people with mild or pre-frailty: a systematic review and meta-analysis. BMC Geriatrics 2017 (7):157



8. Daniel K. Wii-Hab for pre-frail older adults. Rehabilitation Nursing 2012 37(4)



9. Apostolo J, Cooke R, Bobrowicz-Campos E, Santana S, Marcucci M, Cano A, Vollenbroek-Hutten M, Germini F, D’Avanzo B, Gwyther H & Holland C. Effectiveness of inteventions to prevent pre-frailty and frailty progression in older adults: a systematic review. JBI Database System Rev Implement Rep. 2018 16(1): 140-232



10. Travers J, Romero-Ortuno R, Bailey J & Cooney M. 2019. Delaying and reversing frailty: a systematic review of primary care interventions. Br J Gen Pract 2019 e62 



11. Negm A, Kennedy C, Thabane L, Veroniki A, Adachi J, Richardson J, Cameron I, Giangregorio A, Petropoulou M, Alsaad S, Alzahrani J, Maaz M, Ahmed M, Kim E, Tehfe H, Dima R, Sabanayagam K, Hewston P, Alrob A & Papaioannou A. Management of Frailty: A Systematic Review and Network Meta-analysis of Randomized Controlled Trials. J Am Med Dir Assoc 2019 20(10):1190-1198



12. Kuzuya M, Arao T, Takehisa Y, Satake S, Arai H. Chapter 3 Frailty prevention. Geriatr. Gerontol. Int. 2020;20 (Suppl. 1):20–24. https://doi.org/10. 1111/ggi.13832 



13. Kojima G, Avgerinou C, IIiffe S, Walters K. Adherence to Mediterranean Diet Reduces Incident Frailty Risk: Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society 2018 (66)4



14. Wang Y, Hao Q, Su L, Liu Y, Liu S, Dong B. Adherence to the Mediterranean diet and the risk of frailty in old people: a systematic review and meta-analysis. J Nutr Health Ageing 2018 (22) 5



15. Cuesta-Triana f, Verejo-bravo C, Fernandez-Perez C & Martin-Sanchez F. Effect of milk and other dairy products on the risk of frailty, sarcopenia and cognitive performance decline in the elderly: a systematic review 



16. Ofori-Asenso R, Chin K, Mazidi M, Zomer E, Ilomaki J, Ademi Z, Bell S & Liew D. Natural Regression of Frailty Among Community-Dwelling Older Adults: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. The Gerontologist 2020 60(4):286



17. Oliveira J, Sherrington C, Amorim A, Dario A & Tiedemann A. What is the effect on health coaching on physical activityparticipation in people aged 60 years and over? A systematic review of randomised controlled trials. Bristish Journal of sports medicine 2017 (51): 1425-1432. 



18. Elston J, Gradinger F, Asthana S, Lilley-Woolnough C, Wroe S, Harman H, Byng R. (2019) Does a social prescribing ‘holistic’ link-worker for older people with complex, multimorbidity improve well-being and frailty and reduce health and social care use and costs? A 12-month before- and-after evaluation. Primary Health Care Research & Development 20(e135): 1–10. 



19. Health Improvement Scotland/IHub, “Living well in communities with frailty: evidence for what works” 2018 [Online] Available: https://ihub.scot/media/4742/lwic-frailty_evidence-for-what-works_jul18.pdf accessed on September 2020 



20. NHS England & NHS improvement 2020 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/health-coaching-implementation-and-quality-summary-guide.pdf



21. D’avanzob B, Shaw R, Riva S, Apostolo J, Bobrowicz-Campos E, Kurpas D, Bujnowska-Fedak M & Holland C. Stakeholders' views and experiences of care and interventions for addressing frailty and pre-frailty: A meta-synthesis of qualitative evidence. PLOS One 2017 12(7):e0180127



22. Gwyther H, A realist review to understand the efficacy and outcomes of interventions designed to minimise, reverse or prevent the progression of frailty.2018 

23. The British Medical Journal, “Social prescribing” Available from: https://www.bmj.com/content/364/bmj.l1285.abstract accessed on 26th October 2020 



Reducing Care home admission 

1. Staffordshire County Council (2019). Evidence base for care homes. Available from:

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Care-for-all-ages/Information-for-providers/Market-Intelligence/Market-position-statement-intelligence/Evidence-care-homes/Evidence-base-for-care-homes.aspx. [Accessed 30 September 2020]



2. Boland L; France L; Maria P; Matthew M; Mirjam G; Daniel M; Genevieve G; Julie E; Nathalie B; Dawn S. (2017). Impact of home care versus alternative locations of care on elder health outcome. BMC Geriatrics vol. 17 (no. 20). https://bmcgeriatr.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12877-016-0395-y



3. Lucker J; Worley A; Stanley M; Uy J; Watt A; Hillier S. (2019). The evidence for services to avoid or delay residential aged care admission: a systematic review. BMC Geriatrics; 2019; vol. 19 (no.217).



4. Penders Y; Van den Block L; Donker A. (2015). Comparison of end of life care for older people living at home and in residential homes: a mortality follow-back among GPs in the Netherlands. British Journal of General Practice; 2015; vol. 65 (no. 640); p. 577-578.

5. International Longevity Centre (2019). Navigating the uncharted waters: population ageing in the UK. Available:  https://ilcuk.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/ILC-Navigating-the-uncharted-waters-of-PA-UK-FINAL.pdf 



6. ICP (2019): Literature review on community-based frailty initiative. August 2019.

7. Live in care hub (2019): why live-in care is a real alternative to residential or nursing home care. Available: https://www.liveincarehub.co.uk/better-at-home-2019/ 



8. Peek W; Eveline J; Luijkx K; Vrijhoef H; Theodoras. (2016). what it takes to successfully implement technology for aging in place: focus groups with stakeholders. Journal of Medical Internet Research. Vol.18 (no. 5)



9. Burgos-Diez C; Sequera-Requero RM; Tarazona-Santabalbina FJ; Contel-Segura JC; Monzo-Planella M; Santaeugenia-Gonzalez SJ. (2020). Study protocol of a quazi-experimental trial to compare two models of home care for older people in the primary setting. BMC Geriatrics; 2020; vol. 20 (no. 101).



10. Kingston, A; Comas-Herrera, A; Jagger, C; MODEM project. (2018). forecasting the care needs of the older population in England over the next 20 years: estimates from the Population Ageing and Care Stimulation (PACSim) modelling study. The Lancet. Public health; September, 2018; vol. 3 (no. 9); p.e447.

Optimisation of MDTs 



1. NHS England 2019. GP contract documentation. https://www.england.nhs.uk/gp/investment/gp-contract/gp-contract-documentation-2019-20/



2. Van Rijckevorsel-Scheele J, Williems R, Roelofs P, Koppeleaar E, Goumans M, Gobbens R. Effects of health care interventions on quality of life among frail elderly: A systematized review. 2019 14: 643-658. 



3. Featherstone, A (2018) Developing a holistic, multidisciplinary community service for frail older people. Nursing older people. e1064 



4. Hickman L, Phillips J, Newton P, Halcomb E, Abed N, Davidson P. Multidisciplinary team interventions to optimise health outcomes for older people in acute care settings: A systematic review. Arch Gerontol Geriatr 61(3): 333-9. 



5. Spoorenberg S, Reijneveld S, Uittenbroek R, Kremer H, Hubertus P & Wynia K. Health related problems and changes after 1 year as assessed with geriatric ICF core set (GeriatrICS) in community living older adults who are frail receiving person centre and integrated care from EMBRACE. 2019 Archives of physical medicine and rehabilitation. [Online] available from  https://pure.rug.nl/ws/files/80400346/1_s2.0_S0003999319302370_main.pdf



6. Ekdahl A, Alwin, J. Eckerbald J, Unosson, M, Wiklund R & Carlsson P. Long-term evaluation of the ambulatory geriatric assessment: A frailty intervention trial (Age-FIT): clinical outcomes and total costs after 36 months. The journal of post-acute and long-term care medicine 2016 17 (3): 263-268. 



7. Moody 2013 



8. Royal College of General Practitioners & British Geriatric Society, “Integrated care for older people with frailty” [Online]. Available from https://www.bgs.org.uk/sites/default/files/content/resources/files/2018-10-09/RCGP-Integrated-care-for-older-people-with-frailty-2016.pdf [accessed 20th August 2020]



9. The King’s Fund, “Making our health and care systems fit for an ageing population” (2014)[Online]. Available from https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/making-our-health-and-care-systems-fit-ageing-population [accessed on 20th August 2020]



10. The King’s fund, “ South Devon and Torbay, proactive case management using community virtual ward and the Devon predictive model  2013 [online] Available from https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/field/field_publication_file/south-devon-and-torbay-coordinated-care-case-study-kingsfund13.pdf accessed on 20th August 2020. 



11. The King’s fund, “Developing community resource teams in Pembrokeshire, Wales, integration of health and social care in progress” 2013 [Online] Available from  https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/field/field_publication_file/pembrokeshire-coordinated-care-case-study.pdf  accessed on 20th August 2020 



12. Dorset CCG “ Dorset frailty toolkit, A model for the identification, assessment and care planning of frail patients  frailty tool kit 2017 [Online] Available: https://clahrc-wessex.nihr.ac.uk/img/casestudies/Tool%20Kits%20JN20857.pdf accessed on 20th August 2020



13. The Health foundation, “ Statistical analysis protocol for an evaluation of extensive care service and enhanced primary care for Fylde Coase NHS vanguard” 2019 [Online] Available: https://www.health.org.uk/sites/default/files/2020-01/fylde_coast_nhs_vanguard_statistical_analysis_protocol.pdf accessed 20th August 2020



14. The Health foundation, “Briefing: The impact of providing enhanced support for car home residents in Rushcliffe 2017 [Online] Available: https://www.health.org.uk/sites/default/files/IAURushcliffe.pdf accessed on 13th  September 2020 



15. Eliis G & Sevdalis N. Understanding and improving multidisciplinary team working in geriatric medicine. Age Ageing 2019 48(4) 498-505. 



16. Frailty toolkit 2019 NHS Rightcare, retrieved on 10th August 2020 from  https://www.england.nhs.uk/rightcare/wp-content/uploads/sites/40/2019/07/frailty-toolkit-june-2019-v1.pdf

17. NICE, “End of life care for adults: service delivery NICE guidelines NG142” (2019) [Online] available from https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng142, accessed on 27th October 2020



18. Coombes S, Nocholson C, Gillet K &Norton C. Implementing advance care planning with community-dwelling frail elders requires a system-wide approach: An integrative review applying a behaviour change model. Palliative medicine 2019 (33): 743-756. 



19. Schichtel M, Wee B, Perera R & Onakpoya I. The effect of advance care planning on heart failure: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Journal of Internal medicine 2020 35(3)874-884



20. Macmillan. Missed opportunities: Advance care planning report 2018 [Online], available from https://www.coordinatemycare.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/missed-opportunities-end-of-life-advance-care-planning_.pdf accessed on 26th October 2020 



21. Compassion in dying. Adavance care planning in general practice: does policy match reality [Online] available from https://compassionindying.org.uk/library/advance-care-planning-in-general-practice-does-policy-match-reality/  accessed on 26th October 2020



22. Rietens J, Korfage I & Taubert M. Advance care planning: the future. BMJ supportive & palliative care. 2020 2304. Available from https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32414786/ accessed on 26th October 2020.



23. Centre for evidence based medicine “ Advance care planning in the community in the context of COVID-19” 2020 [Online] available from https://www.cebm.net/covid-19/advance-care-planning-in-the-community-in-the-context-of-covid-19/ accessed on 26th October 2020 



24. Lum S & Sudore R. Advance care planning and goals of care communication in older adults with cardiovascular disease and multimorbidity. Clinics in geriatric medicine 2016 32 (3): 247-260.  



25. Resuscitation Council UK, “ReSPECT” [2020] available from   https://www.resus.org.uk/respect accessed on 26th October 2020. 





26. Sillero-Rejon, C, McLeod H & Huntley A. Virtual multidisciplinary team meetings for the older population. May 2020 Available:  https://arc-w.nihr.ac.uk/Wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/BNSSG-COV.43-vMDT-frailty-13_05_2020.pdf accessed on 13th September 



The future of Dementia services 

1. House of Commons Library Briefing Paper (2019). Dementia: policy, services and statistics. Available: http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/SN07007/SN07007.pdf



2. Institute of Public Care. (2020). Available: www.poppi.org.uk



3. Alzheimer’s Society (2019); Projections of older people with dementia and cost of dementia care in the United Kingdom, 2019- 2040. Available: https://www.alzheimers.org.uk/about-us/policy-and-influencing/dementia-scale-impact-numbers



4. Department of Health; Challenge on Dementia 2020. Feb. 2015, page 10



5. Scottish Government (2017); National dementia strategy 2017-2020. Available: https://www.gov.scot/publications/scotlands-national-dementia-strategy-2017-2020/



6. Local Government Association (2020); Digital innovation in adult social care: how we have been supporting communities during COVID-19. Oxford Brookes University Institute of Public Care. 2020. Available: https://www.scie-socialcareonline.org.uk/?q=aging+technology&f_publication_year=2020&page=2

7. Department of Health and Social Care (2019); Dementia 2020 Challenge: 2018 Review phase 1. Available: https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/780777/dementia-2020-challenge-2018-review.pdf



8. Morton-chang F; Williams A; Berta W; Laporte A (2016): Towards a Community-Based Dementia Care Strategy: How do we get there from here? Healthcare papers; 2016; vol. 16 (no 2); p. 8-32.

9. Bokberg C; Ahlstrom G; Leino-Kilpi H; Soto-Martin M…….Karlsson S et al (2015). Care and service at home for persons with dementia in Europe. Journal of Nursing Scholarship. Sep 2015; vol. 47 (no. 5); p. 407-416.



10. Lincoln p; Fenton K; Alessi C; Prince M; Brayne C….Mwatsama M et al: The Blackfriars Consensus on brain health and dementia. The lancet; May 2014, vol.383 (no.9931); p. 1805-1806



11. Alzheimer’s Research UK (2018). Thinking Differently: Preparing today to implement future dementia treatments. Available: https://www.alzheimersresearchuk.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/thinking_differently_report-180328-single.pdf



12. Leotsakos A: Shaping the future of dementia care. Health management, volume 18, issue 4, 2018. Available:  https://healthmanagement.org/c/healthmanagement/issuearticle/shaping-the-future-of-dementia-care



13. High Weald Lewes havens CCG. Connecting 4 you. Frailty strategy 2017-2020. January 2018. Version 1.11

14. Alzheimer Scotland (2016): 5 pillars Model of Post Diagnostic Support. Available: http://www.alzscot.org/campaigning/five_pillars [web page]



15. Levin K; Lithgow S; Miller M; Carson J (2018): Post diagnostic support for dementia: what can be learned from service providers’ experiences, model variation and information recording? Health Education; 2018; vol.118 (no.4); p. 320-338.



16. Immedicare (2019). Expanding telemedicine for dementia patients could save NHS billions and support frontline resource strains. September 2019. Available: https://immedicare.co.uk/expanding-telemedicine-for-dementia-patients-could-save-nhs-billions-and-support-frontline-resource-strains-new-data-shows/



17. Bott N; Sheckter C; Yang D; Peters S; Brady B; Plowman S, Borson S…….Milstein A et al (2019). Systems delivery innovation for Alzheimer disease. The American Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry; Feb. 2019; vol. 27 (no 2); p. 149-161.



Workforce 



1. Department of Health and Social care& NHS England 2018. National audit of reducing emergency admissions. https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/Reducing-emergency-admissions.pdf



2. NHS Benchmarking network 2012 National audit of intermediate care https://static1.squarespace.com/static/58d8d0ffe4fcb5ad94cde63e/t/58f08fc3c534a563177e66b6/1492160477083/naic-report-2012.pdf



3. NHS Benchmarking network 2017. National audit of intermediate care. https://s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/nhsbn-static/NAIC%20(Providers)/2017/NAIC%20England%20Summary%20Report%20-%20upload%202.pdf



4. NHS 2014. Five year forward view. https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf



5. NHS (2019) The NHS Long Term Plan. Available from: https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-long-term-plan/ (Accessed 14 October 2020).



6. Beswick A, Rees K, Dieppe P, Ayis S, Goobeman-Hill R, Horwood J, Ebrahim S. Complex interventions to improve physical function and maintain independent living in elderly people: a systematic review and met-analysis. Lancet 2008 371 (9614):725-735.



7. Challis DJ, Clarkson P, Williamson J, Hughes J, Venables D, Burns A, Weinberg A. The value of specialist clinical assessment of older people prior to entry in care homes. Age & Ageing 2004 33(1): 25-34. 



8. Athorn, K, A Folwell, D Harman, S Kar, L Windass, 21 The Jean Bishop Team, Hull: A New Model of Care for Comprehensive Geriatric Assessment of the Frail Population, Age and Ageing, Volume 49, Issue Supplement_1, February 2020, Pages i1–i8,  



9. Perez Bazan LM,  Soto-Bagaria L, Gual N, Burbano MP, Inzitari M, Enfedaque-Montes MB, Martin E, Orfila F, Cesari M, Tarazona-Santabalbina FJ, Casas RM, Diaz F, Gomez A. A community program of integrated care for frail older adults: +AGIL Barcelona 2019 23(8) 710-716. 



10. Ntlholang O, O’Donoghue E, O’Kelly F, O’Doherty K, O’Kelly S, Robinson D (2014) Taking the service to the Community-Geriatrician-Primary Care Liaison Service. Irish journal of medical science 183 (7): 359.



11. NHS England 2019. GP contract documentation. https://www.england.nhs.uk/gp/investment/gp-contract/gp-contract-documentation-2019-20/



12. BGS 2018 ECF and ANPS- The future of frailty  https://www.bgs.org.uk/blog/ecfs-and-anps-%E2%80%93-the-future-of-frailty



13. Koopmans L, Damen N, Wagner C. Does diverse staff and skill mix of teams impact quality of care in long-term elderly health care? An exploratory case study. BMC Health Serv Res. 2018 Dec 20;18(1):988



14. Cramm J & Nieboer A. Self-management abilities and quality of life among frail community-dwelling individuals: the role of community nurses in the Netherlands. Health & Social care in the community. 2016, 25 (2)



15. Queen’s Nursing Institute 2019. District nursing today: the view of district nursing team leaders in the UK. https://www.qni.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/District-Nursing-Today-The-View-of-DN-Team-Leaders-in-the-UK.pdf



16. Queen’s Nursing Institute 2016. Understanding safe caseloads in the district nursing service. https://www.qni.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/Understanding_Safe_Caseloads_in_District_Nursing_Service_V1.0.pdf



17. Queen’s Nursing Institute 2013. Care in local communities: a new vision and model for district nursing.https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213363/vision-district-nursing-04012013.pdf



18. NICE 2015a. Integrated Care Clinical Pharmacist for Frail Older People: Case Management and Enhanced Rapid Response. https://www.nice.org.uk/sharedlearning/integrated-care-clinical-pharmacist-for-frail-older-people-case-management-and-enhanced-rapid-response



19. NICE 2015b. Medicine optimisation: the safe and effective use of medicines to enable the best possible outcomes. Nice Guideline NG5. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/NG5



20. Rai, V. 2018 MOPS west London Rai 2018 https://www.sps.nhs.uk/repositories/the-impact-of-domiciliary-medication-review-in-patients-at-high-risk-of-medicines-related-problems-varinder-rai/



21. Khera S, Abbasi M, Dabravolskaj J, Sadowski CA, Yua H, Chevalier B. Appropriateness of Medications in Older Adults Living With Frailty: Impact of a Pharmacist-Led Structured Medication Review Process in Primary Care. Journal of Primary Care & Community Health. January 2019.



22. Dilks S, Emblin K, Nash I & Jefferies S. Pharmacy at home: service for frail older patients demonstrates medicines risk reduction and admission avoidance. The Pharmaceutical Journal 2016. 



23. Adams W, McIIvain H, Lacy N, Magsi H, Crabtree B, Yenny S, Sitorius ,M. Primary care for elderly people: why do doctors find it so hard? The Gerontologist 2002 42(6): 835-842. 



24. Cesari M, Abellan VKG, Marzetti E, Landi F, Bernabei R, Thiem U, Perez-Zepeda MU, Petrovic M, Cherubini A. The Geriatric management of frailty as paradigm of the end of the disease era. European Journal of Internal Medicine



25. BGS HEE 2018. BGS response to consultation on workforce strategy. https://www.bgs.org.uk/policy-and-media/bgs-response-to-consultation-on-workforce-strategy



26. BGS 2018. Response from British Geriatrics Society to RCGP’s consultation - Towards a Future Vision for General Practice. https://www.bgs.org.uk/sites/default/files/content/attachment/2018-11-02/BGS%20response%20to%20RCGP%20consultation%20-%20Oct%2018.pdf



27. RCGP & BGS. Integrated care for older people with frailty, innovative approaches in practice. 2018. https://www.bgs.org.uk/sites/default/files/content/resources/files/2018-10-09/RCGP-Integrated-care-for-older-people-with-frailty-2016.pdf



28. Cornwell, J. The care of frail older people with complex needs: time for a revolution. The King’s fund. https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/field/field_publication_file/the-care-of-frail-older-people-with-complex-needs-mar-2012.pdf



29. The Lancet. Bringing frailty into all realms of medicine. The Lancet 2019 394(10206)1298. https://www.proquest.com/docview/2303652866/9A369F8700D94D26PQ/1?accountid=49126



30. Kotteck A, Bates T & Spetz J. The Roles and value of Geriatricians in healthcare teams: a landscape analysis. UCSF Health workforce research centre for longterm care. 2017 https://healthworkforce.ucsf.edu/sites/healthworkforce.ucsf.edu/files/REPORT_Geriatricians_Lit%20_FINAL.pdf





Interface between community and secondary care 



1. Office for National Statistics, "Living longer: how our population is changing and why it matters," 2018. [Online]. Available: https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/ageing/articles/livinglongerhowourpopulationischangingandwhyitmatters/2018. [Accessed 8 September 2020].



2. https://digital.nhs.uk/news-and-events/latest-news/emergency-readmissions-published-for-first-time-in-five-years



3. NHS 2014. Five year forward view. Available:  https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf



4. NHS 2019. The NHS Long Term Plan. Available from: https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-long-term-plan/ (Accessed 14 October 2020).



5. The continuum of care, Stoke on Trent Clinical care commission group, 2015.



6. Adenwalla F., Davies A., Griffiths B. (2019). Integrated response model between Neath Port Talbot acute clinical team (ACT) and the Welsh ambulance services NHS trust: putting prudent healthcare into practice. Age and Ageing; July 2019; vol. 48.



7. Black S., Frampton I. (2019). Convey or not convey? Does crew skill level predict hospital conveyance rate in a UK regional NHS ambulance service trust? Emergency Medicine Journal; January 2019; vol.36 (no. 1).



8. Hilton C., McCabe S., Raichura J., Eilson C. (2019). Home ward Ealing: local implementation of a prevention of admission pathway for ambulance crews to divert patients into home-hospitalisation. International journal of Clinical Practice; April 2019: vol. 73.



9. Mcdarby G., Smyth B. (2019). Identifying priorities for primary care investment in Ireland through a population based analysis of avoidable hospital admissions for ambulatory care sensitive conditions (ACSC). BMJ open; Nov 2019: vol 9 (no 11).



10. Cartwright A (2019). Alternatives to hospital admissions for older people. An evidence review.



11. Shepperd S, Iliffe  S, Doll  HA, Clarke  MJ, Kalra  L, Wilson  AD, Gonçalves‐Bradley  DC. (2016) Admission avoidance hospital at home. Cochrane Database of Systematic Review, Issue 9. Art. No.: CD007491. DOI: 10.1002/14651858.CD007491.pub2.





12. Peckham, A., Carbone, S., Poole, M., Allin, S., Marchildon, G. (2019). Care closer to home: Elements of high performing home and community support services. Toronto: North American Observatory on Health Systems and Policies. Rapid Review (no 13). Available: https://www.cfhi-fcass.ca/sf-docs/default-source/reports/nao-rapid-review-e.pdf?sfvrsn=a3b6ac44_6



13. Wilson, A., Baker, R., Bankart, J., Conroy, S., Kantes, S., Phelps, R., Regen, E.,…..Wanny, J. (2019). Understanding variation in unplanned admissions of people aged 85 and over: A systematic based approach. BMJ open. 2019, 9(7)



14. Barrett, David. (2019). Admission avoidance: hospital at home. British journal of community nursing; May 2019; vol. 24 (no. 5); p. 238-239



15. https://fabnhsstuff.net/fab-stuff/delivering-hospital-care-at-home-a-scottish-success-story



16. NHS Lothian Rapid Response Team. Healthcare Improvement Scotland.2020. https://news.nhslothian.scot/Pages/20190923NHSLothianRapidResponseTeamwintheirfourthaward-.aspx. 



17. TheAHSNetwork 2020. Telemedicine for care homes: a strategic implementation guide. Wessex Academic Health Science Network. August 2020. Vol.1. 



18. https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/mapping-local-rehabilitation-and-intermediate-care-services 



19. Nagai K; Miyamato T; Okamae A; Tamaki A; Fujioka H; Wada Y; Uchiyama Y; Shinmura K; Domen K. (2018). Physical activity combined with resistance training reduces symptoms of frailty in older adults: a randomised controlled trail. Archives of gerontology and geriatrics; 2018; vol 76. P 41-47.



20. Singer JP; Soong A; Bruun A; Bracha A; Chin G; Hays SR; Kukreja J; Rigler J; Golden JA; Greenland JR; Garvey C. (2018). A mobile health technology enabled home-based intervention to treat frailty in adult lung transplant candidates: A pilot study. Clinical transplantation; June 2018; Vol. 32 (no. 6)



21. Gual N., Gavalda R., Inzitari M. (2019). Big Data for the strarification of readmission risk after hospital discharge of older adults with complex conditions.international Journal of Integrated Care (IJIC); August 2019; vol.19 (no. S1); p 1-2.



22. Australian Commission on Safety and Quality in Health Care (ACSQH) 2019. Avoidable Hospital Readmission Literature Review on Australian and International Indicators. Available:  https://www.safetyandquality.gov.au/publications-and-resources/resource-library/avoidable-hospital-readmission-literature-review-australian-and-international-indicators



23. Trivedi S.P., Trawick E., Fagan I., Schwartz M.D., Diuguid-Gerber J., Lipkin M. (2019). Resources intensive care transitions program impaction 90- day hospital readmissions. Journal of General Internal Medicine. May 2019; vol. 34 (no.2).



24. Nice guidance 2016. Available:https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs136/chapter/Introduction



25. https://fabnhsstuff.net/fab-stuff/developing-home-first-mindset-liz-sargeant



26. Department of health. Available: https://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/keogh-review/Documents/quick-guides/Quick-Guide-discharge-to-access.pdf



27. Jeppesen E, Brurberg KG, Vist GE, Wedzicha JA, Wright JJ, Greenstone M et al.(2012)  Hospital at home for acute exacerbations of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews.; Issue 5:CD003573. DOI:10.1002/14651858.CD003573.pub2



28. Qaddoura A, Yazdan-Ashoori P, Kabali C, Thabane L, Haynes RB, Connolly SJ, et al. (2015) Efficacy of Hospital at Home in Patients with Heart Failure: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. PLoS ONE 10(6): e0129282. Available: https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0129282



29. British Geriatric Society 2019. Improving healthcare for older people. Available: https://www.bgs.org.uk/topics/integrated-care 



30. Lea SC; Watts KL; Davis NA; Panyiotou B; Bankart M J; Arora A, Chambers R. (2014). The potential Clinical benefit of medicines optimisation through comprehensive geriatric assessment, carried out by secondary care geriatricians, in a general practice care setting in North Staffordshire, UK: a feasibility Study. BMJ open 2017;7: e015278.



31. Gardner M., Shepperd S., Godfrey M., Makela P., Tsiachristas A., Singh-Mehta A., Ellis G…. Stott DJ. (2019). Comprehensive Geriatric Assessment in hospital at home settings: a mixed method study. Health Services Delivery and Research 7(10), March 2019. Available:  Health Services and Delivery Research 



32. Roberts H; Conroy S. 2018. Hospital wide comprehensive geriatric assessment. British Geriatrics Society.



33. Rolph G. (2019). Improving the outcomes of older people at risk of admission using the Rapid Access Clinic for the Elderly: European Geriatric Medicine. Vol 9.





































Appendix



Search Methodology



Population approach 

A general search was carried out including search terms “population approach to frailty” population management of health ageing”, “strategy for healthy ageing”, “international guidance on population approaches for healthy ageing”, “personalised approached for frailty”, “individual management of health conditions” “self-supported management”. All relevant papers and guidance and reviewed. 



Preventing progression of frailty 

In order to gather the relevant literature a search was carried out in August 2020, using CINAHL, MEDLINE, EMCARE, NHS evidence, TRIP database and General web search. Search terms include “proactive management of slightly unwell older people before they start needing higher levels of care”, “importance of behaviour change” “middle level of pyramid” “identifying people before they became ill” “wellness clinics”. Results were reviewed and those published in the last 10 years, which look at the older population and community care were reviewed. Additional searches were carried out stemming from information found in original searches.  



Reducing care home admission 

A literature search was undertaken in August 2020, using Medline, CINAHL, HMIC, NHS evidence, Cochrane, EMCARE and General web search using a combination of search terms: “care home admission”, “homes for the aged”, community health services”, “caring for and keeping the elderly in their homes”, “independent living”, “home care”, “delivery of health care”, “older people”, “health care delivery”

 The search found 40 articles, 26 were reviewed. Those eliminated were based on Emergency department, acute admissions, hospice, and secondary care.



Optimisation of MDTs 

In order to gather the relevant literature a search was carried out in July 2020, using CINAHL, MEDLINE, EMCARE, NHS evidence, TRIP database and General web search. Search terms include “multidisciplinary team” “interdisciplinary team”, “patient care team” “health services for the aged or frail elderly” “MDT working elderly”, “MDT working frail” “multidisciplinary team virtual” “effectiveness of MDTs for frailty” “virtual multidisciplinary teams in community health”. The search found 16 articles, of these 6 were reviewed. Those eliminated were based on acute admissions, Emergency Departments or secondary care rather than primary and community care. Articles that were deemed to be outdated, before 2004 were also eliminated as data cannot be relied upon. 



The future of dementia services 

A literature search was undertaken in September 2020, using Medline, PsycINFO, HMIC, BNI, NHS Evidence, PubMed, and General web search using a combination of search terms; “dementia”, “health service for elderly people”, “health service for older people”, “local health service”, health service for the aged”, “community mental health services”, “health policy”, “health planning”, “Alzheimer’s disease”, “health care policy”, “shaping the future of dementia care”, “dementia service”. The search found 40 articles, 13 were reviewed. Those eliminated were based on Emergency department, acute admissions.



Workforce 

In order to gather the relevant literature, between July and August 2020, the following clinical databases were used; PsycInfo, CINAHL, British Nursing Index, MEDLINE, EMBASE, HMIC, AMED and EMCARE. Search terms included “community geriatrician”, “medical skillset frail elderly”, “frailty workforce implications”, “role of geriatricians in the community” and “GPWSI frailty”. Further data was analysed looking at including a pharmacist and advanced nurse practitioner to the workforce. 



Admission avoidance 

A literature search was undertaken in July 2020, using Medline, Embase, HMIC, social care online, PubMed, Academy of Fab NHS stuff, King’s fund, health foundation and general web search using a combination of search terms; “ admission avoidance innovation”, “admission avoidance future”, “admission avoidance”, “ rapid response”, “hospital avoidance”, “ambulatory emergency care”. The literatures that were excluded were hospital-based initiatives. In order to inform modelling for system planning, reviews on interventions with evidence of effectiveness in terms of utilisation of health care and patient outcomes and experience were used. It was difficult to compare interventions that were most effective. Most interventions were from grey literature reports, including case study



















1





